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SELECTBOARD MEETS EVERY WEDNESDAY AT 7PM 
IN THE BRYANT ROOM OF THE GIBBS LIBRARY – 

ALL ARE ENCOURAGED TO ATTEND!

EMERGENCY FIRE & AMBULANCE911
TOWN OFFICE845-2897

845-2131 FAX
STATE POLICE1-800-452-4664
KNOX COUNTY SHERIFF593-9132
CENTRAL MAINE POWER (OUTAGES)1-800-696-1000
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EMA DIRECTOR, DONALD GRINNELL542-3317
ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER, NICOLE BISSETT542-6854
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TRANSFER STATION785-2261
PRESCOTT SCHOOL845-2424
GIBBS LIBRARY845-2663
FIRE WARDEN/BURN PERMITS, KEN BOISE845-2525
MAINE FOREST SERVICE1-800-367-0223
GAME WARDEN1-800-452-4664
TO REPORT WILDFIRE OR ARSON1-800-987-0257
KNOX COUNTY MEALS ON WHEELS594-2740
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On the cover:
New plow truck, 2021 International, voted on to purchase at the 

2020 Annual Town Meeting.
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Dedication

Kevin Esancy, one of our dedicated Road Crew 

since 2007, who resigned in 

September because of illness.  

He is missed!
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In Memoriam

Susanne Esther Taylor
Susanne Esther Taylor, 61, of Washington, passed away October 23, 

2020, because of complications from heart surgery. Susanne was born in 
Rockland May 25, 1959 to Ronald I. Creamer and Kirsti A. Fish (Wilson).

Susanne met the love of her life in 1977, and she and Ron were wed 
March 18, 1978. They enjoyed 42 years of marriage and raised a lovely 
family. The close bond they all have will always be a testament to the love 
they have shared, and it will carry them through until they are all together 
again in heaven. Susanne attended Medomak Valley High School and 
graduated in 1977. She earned an associate degree as an x-ray technician 
and was the Lead Nuclear Medical Technologist, starting in 1983, for 37 
years. She enjoyed her job, was a dedicated worker and a wonderful co-
worker and boss.

Susanne was a girl scout at nine years old and attended 4H for many 
years. She was a Candy Striper, was in Girls State and was the youngest 
lecturer of the Evening Star Grange at age 14 . She was one of the first 
members of the Washington Hill & Gully Riders Snowmobile Club, which 
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her parents started in 1972.
Susanne had many passions, including gardening, sewing, crocheting, 

cake decorating, hunting, camping and fishing. Fishing was by far her 
favorite outdoor sport and she would regularly catch the biggest fish out of 
the family! One of her favorite spots to fish was at Moosehead Lake.

She was a member of the Washington Historical Society and was 
the Champion Pie Winner two years in a row. She was a member of the 
Washington Fire Department Auxiliary, was also the treasurer and a charter 
member of the Finn-Am Society of Mid Coast Maine.

She loved being Nana to her three wonderful grandchildren and doted on 
them every chance she could! They filled her life with love and happiness.
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In Memoriam

Dorothy (Ripley) Sainio 

Dorothy (Ripley) Sainio died in Bangor November 14, 2020. Dorothy 
was born April 3, 1 932 in Washington to Myrtle (nee: Grinnell, later 
Kirkpatrick) and George Ripley. She and her husband, Henry, had been 
married for almost 70 years. 

Dorothy, a retired teacher, taught in one-room schools, including South 
Liberty and Burkettville, the Palermo Grade School and served as acting 
principal at Prescott Memorial School. 

Dorothy served as first select person of Washington for over 10 years 
and was instrumental in developing the first tax maps and full assessment of 
town property. Until recently, she was on the Appeals Board.

She was an avid volunteer and leader throughout her life. She taught 
Sunday School at the South Liberty Baptist Church and was the first female 
deacon at the Washington Village Church.

She served as master of the Evening Star Grange for many years and was 
instrumental in raising funds and renovations to preserve the Grange Hall. 
Dorothy was active in the Ladies Guild, the PTA, Washington Volunteer 
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Fire Department Auxiliary and was leader of the Washington 4-H Club for 
many years. The 4-H club restored the Nelson-Butterfield Cemetery and 
opened the town park on Crystal Lake under her guidance.

Dorothy was also instrumental in the founding of the Gibbs Library and 
was an active board member for many years. She helped to establish the 
Minnie Weaver Scholarship Fund.

She was always willing to help, including planning retirement parties, 
special events, such as the Washington Sesquicentennial, catering weddings 
for special friends and food and toy baskets.

Dorothy will be missed by her family and her town.
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Town Officers
Selectmen, Assessors and Overseers of the Poor

Wesley F. Daniel       Thomas Johnston      Berkley Linscott 

Town Clerk/Tax Collector/Treasurer
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Deputy Town Clerk/Deputy Tax Collector/Deputy Treasurer
Joan Hayward

Stephanie Grinnell

Registrar of Voters
Joan Hayward

Deputy Registrar of Voters
Mary Anderson

Stephanie Grinnell

Road Foreman
Frank Jones, Jr.

Code Enforcement Officer/Plumbing Inspector
Edward R. Temple

**Corey Fortin. Asst. 

Fire Chief
Philip Meunier

Deputy Fire Chief
Dean Batlis

*Steven Olmsted

Emergency Management Director
*Corwin Flynn
Donald Grinnell

Forest Fire Wardens
Kenneth Boisse, Deputy  Phil Meunier  
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Health Officer
Brian Alves

Animal Control Officer
Nicole Bissett

Constable
Christopher Lascoutx

M.S.A.D. #40 School Board Directors
Guy Bourrie  Karen Kunesh

Town Meeting Moderator
Walter Metcalf

Deputy Moderator
Michael Mayo

Election Warden
Walter Metcalf

Election Clerks
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	 Elizabeth Grinnell	 Cathy Blake
	 Mildred Melgard 	 Katherine Grinnell	 	 	
	 Jaquelyn Metcalf	 Linda Luce
	 Deborah Royroberts

Planning Board
Mitchell A. Garnett, Chairman
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	 Robert deGroff, ALT	 Traci Hoffman
	 James Kearney	 	 	 	 	
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Budget Committee
Donald Grinnell, Chairman

	 Wendy Carr	 Jesse Casas
	 Walter Metcalf	 Peg Hobbs, ALT
	 David Martucci	 Kathleen Ocean	
	 Deborah Bocko, ALT	 David Williams	 	 	

Housing Committee
Traci Hoffman

Conservation Committee
David Spahr

Mineral Ordinance Committee
Deborah Bocko  David Martucci

Recreation Committee
Helen Caddie-Larcenia, Peg Hobbs, Co-Chairs

	 Dakota Green	 John Green
	 Kathleen Gross	 Neil Gross	
	 Alison Leavitt	 Ashley Elwell
	 Steve Ocean	 Travis Perez
	 	 	 	

Tri-County Solid Waste Management Organization
Norman Casas  Charlotte Henderson  Lee Shane, ALT

	
Washington Scholarship Committee

	 Jan Birk	 Judy Good
	 Mindy Gould	 Mildred Melgard
	 Amiee Gess	 	 	 	 	

Roads Committee
	 Christopher Armstrong	 Merton Moore
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Charlotte Henderson  Brian Alves

	 	 	 	 	
Driveway Entrance Coordinator

Frank Jones, Jr.
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E911 Address Coordinator
Thomas Johnston

	
State Senator~District 13	 Representative to Legislature~District 91
Chloe Maxmin	 Jeffrey Evangelos
3 State House Station	 2 State House Station
Augusta, ME  04333-0003    	 Augusta, ME 04333-0002
(207) 287-1515	 (800) 423-2900	
Chloe.Maxmin@	 Jeffrey.Evangelos@	
legislature.maine.gov	           legislature.maine.gov

	*Resigned
**Started in 2021
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Selectmen’s Report, Discussion, 
and Analysis

The following management’s discussion and analysis of the Town of 
Washington, Maine’s financial performance provides an overview of the Town’s 
financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020. Please read it in 
conjunction with the Town’s financial statements.
Financial Statement Overview

The Town of Washington’s basic financial statements include the following 
components: 

1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) 
notes to the financial statements. This report also includes required supplementary 
information which consists of the general fund budgetary comparison schedule, and 
other supplementary information which includes combining and other schedules.
Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include financial information in two differing 
views: the government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements. 
These basic financial statements also include the notes to financial statements 
that explain in more detail certain information in the financial statements and also 
provide the user with the accounting policies used in the preparation of the financial 
statements.
Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide a broad view of the Town’s 
operations in a manner that is similar to private businesses. These statements 
provide both short-term as well as long-term information in regards to the Town’s 
financial position. These financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of 
accounting. This measurement focus takes into account all revenues and expenses 
associated with the fiscal year regardless of when cash is received or paid. The 
government-wide financial statements include the following two statements:

The Statement of Net Position - this statement presents all of the government’s 
assets and liabilities with the difference being reported as net position.

The Statement of Activities - this statement presents information that shows 
how the government’s net position changed during the period. All changes in net 
position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change 
occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.

Both of the above mentioned financial statements have one column for 
the Town’s one type of activity. The type of activity presented for the Town of 
Washington is:
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Governmental activities - The activities in this section are mostly supported 
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (federal and state grants). All of the 
Town’s basic services are reported in governmental activities, which include general 
government, public safety, health and sanitation, public works, education, social 
services, and other unclassified.

Town programs include education, general government, health and welfare, 
highways and bridges, protection, special assessments (County tax), and unclassified. 
Each program’s net cost (total cost less revenues generated by activities) is presented 
below. The net costs show the financial burden placed on the Town’s taxpayers by 
each of the functions: 
Governmental	 Net Cost	 Net Cost	 Net Cost 	 Net Cost	 Net Cost	
Activities	 2020	 2019	 2018	 2017	 2016
General 
  Government	 277,636.61	 320,848.40	 277,064.72	 282,771.01	 272,609.71 
Public Assistance	  370.51	  668.40	  228.19	  490.81	  216.00
Public Works	  322,250.83	 1,011,865.05	  697,043.82	  578,377.01	  483,916.79
Education	  1,777,067.04	 1,743,763.48	 1,628,330.04	  1,509,724.77	  1,421,347.02
Knox 
  Communication	  50,450.00	  47,944.00	  45,166.00	  41,422.00	  40,210.00
Interest	  10,881.64	  11,087.79	  12,461.81	  11,408.22	  6,153.68
County Tax	  174,353.61	  160,725.20	  160,112.36	  149,050.62	  141,517.80
Public Safety	  111,773.85	  99,091.05	  88,906.08	  108,677.89	  57,932.48
Unclassified	  37,863.81	  37,745.29	  34,988.21	  33,375.68	  15,392.87
TCSWMO	  43,504.23	  42,435.33	  42,145.20	  41,778.72	  36,189.90
	  2,806,152.13	 3,476,173.99	 2,986,446.43	  2,757,076.73	 2,475,486.25

On December 31, 2020, Washington’s net position for governmental activities 
totaled $2,654,712.91. The net position as of December 31, 2019 was $2,491,415.68, 
thus an increase in net position of $163,297.23 during fiscal year 2020.
Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town 
of Washington, like other local governments uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with financial related legal requirements. All of the funds 
of the Town of Washington are categorized as one fund type: governmental funds.

Governmental funds: All of the basic services provided by the Town are financed 
through governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially 
the same functions reported in governmental activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, 
the governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows 
of spendable resources. They also focus on the balance of spendable resources 
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information will be useful in evaluating 
the government’s near-term financing requirements. This approach is known as the 
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Under this approach revenues are recorded when cash is received or 
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when susceptible to accrual. Expenditures are recorded when liabilities are incurred 
and due. These statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Town’s finances 
to assist in determining whether there will be adequate financial resources available 
to meet the current needs of the Town.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of government-
wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for 
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities 
in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better 
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. 
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement 
of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation 
to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental 
activities. These reconciliations are presented on Exhibits C and D of the financial 
statements.

The Town of Washington presents only one column in the governmental fund 
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and 
changes in fund balances. The Town’s major governmental fund is the general 
fund. 

The general fund is the only fund for which the Town legally adopted a budget. 
The Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund provides a comparison of the 
original and final budget and the actual expenditures for the current year.
Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding 
of the data provided in the Government-Wide and the Fund Financial Statements. 
The Notes to Financial Statements can be found following the Reconciliation 
of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of 
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities.
Required Supplementary Information

The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required 
supplementary information, which includes a Budgetary Comparison Schedule - 
General Fund.

Washington had five outstanding loans at the end of fiscal year 2020: a loan 
for a plow truck which matures in 2023, a garage loan maturing in 2032, a fire truck 
loan maturing in 2024, a plow truck loan maturing in 2026, and a fire truck loan 
maturing in 2026.
	 FY 2020	 FY 2019	 FY 2018	 FY 2017	 FY 2016
Long-Term Debt	  622,727.88	  373,712.36	  427,140.84	  479,195.30	 295,112.95
Special Assessments are as follows:
	 FY 2020	 FY 2019	 FY 2018	 FY 2017	 FY 2016
TCSWMO	 43,504.23	 42,435.33	  42,145.20	  41,778.72	 36,189.90
Knox County Tax	  174,353.61	  160,725.20	  160,112.36	  149,050.62	 141,517.80
Knox 
  Communication	 50,450.00	 47,944.00	 45,166.00	 41,422.00	 40,210.00
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Other Administrative Notes: 
	 2020	 2019	 2018	 2017	 2016
Tax Commitment	 2,369,643.53	 2,373,425.97	 2,135,797.23	 2,015,535.38	 1,986,217.40
Mil Rate	 .0163	 .0163	 .0157	 0.0152	 0.0149
Taxes Receivable	  249,677.37	  263,166.74	  261,792.63	  254,349.61	  282,544.20
% Collected	 89.46%	 88.91%	 87.74%	 87.38%	 85.77%
Outstanding Tax Liens	  60,679.54	  67,823.65	  65,548.95	  51,140.63	  64,534.88
BETE	  43,230.00	  39,790.00	  38,865.00	  38,194.00	  34,396.00
Excise Taxes	  285,998.51	  291,502.33	  259,809.07	  252,020.54	  238,796.64
State Revenue Sharing	  111,800.00	  82,756.54	  62,251.98	  55,591.53	  52,051.97
Homestead	  141,009.59	  98,397.69	  93,189.11	  75,309.20	  55,301.50
Interest Income	  3,915.08	  9,380.77	  7,289.03	  7,521.05	  6,665.31
Summary

January 2020 started with snow and ice. All through the winter we had storms 
that included snow, ice, wind and rain, with blown-down trees and washouts. We 
had a lot of repairs on our town plow trucks. We have a good crew that can take care 
of most of the repairs. In December 2020 we took delivery of our new plow truck, a 
2021 International with a plow wing and sander. 

In March 2020 a town plow truck went through the culvert on Halfway Brook 
on the Bill Luce Road. The culvert had been there for many years and the top of it 
was rusted away. The Bill Luce Road was closed for quite some time while it was 
being repaired. Chris Packard Construction was hired to work with the road crew to 
replace the culvert. Because of high water and rain, it took longer to do the job and 
Bill Luce Road was closed for about two weeks. There was a lot of water coming 
down the brook that time of year that caused a lot of problems. The new culvert is 
bigger in diameter and longer and should do the job. 

Our town meeting in late March could not be held because of COVID-19. 
Some of our selectmen’s meetings were limited to just signing the warrants just to 
keep the bills paid. The town office was closed for about three weeks then opened 
by appointment for a while and gradually went back to near normal. We had town 
meeting on July 18 at the fire station. Everything went well. Everyone wore masks 
and sat six feet apart. Mike Mayo did a great job, as moderator, keeping everything 
in order. 

The Fitch Road Culvert Bridge project on the Davis Stream has been completed. 
After many discussions about whether to do a culvert or a bridge it was decided to 
go with a bridge as the best option. Dirigo Engineering did the design work and 
Dirigo Timberlands did the construction work. The contract was signed with Dirigo 
Timberlands on July 1 3th and construction was slated to begin about July 27th. 
There was about a week delay because CMP and Consolidated Communications had 
to move power and phone lines. Once construction started it moved right along until 
completed. The bridge should last many years. The project was paid for by a DEP 
Stream Crossings Grant and money from the road reserve account. The total cost of 
the bridge was $245,000.00.
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The repair work on the town garage was started about the first of September. 
The work was done by Maine Highlands Contracting. They were the only contractor 
who submitted a bid on the repair project. The work got started late because of a late 
town meeting, and moved along slowly because the contractor had other jobs at that 
time he was working on. The repair project was completed by mid-November. 

Kevin Esancy, a long-time employee of the town, working on the road crew 
became ill and had to leave his job. Kevin’s mechanical ability and plowing and 
roadwork experience will be missed. It was hard to find someone with equal ability. 
Steven Jones was hired to take that position and he is working out very well. 

The Town Office Staff met the COVID-19 situation head-on. Mary Anderson 
applied for and received a COVID-19 grant to help with additional costs associated 
with the virus and the Presidential Election, like PPE and postage for all of the 
additional absentee ballots. The office also had a bit of a technology setback when 
Mary’s office was struck by lightning. Thankfully no one was injured; we did need 
to replace the router, modem and many of the cables. The office staff continues to 
work well together and make the townspeople feel welcome when they come into 
the town office. 

We had some turnover in the EMA Director position. Kit Lascoutx resigned and 
Corwin Flynn took over at the beginning of the year, just in time for the Pandemic. 
In August, Corwin resigned and Donald Grinnell stepped in to take over. We have 
the ongoing task of finding citizens to be on some of the boards: Planning Board, 
Appeals Board, Tri-County Solid Waste. In May 2021 we appoint these positions. 
Anyone interested in any of these positions should apply and will be considered. 
There is an opening on the School Board and although that is an elected position, the 
Selectmen can appoint a candidate until the next Town Election. 

With the upcoming town meeting the Selectmen will receive their agenda. The 
articles voted on during town meeting gives us a list of things to do during the 2021 
year and we have to try to make them all work.

The accomplishments of the town in the year 2020 could not have been done 
without the help of all departments. We would like to thank all of the different 
departments: town office staff, Public Works, Fire Department, Recreation 
Committee, Planning Board, Appeals Board, Health Officer, Code Enforcement 
Officer, Budget Committee, School Board, Food Bank and various committees. All 
these people help the town move forward.
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Treasurer’s Report
Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements

December 31, 2020

Cash Balance, January 1	 	 	  $798,174.04 
	 	 	 	 	
ADD:  CASH RECEIPTS:	 	 	 	 	
Property Tax Collections:	 	 	 	 	
Current Year	  $2,117,855.48 	 	 	 	
Prior Years	  269,966.71 	 	 	 	
Prepayments	  4,503.25

Total Property Tax Collections	 	 $2,392,325.44 	 	
Excise Taxes - Auto	 	 284,188.81 	 	
Excise Taxes - Boat	 	 1,809.70 	 	
Departmental (Schedule A-4)	 	 515,965.74 	 	
State Revenue Sharing	 	 116,871.27 	 	
Homestead Reimbursement	 	 106,541.00 	 	
Accounts Receivable	 	 19,513.50 	 	
Grant	 	 95,000.00 	 	
Line of Credit	 	 250,000.00 	 	
State Fees	 	 6,071.07

Total Cash Receipts	 	 	 3,788,286.53 
Total Cash Available	 	 	 $4,586,460.57 
	
LESS:  CASH DISBURSEMENTS:	 	 	 	 	
Departmental (Schedule A-4)	 	 $3,778,365.89 	 	
Accounts Payable	 	 6,675.10 	 	
Due from Trust Fund	 	 1,000.00 	 	
Due to Trust Funds	 	 1,947.37 	 	
	
Total Cash Disbursements	 	 	  3,787,988.36 
Cash Balance, December 31	 	 	  $798,472.21
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Reconciliation of Treasurer’s Cash Balance – December 31, 2020

Cash on Hand	 	 310.00 
First National Bank:	 	 		
General Fund Checking:
Balance Per Bank Statement	 685,031.75 	
Deduct: Outstanding Checks	 (19,099.94)	 	
Add: Deposits in Transit	 528.80 	 	
Balance Per Books	 	 666,460.61 
First National Bank:	 	 		
Savings - Roads	 	 123,018.31 
Savings - Fire Truck	 	 5,718.53 
Savings - Plow Truck	 	 2,964.76 
Cash Balance, December 31, 2020	 	 798,472.21 
 	 	 	 	

Statement of Taxes Receivable – December 31, 2020 and 2019

	 2020	 2019
2020	  249,076.37 	 -
2019	  293.40	 263,166.74 
2018	 47.10 	 47.10 
2017	 45.60 	 322.78 
2016	 44.70 	 44.70 
2015	 44.70 	 44.70 
2012	 125.50 	 125.50
	 249,677.37 	 263,751.52
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Agency Funds – December 31, 2020

LEVENSALER CEMETERY ASSOCIATION:	 	 	
Fund Balance, January 1	 9,457.77 	
Add:  Interest Earned	 154.99
Fund Balance, December 31	 	 9,612.76

Trust Funds – December 31, 2020
Trust Fund Investments

	 	 Unexpended	
	 Principal	 Income	 Total
Davis Daggett Cemetery	  4,950.00	 1,580.42 	  6,530.42 
Maple Grove Cemetery	  2,500.00 	  1,966.04 	  4,466.04 
Marr Cemetery	  24,300.00 	  7,878.45 	  32,178.45 
McDowell Cemetery	  300.00 	  80.66 	  380.66 
Mountain Cemetery	  300.00 	  294.11 	  594.11 
Overlook Cemetery	  800.00 	  1,646.98 	  2,446.98 
Pierpoint Cemetery	  1,450.00 	  1,150.99 	  2,600.99 
Skidmore Cemetery	  50.00 	  32.19 	  82.19 
Soldiers Monument	  682.98 	  237.96 	  920.94 
West Washington Cemetery	  9,200.00 	  416.01 	  9,616.01 
Community Scholarship	  26,700.37 	  19,729.59 	  46,429.96 
Phillip Scriber Memorial	  660.00 	  1,206.54 	  1,866.54 
Daggett School	  1,477.76 	  2,149.29 	  3,627.05 
Storer Cemetery	  500.00 	  39.07 	  539.07 
Gibbs Library	  4,066.00 	  353.04 	  4,419.04 
	  77,937.11 	  38,761.34 	  116,698.45    
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Town Clerk’s Report
2020 LICENSES SOLD

1/1/20 - 12/31/20

DOG LICENSES SOLD
Kennels	 05
Males/Females	 64
Neutered/Spayed	 190
Total	 259

All dogs 6 months and older must have a license. If you become the 
owner of a dog 6 months or older, the dog must be licensed by January of 
each year. In order to obtain a license for your dog, the owner must present 
a current State of Maine rabies certificate obtained from a veterinarian. All 
dog licenses expire December 31 of each year. Renewal of licenses for the 
following year can be done at the Town Office starting October 15th. You 
also have the option to register online at:

https://www1.maine.gov/cgi-bin/online/dog_license/index.pl
Dog license fees are $6.00 per year for spayed/neutered dogs and 

$11.00 for dogs not spayed/neutered. Per State law, any dog re-licensed after 
January 31 will be subject to a $25.00 late fee plus the regular license fee 
per dog. Post card reminders were mailed again this year and owners were 
also given a courtesy reminder call to help bring the number of unregistered 
dogs down.

FISHING & HUNTING LICENSES SOLD
Junior Hunting	 1	 Resident Crossbow	 3
Combination	 30	 Non-Resident Small Game	 1
Hunting	 12	 Resident Superpack	 1
Fishing	 19	 Coyote Night Hunting	 1
Archery	 5	 Resident Bear Hunting	 1
Spring/Fall Turkey Permits	 4	 Over 70 Lifetime	 1
Resident Muzzleloader	 8
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RV, BOAT & SNOWMOBILE REGISTRATIONS SOLD
Boats up to 10 HP	 30
Boats 11-50 HP	 24
Boats 51-115 HP	 20
Boats over 115 HP	 11
Lake and River Sticker	 1
Snowmobiles	 46 
ATVs	 43

RECORD OF FEES RETURNED TO THE TOWN
Motor Vehicles Fees	 $8,400.00
Recreational Vehicle Fees	 221.00
Fish & Wildlife License Fees	 156.00
Dog License Fees	 344.00
Vital Records Fees	 1,372.00
Return Check Fees	 50.00
Building Permit Fees	 2,654.00
Mining Permit Fees	 5,525.00
Junkyard Permit Fees	 225.00
Notary Fees	 196.00

Respectfully submitted,
Mary  Anderson
Town Clerk
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2020 Vital Statistics Recorded
01/01/2020 – 12/31/2020

17 Births   1   0 Marriages      20 Deaths

Marriages
Date of Marriage	 Names
01/20/2020	 Laura E. Meservey & Benjamin A. Poole
03/02/2020	 Theresa C. Hoffman & Michael A. Prescott
03/14/2020	 Dawn M. Heal & Eric A. Fowler
06/24/2020	 Joyce A. Graham & Daniel J. Langley
08/08/2020	 Cara L. Olsen & Andrew J. Dinsmore
08/08/2020	 Marc A. Frampton & Karriann Harford
09/20/2020	 Cammi R. Colby & Scott A. Cooley
09/26/2020	 Danielle J. Millay & Samuel P. Ingraham
11/14/2020	 Raymond A. Williamson & Emily R. Herman
12/24/2020	 Cynthia S. Millar & Richard W. White

Deaths
Date of Death	 Name	 Place of Death	 Age
01/10/2020	 Miranda S. Cousins-Sternberg	 Washington	 39
01/10/2020	 Toni K. Hinds	 Washington	 71
01/12/2020	 Gracie I. Kirkland	 Rockport	 83
03/20/2020	 Gerald B. Bartlett	 Washington	 83
03/29/2020	 Joseph R. Cianchette Jr. 	 Washington	 93
04/09/2020	 Katherine L. Libbey	 Washington	 71
04/15/2020	 Constance M. Breton	 Washington	 78
04/26/2020	 Shirley P. Loubier	 Washington	 85
05/14/2020	 Jane B. Robinson	 Washington	 76
06/23/2020	 Bruce E. Fowles	 Washington	 80
09/02/2020	 Carrington Rhodes	 Rockport	 60
09/02/2020	 Christopher S. Anderson	 Friendship	 58
09/22/2020	 Charles M. Vanner	 Rockport	 68
10/23/2020	 Susanne E. Taylor	 Portland	 61
11/02/2020	 David N. Farrington	 Washington	 77
11/07/2020	 Daniel P. Moscato	 Augusta	 78
12/14/2020	 Carlos Lascoutx	 Belfast	 78
12/22/2020	 Carol M. Rhodes	 Washington	 56
12/27/2020	 Constance R. Johnston	 Rockland	 97
12/28/2020	 Alice L. Porter	 Washington	 90
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Assessors’ Report 
 
HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION:  There were 4 89 homeowners granted 
homestead exemptions in 2020; an increase of 1 0 from 2019. This 
exemption was $20,000 in 2019 and increased to $25,000 effective 2020. 
To qualify for this exemption, you must be a legal resident of Maine, 
must have owned homestead property in Maine for at least 12 months and 
declare your homestead as your permanent residence. There is no penalty 
involved if your exemption status changes. If you have not taken advantage 
of this program and think you qualify, please contact the town office for an 
application before April 1st. 

HIGHLIGHTS:  School spending accounted for 59 cents of each tax dollar. 
7 cents went to county tax and the remaining 34 cents went to manage the 
rest of the Town’s affairs for the year.

The Town is adjusting assessed values to comply with State of Maine laws. 
Sales information has been used to develop and revise schedules. The new 
values are effective 2021. Building tables have been adjusted to more 
closely reflect current construction costs. Shorefront land values on both 
Washington Pond and Crystal Pond will be see an increase in value.
As a result of these changes, many property values will change. Property 
owners with a significant increase will be notified prior to tax billing in 
order to allow time for review and correction where necessary.

TAXMAPS: Are available on the Town’s website; you may view them if 
you have Google Earth installed.

WEBSITE:  Tree growth, farmland and open space exemptions for land 
may be of interest as well as exemptions for veterans. Information and 
applications for these programs and more can be found from links on the 
Town’s website: http://washington.maine.gov/ 
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Board of Assessors:
Wesley  Daniel
Berkley  Linscott
Thomas  Johnston
Stanley  Millay
Assessors’ Agent

The chart above shows appropriation trends for the period 2012 to 2020
The	chart	above	shows	appropriation	trends	for	the	period	20�2 to	2020

.

Board	of	Assessors:

Wesley	Daniel
Berkley	Linscott
Thomas	Johnston
Stanley Millay, Assessors’ Agent

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Municipal $623,482 $681,783 $716,877 $821,867 $800,496 $863,258 $874,347 $961,931 $1,009,782
Schools $1,252,537 $1,294,319 $1,302,872 $1,350,163 $1,438,994 $1,509,724 $1,628,330 $1,743,763 $1,777,067
County $168,102 $171,011 $168,360 $173,991 $181,728 $190,472 $205,278 $208,669 $224,831
Revenue Sharing $65,000 $48,266 $40,000 $40,000 $66,000 $64,000 $64,361 $63,224 $90,000
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Tax Collector’s Report
Valuation, Assessment, and Collections – December 31, 2020

VALUATION:	 	
Real Estate	  $144,424,132.00 	 	
Personal Property	  952,772.00 	 	
	  $145,376,904.00 	 	

ASSESSMENT:	 	 	 	
Valuation x Rate ($145,376,904.00 x .016300)	  $2,369,643.53 	 	
Supplemental	  451.59 	 	
	 	 $2,370,095.12 

COLLECTIONS AND CREDITS:	 	 	 	
Cash Collections	  $2,117,855.48
Prepayments 	  3,058.87
Abatements	  104.40 	 	

Total Collections and Credits	 	  2,121,018.75 
2020 Taxes Receivable - December 31, 2020	 	  $249,076.37 

COMPUTATION OF ASSESSMENT

Tax Commitment	  $2,369,643.53 	 	
Surplus	  75,000.00 	 	
Excise Taxes - Auto and Boat	  265,000.00 	 	
State Revenue Sharing	  111,800.00 	 	
Homestead Reimbursement	  141,069.59 	 	
Tree Growth Reimbursement	  2,800.00 	 	
Mining Permits and Inspections	  4,000.00 	 	
Building Permits - Town	  1,500.00 	 	
Interest	  8,000.00 	 	
Veterans Reimbursement	  1,600.00 	 	
BETE	  43,223.85 	 	
Interest on Overdue Taxes	  12,000.00 	 	
Miscellaneous	  9,275.00
	 	 $3,044,911.97 
REQUIREMENTS:
Municipal	  $1,060,232.00 	 	
MSAD #40	  1,777,067.00 	 	
County Tax	  174,381.00
	 	 3,011,680.00 
Overlay	 	  $33,231.97
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2019	 	
Bickford, Michael	  1,248.42 	
Bradstreet, David	  2,559.10 	
Bremilst, Robert L., Sr., Heirs	  370.01 	
Bridges, Linda	  1,466.87 	
Cooley, Ramona	  1,863.92 	
Cooley, Scott	  1,390.00 	
Crane, Tami L.	  51.01 	
Davis, George & Marilyn	  384.09 	
Dawson, Gordon, Heirs	  639.76 	
Dawson, Gordon, Heirs	  975.59 	
Esancy, Nancy L.	  552.57 	
Ewan, Excle R. & Angela M.	  908.58 	
Foster, Scott	  1,123.72 	
Foster, Scott I. & Kimberly	  1,298.49 	
Foster, Scott I. & Kimberly	  795.85 	
Hall, George C. & Sons, Inc.	  2,681.76 	
Hall, George C. & Sons, Inc.	  2,723.32 	
Hall, George C. & Sons, Inc.	  156.48 	
Hall, George C. & Sons, Inc.	  665.04 	
Hall, George C. & Sons, Inc.	  188.27 	
Hall, George C. & Sons, Inc.	  239.61 	
Hall, George C. & Sons, Inc.	  114.10 	
Hall, George C. & Sons, Inc.	  6,492.21 	
Hall, George C. & Sons, Inc.	  102.69 	
Hall, George C. & Sons, Inc.	  1,874.89 	
Jackson, William M. & 
  Valerie M.	  264.23 	
Jones, Joyce, Heirs	  1,326.58 	
Jones, Steven W.	  249.39 	

Tax Liens – December 31, 2020

Jones, Steven W.	  276.29 	
Kennedy, Nanne	  432.77 	
Kirkland, Heather A.	  134.74 	
Lermond, Robert F., Trustee	  5,430.25 	
Lewis, Leonard C. & Cara L.	  525.42 	
Linscott, Lloyd	  66.18 	
Linscott, Lloyd	  45.64 	
Mank, Timothy A.	  755.77 	
Mank, Timothy A.	  1,544.70 	
Mank, Timothy A.	  2,105.78 	
Mattingly, Elizabeth F., Heirs	  1,095.72 	
Merrill, Jaynee	  2,152.94 	
Miller, Jared L.	  1,829.17 	
Milliken, Robin & Robert	  1,143.02 	
Pedrone, Matthew T.	  51.07 	
Pierpont, Willard	  639.86 	
Rhinehart, Elizabeth	  929.08 	
Rideout, John & Tammy	  2,204.14 	
Rideout, John & Tammy	  443.03
Sanborn, Philip	  1,021.22 	
Sanborn, Philip	  11.41 	
Shenett, Daniel	  749.80 	
Shenett, Theresa & David	  555.02 	
SRB Homes LLC	  179.30 	
Thompson, Andrew L.	  632.47 	
Turffs, L. Kim	  1,413.50 	
Turffs, L. Kim	  404.24
Wellman, Henry, Heirs	  1,200.46
	 $60,679.54
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Taxes Receivable – December 31, 2020
*Paid in full after 12/31/2020  **Partial Payment  ***Tax Club member

Real Estate
Adams, Curtis	  1,646.20 	 **	
Antonino, Sandra A.	  773.50 	 	
Antonino, Stephen F.	  370.01 	 	
Baker, Jason	  1,088.15 	***	
Belanger, Mark	  672.24 	***	
Belcher, Corey A.	  967.90 	 	
Belcher, James	  746.18 	***	
Belcher, Norman C.	  887.57 	 *	
Berry, Brigitte A.	  2,300.44 	 	
Berry, Brigitte A.	  359.74 	 	
Berry, Gregory	  1,209.56 	***	
Bickford, Michael	  1,346.22 	 	
Birk, Robert	  1,570.62 	***	
Blake, David, Jr.	  316.39 	***	
Blood, Lynn	  765.60 	***	
Bocko, Deborah A., 
  Living Trust	  2,996.77 	***	
Bo'Lait Farm, LLC	  672.42 	***	
Bourgault, Adam	  2,689.42 	 *	
Bourgeois, Cynthia L.	  211.12 	***	
Bourrie, Guy	  1,305.04 	***	
Bowley, W.A., Heirs	  228.92 	 *	
Bowman, Alice	  1,000.20 	 **	
Bowman, Joseph P.	  375.72 	 	
Bowman, Joseph P.	  298.29 	 	
Bowman, Joseph P.	  172.37 	 	
Bradstreet, David	  2,559.10 	 	
Bremilst, Robert L., Sr., 
  Heirs	  370.01 	 	
Bridtges, Linda	  1,059.37 	 	
Bromfield, Terry 
  2006 Revocable Trust	 1,388.55 	***	
Brown, Albert R.	  869.44 	 	
Buchanan, Michael, Heirs	  259.00 	 	
Caddie-Larcenia, Helen G.	  964.74 	***	
Calderwood, Clinton J.	  57.05 	 	
Calderwood, Clinton J.	  114.10 	 	
Calderwood, Clinton J.	  114.10 	 	
Carco, Cynthia Y.	  958.03 	***	
Carter, David A.	  1,654.75 	***	
Casas, Jesse D.	  1,900.00 	 **	
Chavanne, Daniel P. & 
  Carrie A.	  506.52 	 	
Chitro, Michael A. & 
  Lori J., Trustees	  37.00 	 	

Condon, Arlene	  48.90 	 	
Connors, Ernest W.	  1,563.97 	***	
Cooley, Ramona	  1,782.42 	 	
Cooley, Scott	  1,379.27 	 	
Cramer, Edward H. & 
  Beverly A. LLC	  521.59 	***	
Crane, Tami L.	  134.74 	 	
Curtis, James, III	  1,305.76 	***	
Curtis, Rosemary N.	  2,194.27 	 	
Daggett, Brian D.	  446.62 	 	
Daggett, Brian D.	  3,127.14
Daggett, Brian D.	  251.35 	 	
Daggett, Brian D.	  2,388.24 	 	
Daggett, Brian D.	  5.09 	 	
Daggett, Brian D.	  2,265.03 	 	
Daggett, Brian D.	  17.34 	 	
Davis, George	  1,005.71 	 **	
Davis, Jessica D.	  966.85 	 	
Dawson, Gordon, Heirs	  639.76 	 *	
Dawson, Gordon, Heirs	  894.09 	 *	
Dawson, Gordon, Heirs	  546.05 	 *	
Driscoll, Shawn A.	  1,417.70 	***	
Dube, Timothy A.	  2,057.70 	 **	
Dufresne, Kevin	  1,217.25 	 *	
Eaton, Jeffrey S.	  2,494.54 	***	
Esancy, Nancy L.	  552.57 	 	
Etchells, David	  505.28 	***	
Ewan, Excle R.	  908.58 	 	
Farrell, Susan	  1,016.27 	***	
Fillebrown, Heather	  30.56 	 **	
Fitzgerald, Louise H.	  1,416.47 	 *	
Flynn, Corwin	  602.83 	***	
Foster, Scott	  1,123.72 	 	
Foster, Scott I.	  1,216.99 	 	
Foster, Scott I.	  795.85 	 	
Fowles, Bruce E.	  2,474.45 	 *	
Frank, James H.	  209.46 	 	
Frank, James H.	  3,303.29 	 	
French, Richard E.	  558.27 	 	
Fry, Janis L.	  3.42 	 	
Frye, James P.	  1,091.20 	***	
Garnett, Roy	  513.45 	 	
Garnett, Roy	  415.65 	 	
Garnett, Roy	  167.08 	 *	
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Garnett, Roy D.	  438.47 	 *	
Goseki, Yuki	  14.83 	 	
Goseki, Yuki	  22.82 	 	
Graham, Joyce	 2,192.02 	***	
Grinnell, Donald L., 
  Elizabeth A. & 
    Katherine A.	  1,606.40 	***	
Grinnell, Jeffrey E.	  1,797.28 	***	
Hall, George C. & 
  Sons, Inc.	 2,681.76 	 	
Hall, George C. & 
  Sons, Inc.	 2,723.32 	 	
Hall, George C. & 
  Sons, Inc.	  156.48 	 	
Hall, George C. & 
  Sons, Inc.	  665.04 	 *	
Hall, George C. & 
  Sons, Inc.	  188.27 	 	
Hall, George C. & 
  Sons, Inc.	  239.61 	 	
Hall, George C. & 
  Sons, Inc.	  114.10 	 	
Hall, George C. & 
  Sons, Inc.	  6,492.21 	 	
Hall, George C. & 
  Sons, Inc.	  102.69 	 	
Hall, George C. & 
  Sons, Inc.	  1,874.89 	 	
Hanson, Robert A.	  614.70 
Hanson, Robert A.	  1,012.43 	***	
Harring, Peter R.	  842.94 	***	
Harrington, Daniel R.	  2,593.31 	 	
Holz, Alfred	  1,433.49 	 	
Holzman, James E.	  1,033.22 	***	
Horovitz, Daniel A.	  1,348.61 	***	
Hutchins, Katherine A.	  1,232.72 	***	
Jackson, William M.	  1,592.51 	 **	
Jackson, William M.	 57.05	 *	
Jelenfy, Jeffrey C. & 
  Karen	  542.20 	 *	
Jermyn, Nicolas A.	  875.97 	***	
Johnston, Constance R.	  1,194.05 	***	
Jones, Casie R.	  973.70 	 	
Jones, Frank E., Jr.	  408.32 	 	
Jones, Frank E., Jr.	  360.84 	***	
Jones, George, Jr.	  647.11 	 	

Jones, James C.	  1,326.58 	 	
Jones, Steven W.	  249.39 	 	
Jones, Steven W.	  276.29 	 	
Kaler, Carla-Jo	  2,424.60 	***	
Kearney, James W.	  909.22 	 **	
Keefe, Timothy J.	  150.12 	 	
Keefe, Timothy J.	  699.92 	 	
Keefe, Timothy J.	  99.27 	 	
Kelly, Sandra M. & 
  Sharon M.	  844.08 	***	
Kennedy, Nanne	  432.77 	 *	
Kerr-Lewis, Jean A.	  555.67 	***	
Kilbreth, Carol A.	  2,141.36 	 	
Kirkland, Heather A.	  134.74 	 	
Knight, Frances, et al	  935.09 	***	
Knowlton, William, II	  897.89 	 	
Koches, Ellen	  1,943.36 	***	
Lee, Jessica G.	  338.67 	 	
Lee, Sarah	  1,641.62 	 	
Leigh, Angel	  391.20 	 *	
Leigh, Earl E., Sr.	  51.06 	 *	
Leigh, Elmer E., Jr.	 430.68
Lermond, Robert F., 
  Trustee	  5,430.25 	 	
Lewis, Leonard C.	  2,336.36 	 	
Lewis, Leonard C.	  1,666.92 	***	
Linscott, Darci A.	  1,529.23 	 **	
Linscott, Darci A.	  406.52 	 	
Linscott, Harrison L.	  980.36 	 	
Linscott, Lloyd	  66.18 	 *	
Linscott, Lloyd	  45.64 	 *	
Little, Jeffrey G.	  527.17 	 **	
Lloy, Dedre E.	  927.04 	***	
Lohnes, Timothy J.	  570.90 	 	
Lopez, Paula A.	  549.39 	 	
Ludwig, Barbara A.	  1,761.87
Mank, Timothy A.	  688.68 	 	
Mank, Timothy A.	  1,544.70 	 	
Mank, Timothy A.	  2,105.78 	 	
Manley, J. Patrick	  856.42 	***	
Marks, Robert	  1,435.60 	***	
Massey, F. Lane	  300.84 	***	
Massey, Franklin L.	  1,267.32 	***	
Masters, Andrew B.	  1,793.64 	***	
Mattingly, Elizabeth F., 
  Heirs	 1,095.72 	 	
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Mazzeo, Emilio D., Jr.	  384.34 	 	
McClure, Jacob	  1,878.10 	 	
McFarland, Matthew G.	  743.73 	 **	
Medeika, Patricia E.	  3,083.26 	***	
Medeika, Patricia E.	  2,362.99 	***	
Merrill, Jaynee	  2,152.94 	 	
Michelson, Anita	  1,173.78 	 	
Millar, Cynthia	  1,033.86 	***	
Miller, Jared L.	  1,747.67 	 	
Miller, Wayne A.	  2,283.83 	 	
Milliken, Robin	  1,143.02 	 	
Mole, Ronald	  2,238.84 	 **	
Moon, Jayne Barrett	  834.64 	***	
Morris, Brian A.	  2,788.07 	***	
Moscato, Daniel P.	  5.71 	 	
Nobska Real Estate 
  Holdings LLC	  891.50 	 *	
Ocean, Steven H.	  1,438.12 	***	
Pedrone, Matthew T.	  712.96 	 	
Pierpont, Clinton E.	  452.93 	***	
Pierpont, Willard	  1,212.64 	 	
Pierpont, Willard	  45.64 	 	
Pierpont, Willard	  405.87 	 	
Pierpont, Willard	  73.35 	 	
Potter, Brian E.	  2,187.03 	***	
Reddish, Robert T.	  844.57 	***	
Reilly, Keith	  454.43 	***	
Rhinehart, Elizabeth	  964.08 	 	
Rhodes, Elizabeth	  1,770.50 	***	
Rhodes, William A.	  560.10 	***	
Rideout, John	  2,207.93 	 	
Rideout, John	 443.03
Riley, Leanne Dibenedetti	  1,807.62 	 	
Ripley, Jessica	  1,817.44 	***	
Roberts, Deborah R.	  1,778.24 	***	
Robinson, Jane	  429.08 	 **	
Robinson, Thomas L.	  204.27 	 **	
Rubenstein, Russell	  397.44 	***	
Sanborn, Philip	  1,461.93 	 	
Sanborn, Philip	  11.41 	 	
Sanchez, Sarah M.	  311.82 	 	
Schnur, Rebecca	  1,964.92 	 	
Shaggy, Michael	  824.32 	***	
Shaggy, Thomas W.	  385.46	 ***	
Shantz, Rhonda Wellman	 1,902.91 	 	
Shenett, Daniel	  749.80 	 	

Shenett, Theresa	  555.02 	 	
Simonton, Richard S.	  599.84 	 *	
Sorrentino, Michael	  2,429.34 	 	
Spahr, David L.	  1,540.15 	 	
Spahr, David L.	  478.00 	 	
Spahr, Kenneth L., Heirs	  119.40 	 	
Spahr, Kenneth L., Heirs	  923.15 	 	
Spahr, Kenneth L., Heirs	  17.12 	 	
SRB Homes LLC	  179.30 	 	
Taylor, Peter W.	  2,056.76 	 *	
Thompson, Andrew L.	  550.97 	 	
Till, James C., et al	  995.05 	***	
Turffs, L. Kim	  1,332.00 	 	
Turffs, L. Kim	  404.24 	 	
Valle, Forrester B.	  1,067.18 	 	
Vigue, Anthony	  2,081.51 	 	
Vigue, Christopher	  1,196.38 	***	
Vigue, Timothy L.	  432.82 	***	
Vogel, Donald E.	  1,524.34 	***	
Wadsworth, Laurie L.	  595.37 	 	
Wellman, Henry, Heirs	  1,200.46 	 	
Williams, James M.	  1,199.65 	 *	
Wilson, William D.	  500.00 	***	
Withee, Gloria J.	  81.71 	 **	
Woody Creek Hills LLC	  2,941.58 	***	
Zeigler, Cyd	  4,990.32	 ***
	 248,750.37 

Personal Property
Boynton,Gregory	 244.50 	
Jackson's Corner Store	 48.90  
Frank E., Jr.	 16.30 
Jura, Mark A. & 
  Deborah L.	 16.30
	 326.00
	 249,076.37
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Prior Years Taxes Receivable December 31, 2020
Personal Property
2019	 	 	 	
Boynton, Gregory R.	  244.50 	 	
Jackson's Corner Store	  48.90
	 293.40 
2018	 		
Jackson's Corner Store	  47.10 
2017	 		
Jackson's Corner Store	  45.60 

Abatements and Supplementals  December 31, 2020

2016	 		
Jackson's Corner Store	  44.70 
2015	 		
Jackson's Corner Store	  44.70 
2012	 		
Pierpont, Willard	 601.00 

ABATEMENTS
2020	 		
Timothy Mank	  67.09 		
Donald, Lisa & 
  Lucy Philbrook	  37.31
	 104.40 

SUPPLEMENTALS
Donald & Elizabeth Grinnell	  67.09 		
Wik Rhea Associates, Inc.	  384.50
	 451.59 
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Owner	 Map Lot	 Land 	 Building	 2020 Tax

Real Estate Taxpayer List
Owner	 Map Lot	 Land 	 Building	 2020 Tax
ABERNETHY, JULIA E	 14-17	 34,820	 110,901	 1,967.75
ACHORN, RONALD R JR	 19-50-A	 16,940	 16,272	 541.36
ACHORN, RONALD R JR	 19-51	 99,480	 72,498	 2,803.24
ACKER, CHARLES W	 13-19	 8,337	 0	 135.89
ADAMS, CURTIS	 06-07	 51,300	 60,833	 1,827.77
ADAMS, JORDAN T	 13-22	 26,000	 83,236	 1,780.55
ADOLPHSEN, CURTIS D OLYVIA	 05-11-A	 33,700	 136,785	 2,371.41
ADOLPHSEN, NICHOLAS A	 12-08-A	 45,450	 220,051	 3,920.17
AHO, HENRY D	 02-22	 33,140	 99,604	 1,756.23
AHO, HENRY D	 09-56	 31,810	 0	 518.50
AHO, HENRY D	 09-58-A	 2,570	 0	 41.89
ALLAIRE, TODD	 15-21-B	 24,324	 0	 396.48
ALLAIRE, TODD B	 12-08-C	 44,120	 132,879	 2,477.58
ALLEN BLUEBERRY FREEZER, INC.	 11-15	 47,500	 0	 774.25
ALLEN BLUEBERRY FREEZER, INC.	 12-24	 22,500	 0	 366.75
ALLEN, CLYDE	 03-18	 33,000	 65,392	 1,196.29
ALLEN, DAVID	 13-50	 101,000	 89,000	 2,689.50
ALLEN, DAVID	 13-51	 35,000	 0	 570.50
ALLEN, DAVID	 13-52-A	 700	 0	 11.41
ALLEN, DAVID	 17-23	 25,185	 9,000	 557.22
ALLEN, JAMIE S	 07-47	 33,700	 20,130	 877.43
ALVES, BRIAN	 06-69-A	 39,790	 85,350	 1,632.28
AMBRIDGE, MARC	 04-13-G	 56,892	 136,623	 2,746.79
AMERICAN TOWER CORPORATION	 14-14L	 33,000	 90,000	 2,004.90
AMES, GRANVILLE W	 10-31-C	 36,080	 80,779	 1,497.30
ANDERSON, ERICK A	 04-18-1	 24,968	 0	 406.98
ANDERSON, ERICK A	 04-18-B	 36,150	 295,569	 4,999.52
ANDERSON, JOHN M	 04-03-A	 38,600	 140,454	 2,918.58
ANDERSON, MARY	 12-15	 39,700	 0	 647.11
ANDERSON, SETH C	 12-08	 47,100	 109,963	 2,152.63
ANDERSON, TODD	 15-21-C	 16,729	 0	 272.68
ANDERSON, TODD	 13-05-B	 343	 0	 5.59
ANDERSON, WILLIAM D JR	 09-43	 35,800	 126,373	 2,235.92
ANDRADE, ALISON R	 09-12	 34,526	 124,213	 2,179.95
ANDREI, THEADORE M	 10-43-A	 25,520	 1,000	 432.28
ANDREI, THEADORE M	 10-45	 56,100	 132,171	 2,563.52
ANDREI, THEADORE M	 09-04	 11,000	 10,000	 342.30
ANDREWS, JASON	 05-69-D	 35,940	 155,066	 2,705.90
ANDREWS, JASON D	 05-71	 12,400	 0	 202.12
ANKERS, TERESA M CHANDLER	 10-42	 35,800	 89,326	 1,632.05
ANKERS, WANDA	 10-38-A	 7,000	 0	 114.10
ANTONINO, SANDRA A	 08-10	 34,050	 13,404	 773.50
ANTONINO, STEPHEN F	 08-11	 22,700	 0	 370.01
ARMSTRONG, TAMMY E	 02-12-A	 29,178	 99,087	 1,585.42
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BAKER, JASON	 04-02	 36,500	 99,763	 1,813.59
BALL, KARIE J	 06-35	 37,900	 64,304	 1,258.43
BARBOUR, JOHN E	 08-37	 148,050	 0	 2,413.22
BARKER, NANCY	 04-47	 41,300	 154,543	 2,686.94
BARKER, NANCY	 04-48	 12,200	 0	 198.86
BARNES, PAUL C	 04-13-B	 42,275	 96,938	 1,763.87
BARNES, PAUL C	 04-13-J	 7,000	 0	 114.10
BARNES, PHILIP C II	 05-10-B	 33,000	 133,510	 2,306.61
BARRON, MARTHA, ET. ALS.	 19-47	 13,200	 0	 215.16
BARRON, MARTHA, ET. ALS.	 19-48	 106,500	 73,911	 2,940.70
BARTLETT, E DEAN	 11-07	 49,500	 128,403	 2,492.32
BARTLETT, ELDEN D. ET. ALS.	 07-40-A	 28,133	 0	 458.57
BARTLETT, LARRY D	 10-01	 39,720	 102,991	 1,918.69
BARTLETT, LARRY D. & GLENNA L.	 	 0	 0	 0.00
BARTLETT, MARLENE M.	 	 0	 0	 0.00
BARTLETT, MARLENE M.	 19-24	 88,100	 85,964	 2,837.24
BARTLETT, MARLENE M.	 19-30	 13,200	 0	 215.16
BARTLETT, MARLENE M.	 06-88	 33,700	 184,229	 3,144.74
BARTLETT, MARLENE M.	 09-33-A	 53,350	 79,334	 2,162.75
BARTLETT, SHERYL R	 19-52	 93,000	 75,520	 2,746.88
BARTLETT, WADE	 05-68	 59,100	 58,485	 1,916.64
BARTLETT, WADE	 12-21	 26,620	 0	 433.91
BARTLETT, WADE	 12-22	 8,350	 0	 136.11
BARTLETT, WADE	 12-26	 17,545	 0	 285.98
BARTLETT, WADE	 12-27	 41,375	 0	 674.41
BARTLETT, WADE	 02-67	 15,015	 0	 244.74
BARTLETT, WADE	 02-67-A	 39,225	 4,320	 709.78
BARTLETT, WADE	 02-69	 17,025	 0	 277.51
BARTLETT, WADE	 02-70	 44,550	 199,404	 3,568.95
BARTLETT, WADE	 04-01	 20,690	 0	 337.25
BARTLETT, WADE	 05-81	 10,450	 0	 170.34
BARTLETT, WADE	 06-14-A	 15,600	 0	 254.28
BARTLETT, WADE	 06-14-D	 45,825	 0	 746.95
BARTLETT, WADE	 07-02	 23,400	 0	 381.42
BARTLETT, WADE	 07-03	 15,300	 0	 249.39
BARTLETT, WADE	 05-78	 33,900	 11,968	 747.65
BARTLETT, WADE	 12-08-J	 39,950	 0	 651.19
BARTLETT, WADE	 05-60	 23,800	 0	 387.94
BARTLETT, WADE	 05-62	 8,000	 0	 130.40
BARTLETT, WADE	 05-64	 14,100	 0	 229.83
BARTLETT, WADE	 	 0	 0	 244.50
BARTLETT, WADE	 06-18-A	 26,100	 0	 425.43
BEANE, JOHN	 13-05-F	 27,750	 59,626	 1,016.73
BEANE, JOHN M SR	 13-05-C	 28,191	 10,660	 633.27
BECKWITH, MICHAEL WT	 10-48	 24,800	 0	 404.24
BEDARD, DARIUS	 10-14	 54,900	 48,711	 1,281.36
BEDFORD FALLS, LLC	 18-17	 66,000	 262,616	 5,356.44
BEDFORD FALLS, LLC	 	 0	 0	 48.90
BELANGER, GLEN S	 13-01	 21,300	 0	 347.19
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BELANGER, JOHNNIE N	 12-06-A	 33,000	 88,517	 1,573.23
BELANGER, JOHNNIE N	 12-01	 33,700	 46,849	 1,312.95
BELANGER, LINDA	 12-04	 32,690	 104,206	 1,823.90
BELANGER, MARK	 12-06-C	 33,350	 74,134	 1,344.49
BELANGER, MARK A	 12-01-A	 22,700	 0	 370.01
BELANGER, PAUL	 12-06-B	 33,000	 93,441	 1,653.49
BELCHER, ANDREW	 05-51-C	 0	 0	 0.00
BELCHER, BRENDA	 05-51-B	 34,050	 108,134	 2,317.60
BELCHER, BRENDA	 05-49-B	 840	 0	 13.69
BELCHER, COREY A	 07-73-A	 33,700	 50,681	 967.91
BELCHER, JAMES	 02-35	 33,000	 83,554	 1,492.33
BELCHER, NORMAN C	 05-49-A	 34,400	 45,052	 887.57
BELCHER, RONALD A	 02-13-C	 17,800	 12,000	 485.74
BENCH DOGS, INC.	 	 0	 0	 326.00
BENNETT, TODD M	 13-07	 37,655	 0	 613.78
BENNETT, TODD M	 15-42	 5,558	 0	 90.60
BENNETT, TODD M	 19-44	 92,195	 97,884	 3,098.29
BENNETT, TODD M	 19-45	 22,000	 0	 358.60
BERGEY, WILLIAM T	 08-12-1	 35,800	 55,973	 1,088.40
BERRY, BRIGITTE A	 02-57-A	 34,050	 132,081	 2,300.44
BERRY, BRIGITTE A	 02-57-B	 22,070	 0	 359.74
BERRY, GREGORY	 03-20	 51,300	 97,376	 2,015.92
BETTCHER, ELIZABETH H	 12-11	 31,600	 0	 515.08
BETTCHER, ELIZABETH H	 12-09	 90,955	 0	 1,482.57
BEVERLY, PHILLIP C	 02-17-A	 33,280	 6,580	 649.72
BICKFORD, MICHAEL	 01-09	 59,100	 48,490	 1,346.22
BICKMORE, KAREN L	 02-26-B	 43,250	 157,217	 2,860.11
BILLING, MARY T	 19-30-A	 33,000	 76,876	 1,383.48
BILLING, MARY T	 19-33	 93,000	 73,996	 2,722.03
BILLING, ROBERT	 06-59	 38,600	 129,576	 2,333.77
BILLINGS, EDWARD R	 18-30	 34,400	 107,717	 1,909.01
BIRK, ROBERT	 04-12	 35,800	 149,795	 2,617.70
BISSETT, RICHARD	 08-18-A	 35,310	 137,871	 2,822.85
BIXBY, DAVID B	 15-10-A	 28,447	 8,000	 186.59
BIXBY, ROBERT & BIZIER, BETH	 13-03-A	 19,500	 33,498	 456.37
BLACKBURN, SCOTT T	 08-37-A	 38,500	 0	 627.55
BLACKBURN, SCOTT T	 08-37-B	 3,500	 0	 57.05
BLACKBURN, SCOTT T	 08-36	 76,050	 0	 1,239.62
BLACKFORD, DEBORAH	 04-50	 62,700	 49,626	 1,830.91
BLAKE, CATHY A	 02-56-B	 33,420	 42,367	 827.83
BLAKE, DAVID, JR.	 02-54-A	 33,700	 23,650	 527.31
BLAKE, SHARON R	 19-11	 89,700	 65,253	 2,525.73
BLAKE, SHARON R	 05-15-E	 11,550	 0	 188.27
BLAKE, SHARON R	 05-41	 33,700	 124,553	 2,172.02
BLAKE, SHARON R	 05-43	 10,900	 2,500	 218.42
BLAKE, SHARON R	 05-43-A	 17,100	 2,563	 320.51
BLAKE, SHARON R	 05-18	 1,750	 0	 28.53
BLAKE, SHARON R	 05-42	 2,100	 0	 34.23
BLAUVELT, MARK	 13-16-A	 27,060	 11,825	 633.83
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BLOOD, LYNN	 07-67-A	 35,520	 47,343	 1,350.67
BLUEBERRY HILL STONE, LLC	 16-09	 88,795	 0	 1,447.36
BOCKO, DEBORAH A. LIVING TRUST	 05-14	 55,200	 232,444	 4,281.10
BOCKO, DEBORAH A. LIVING TRUST	 05-39-A	 9,925	 0	 161.78
BOCKO, DEBORAH A. LIVING TRUST	 05-11	 9,275	 0	 151.18
BOCKO, DEBORAH A. LIVING TRUST	 05-39	 7,975	 0	 129.99
BODREAU, CECIL F. & ANNA	 19-41	 73,000	 50,851	 2,018.77
BOISSE FERNANDES LIVING TRUST	 10-23	 67,250	 109,278	 2,469.91
BOISSE FERNANDES LIVING TRUST	 11-14-A	 42,210	 73,708	 1,889.46
BOISSE FERNANDES LIVING TRUST	 09-03	 37,950	 98,964	 2,231.70
BO'LAIT FARM, LLC	 12-37	 60,100	 0	 979.63
BO'LAIT FARM, LLC	 12-35	 48,298	 218,579	 4,350.10
BO'LAIT FARM, LLC	 12-24-B	 2,100	 0	 34.23
BO'LAIT FARM, LLC	 12-30	 3,500	 0	 57.05
BO'LAIT FARM, LLC	 12-32	 1,610	 0	 26.24
BOND, RALPH R. & PRISCILLA E. TRUST	 09-49-C	 13,500	 0	 220.05
BOUCHARD, RICHARD M	 06-09	 37,200	 103,016	 1,878.02
BOUCHER, RONALD	 17-01	 55,700	 0	 907.91
BOURGAULT, ADAM	 02-03	 39,300	 125,695	 2,689.42
BOURGEOIS, CYNTHIA L	 13-16-C	 26,700	 60,445	 1,012.96
BOURQUE, CRYSTAL M	 09-40	 30,300	 0	 493.89
BOURRIE, GUY	 10-25	 40,650	 129,403	 2,364.36
BOURRIE, GUY	 10-25-B	 6,468	 0	 105.43
BOWERS, JAMES S	 04-42	 51,100	 0	 832.93
BOWLEY, W. A. HEIRS	 05-63	 15,300	 0	 249.39
BOWMAN, ALICE	 10-40	 38,600	 88,888	 1,670.55
BOWMAN, DONALD C	 10-41-A	 35,450	 164,776	 2,856.18
BOWMAN, GREGORY A	 10-41	 35,100	 131,631	 2,310.22
BOWMAN, JOHN MARSHAL	 17-28-A	 56,490	 184,672	 3,425.64
BOWMAN, JOSEPH P	 10-40-A	 23,050	 0	 375.72
BOWMAN, JOSEPH P	 10-40-L	 0	 20,000	 0.00
BOWMAN, JOSEPH P	 10-43	 18,300	 0	 298.29
BOWMAN, JOSEPH P	 10-40-B	 10,575	 0	 172.37
BOWMAN, JUSTIN T	 10-43-D	 23,400	 0	 381.42
BOWMAN, JUSTIN T	 10-43-E	 2,100	 0	 34.23
BOYNTON, BRENT A	 19-25	 89,200	 8,026	 1,584.78
BOYNTON, BRENT A	 11-24	 27,000	 0	 440.10
BOYNTON, BRENT A	 12-23	 69,850	 0	 1,138.56
BOYNTON, GREGORY R	 07-57	 60,200	 164,686	 3,258.14
BOYNTON, GREGORY R	 	 0	 0	 244.50
BOYNTON, GREGORY R	 07-35-A	 26,900	 0	 438.47
BOYNTON, KAREN A	 02-40	 33,840	 82,424	 1,895.10
BOYNTON, KAREN A	 02-40-B	 1,610	 0	 26.24
BRADSTREET, DAVID	 13-29-A	 157,000	 0	 2,559.10
BRANN, BONNIE C	 09-33	 39,650	 19,500	 458.85
BRANN, CLIFTON J	 07-58	 10,250	 0	 167.08
BRANN, CLIFTON J	 07-60	 38,100	 500	 629.18
BRANN, DALE	 06-91	 40,845	 174,500	 3,004.82
BRANN, JESSE	 01-26	 5,330	 0	 86.88
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BRANN, JESSE	 03-22	 3,700	 0	 60.31
BRANN, JUDITH A	 19-17	 79,750	 68,861	 2,422.36
BRANN, JUDITH A	 19-26	 24,200	 15,367	 644.94
BRANN, JUDITH A	 06-54-A	 24,250	 0	 395.28
BRANN, JUDITH A	 06-57-A	 3,220	 0	 52.49
BRANN, JUDITH A	 06-58	 33,000	 88,487	 1,572.74
BRAUN, NANCY	 20-05	 121,400	 89,840	 3,443.21
BREEN, CAROLYN	 11-10-A	 33,560	 198,055	 3,367.82
BREMILST, ROBERT L. SR. HEIRS	 04-06-A	 22,700	 0	 370.01
BRIDGES, LINDA	 08-30	 35,191	 54,801	 1,059.37
BROMFIELD, TERRY 2006	
  REVOCABLE TRUST 	 13-48-E	 46,133	 75,565	 1,983.68
BROOKS & WEBER ENTERPRISES, INC.	 01-02	 34,225	 191,309	 3,676.20
BROWN, ALBERT R	 02-15-B	 33,000	 20,340	 869.44
BROWN, JAMIE R	 09-38	 33,490	 133,050	 2,714.60
BROWN, SHARON D	 11-14	 35,870	 142,920	 2,506.78
BRULE, CHARLES R. & BETTE L. &	
  CHRISTOPHER B.	 08-03	 37,004	 73,272	 1,797.50
BRYANT, FOREST O	 09-43-B2	 8,266	 0	 134.74
BUBAR, MARC	 05-69	 39,700	 2,736	 691.71
BUCHANAN, MICHAEL HEIRS	 08-02-B	 15,900	 0	 259.17
BUJA, BRENDA A	 07-19	 4,200	 0	 68.46
BUJA, BRENDA A	 07-11	 19,547	 0	 318.62
BUJA, BRENDA A	 07-20	 53,419	 195,820	 3,655.10
BUJA, BRENDA A	 07-08	 27,434	 0	 447.17
BUJA, BRENDA A	 07-20-B	 42,080	 116,711	 2,588.29
BULGER, MEEGHAN ET. ALS.	 03-04	 17,608	 0	 287.01
BULGER, MEEGHAN ET. ALS.	 03-04-A	 39,300	 86,750	 2,054.62
BURGER, ANDREA L	 19-12-A	 93,000	 84,279	 2,889.65
BURKE FAMILY 2010 IRREV. TRUST	 15-27	 36,500	 27,352	 1,040.79
BURKE, VICTORIA I	 19-40	 23,100	 0	 376.53
BURNS, REGINALD L JR	 02-06-B	 34,400	 112,173	 1,981.64
BURNS, REGINALD L JR	 02-13-F	 2,520	 0	 41.08
BURNS, STEPHEN H	 20-38	 93,000	 45,206	 2,252.76
BURNSIDE, BRETT A	 08-14	 54,300	 172,003	 3,281.24
CABRAL, LUCIANO B	 04-46-A	 7,000	 0	 114.10
CABRAL, LUCIANO B	 07-64	 29,250	 0	 476.78
CABRAL, LUCIANO B	 04-46-B	 34,540	 184,184	 3,157.70
CADDIE-LARCENIA, HELEN G	 12-12	 27,965	 0	 455.83
CADDIE-LARCENIA, HELEN G	 12-08-I	 2,380	 0	 38.79
CADDIE-LARCENIA, HELEN G	 12-08-G	 35,100	 113,599	 2,016.29
CADY, ROGER C.	
  TRUSTEE-REVOCABLE TRUST	 20-03	 124,600	 268,666	 6,410.24
CADY, ROGER C.	
  TRUSTEE-REVOCABLE TRUST	 20-05-F	 5,060	 0	 82.48
CADY, ROGER C.	
  TRUSTEE-REVOCABLE TRUST	 20-05-E	 108,900	 0	 1,775.07
CALDERWOOD, CLINTON J	 12-14	 3,500	 0	 57.05
CALDERWOOD, CLINTON J	 13-02	 5,600	 6,700	 200.49
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CALDERWOOD, CLINTON J	 13-02-B	 7,000	 0	 114.10
CALDERWOOD, CLINTON J	 13-08	 7,000	 0	 114.10
CALDERWOOD, CLINTON J	 17-27	 51,300	 89,506	 2,295.14
CALLINI-KERR, CONCETTA M	 10-08-A	 34,050	 94,755	 1,692.02
CAMPBELL, LAWRENCE F	 11-09	 22,700	 0	 370.01
CAMPBELL, PAUL	 13-15	 41,600	 123,239	 2,279.38
CAMPBELL, PAUL J	 13-20	 22,231	 0	 362.37
CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.	 	 0	 0	 0.00
CARCO, CYNTHIA Y	 02-30	 67,800	 16,164	 1,368.61
CAREY, PAMELA J	 06-87	 33,700	 191,007	 3,255.22
CARLEZON, LANCE	 19-64	 29,250	 0	 476.78
CARLEZON, LANCE & HOLLY	 19-65	 73,000	 93,098	 2,299.90
CARLSEN, SUSAN	 12-08-D	 44,750	 150,221	 2,770.53
CARNEY, JAMES M	 20-07	 75,250	 65,283	 2,290.69
CARR, CASEY L	 20-06-C	 34,400	 182,250	 3,123.90
CARR, WENDY	 20-06-A	 35,100	 91,634	 1,658.26
CARRIER TIMBERLANDS, LLC	 12-03	 16,665	 0	 271.64
CARRIER TIMBERLANDS, LLC	 12-10-D	 1,937	 0	 31.57
CARRIER TIMBERLANDS, LLC	 17-22	 145,146	 0	 2,365.88
CARROLL, FREDERICK	 01-11	 36,500	 129,011	 2,290.33
CARROLL, JANE E	 09-54	 37,000	 0	 603.10
CARROLL, JANE E	 05-23-C	 33,490	 171,264	 2,929.99
CARROLL, LYNN	 05-23-B	 109,460	 88,435	 3,225.69
CARTER, DAVID A	 05-31	 37,900	 132,126	 2,363.92
CASAS, EZRA J	 11-11	 34,974	 210,773	 3,598.18
CASAS, JESSE D	 10-11-A	 34,050	 111,352	 1,962.55
CASAS, JESSE D	 10-01-A	 1,610	 0	 26.24
CASAS, JESSE D	 10-01-D	 13,500	 0	 220.05
CASAS, JOSIAH M	 10-12	 34,050	 145,171	 2,513.80
CASAS, NORMAN	 10-11	 67,580	 130,922	 2,828.08
CASAS, NORMAN	 10-12-A	 1,610	 0	 26.24
CASEY, ADAM R	 17-28-H	 47,550	 110,286	 2,165.23
CASSIS, WILLIAM	 01-02-A	 33,700	 12,675	 755.91
CASSIS, WILLIAM	 02-76	 37,200	 18,118	 494.18
CASTLE, LAURA	 20-15	 11,000	 0	 179.30
CASTONGUAY, RICHARD P	 14-18-A	 131,800	 83,864	 3,107.82
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES	 	 0	 0	 0.00
CAVALIERI FRANK & LYNN	 13-49-A	 83,000	 80,998	 2,673.17
CAVANAUGH, LYNNE C	 06-76	 135,700	 203,450	 5,528.15
CENTRAL MAINE POWER	 01-12-A	 231,000	 0	 3,765.30
CENTRAL MAINE POWER	 02-51	 379,315	 0	 6,182.83
CENTRAL MAINE POWER	 	 4,408,4	 0	 71,857.87
CENTRAL MAINE POWER	 	 19,663	 0	 320.51
CHAPDELAINE, JEFFREY J., TRUSTEE	 19-29	 42,900	 66,439	 1,782.23
CHAPDELAINE, JEFFREY J., TRUSTEE	 19-22	 32,000	 5,417	 609.90
CHAPMAN, LAURIE L	 09-12-C	 41,950	 127,078	 2,347.66
CHAVANNE, DANIEL P. CARRIE A.	 02-38-A	 33,525	 22,550	 506.52
CHITRO, MICHAEL A. & LORI J., TRUSTEES	 15-02	 25,350	 15,235	 661.54
CHITRO, MICHAEL A. & LORI J., TRUSTEES	 15-08	 9,750	 0	 158.93
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CHITRO, MICHAEL A. & LORI J., TRUSTEES	 15-13	 2,450	 0	 39.94
CHRISTENSEN, EDWARD A	 02-11-B	 35,800	 80,838	 1,901.20
CHRISTIE, MARGARET	 18-05	 33,000	 130,311	 2,254.47
CIASULLO, NICHOLAS G. JR., & JENN	 02-04	 33,000	 93,205	 2,057.14
CICHOWSKI, DAVID P	 09-65	 58,300	 122,486	 2,539.31
CK FAMILY TRUST	 20-06-B	 121,300	 168,963	 4,731.29
CK FAMILY TRUST	 09-50	 35,980	 0	 586.47
CK FAMILY TRUST	 20-05-D	 121,980	 0	 1,988.27
CLEMENT, ALFRED	 05-12-A	 34,400	 59,743	 1,127.03
CLEMENT, JULIA K	 20-39	 94,350	 34,212	 2,095.56
CLIFFORD, MICHELLE	 10-31-E	 35,170	 71,503	 1,331.27
COCA-COLA BOTTLING OF NNE, INC.	 	 0	 0	 0.00
COFFEY, WILLIAM	 03-01	 26,025	 0	 424.21
COFFEY, WILLIAM	 03-04-2	 17,608	 0	 287.01
COLE, LEWIS	 09-40-A	 22,700	 0	 370.01
COLE, MILLARD R. & LOUISE	 03-05	 37,900	 142,102	 2,526.53
COLLINS, CHRISTOPHER L	 13-05-A	 672	 0	 10.95
COLLINS, CHRISTOPHER L	 15-21-A	 27,428	 32,500	 569.33
COLPITTS, TARA	 17-19	 41,838	 0	 681.96
COLVIN, ERMA	 10-25-A	 49,230	 39,807	 1,451.30
COMPOUND HOLDINGS, LLC	 02-64-A	 24,044	 20,917	 732.86
COMPOUND HOLDINGS, LLC	 04-13-K	 11,400	 0	 185.82
CONCORD LAND, LLC	 02-62	 6,899	 0	 112.45
CONDON, ARLENE	 13-13-A	 3,000	 0	 48.90
CONDON, MAURICE B. HEIRS	 13-28	 26,000	 38,084	 1,044.57
CONNOR, BETH F	 08-08	 10,900	 0	 177.67
CONNOR, BETH F	 08-08-B	 34,393	 119,113	 2,094.65
CONNORS, ERNEST W	 17-28-D	 49,615	 135,300	 2,606.61
CONOPCO, INC. DBA: CONOPCO, INC.	 	 0	 0	 0.00
CONOVER, HARRY III	 13-48-K	 87,342	 290,410	 6,157.36
CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS	
  OF MAINE	 06-85	 49,100	 76,890	 2,053.64
CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS	
  OF MAINE	 09-37-A	 54,450	 29,900	 1,374.91
COOGAN, ZOLA	 06-27-B	 34,400	 46,915	 917.93
COOK, BLAINE	 02-07	 39,600	 89,442	 2,103.38
COOK, SHARON ET. ALS.	 05-24	 82,000	 12,000	 1,532.20
COOKINGHAM, RUSSELL J	 07-40	 42,600	 89,126	 1,739.63
COOLAHAN, JOHN	 08-04	 37,200	 29,000	 1,079.06
COOLEY, CLEBER JR DEVISEES	 10-15	 40,535	 0	 660.72
COOLEY, CLEBER JR DEVISEES	 10-32	 963	 0	 15.70
COOLEY, CLEBER JR DEVISEES	 10-46	 112,199	 0	 1,828.84
COOLEY, CLEBER JR DEVISEES	 09-16	 6,353	 0	 103.55
COOLEY, GREGORY S	 10-06-D	 34,050	 72,612	 1,331.09
COOLEY, RAMONA	 10-06-B	 34,400	 99,951	 1,782.42
COOLEY, SCOTT	 10-08	 35,800	 73,818	 1,379.27
COOLEY, TALBOT C JR	 10-06-A	 44,875	 74,596	 1,539.88
CORMIER, JONATHAN R	 05-66	 33,210	 107,574	 2,294.78
COUSENS, KAYE D	 20-05-B	 126,200	 37,287	 2,664.84
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COUSINS, RONALD L	 02-57	 42,210	 158,209	 3,266.83
CRAM, CATHLEEN O	 02-14-B	 40,514	 169,473	 3,422.79
CRAMER, EDWARD H. & BEVERLY A., LLC	 02-48-A	 23,960	 0	 390.55
CRAMER, EDWARD H. & BEVERLY A., LLC	 02-49	 40,650	 38,363	 1,287.91
CRANE, TAMI L	 09-43-B	 8,266	 0	 134.74
CREAMER, ALICE L	 06-66	 35,590	 82,418	 1,516.03
CREAMER, EARL	 09-42	 60,300	 163,826	 3,245.75
CRISTIANI, ANN	 02-58	 39,300	 122,713	 2,640.81
CROSSLEY, DOUGLAS	 19-01	 40,000	 0	 652.00
CROSSLEY, DOUGLAS	 06-47-B	 73,000	 161,656	 3,417.39
CROWELL, DAVIS P	 02-31-A	 30,200	 59,520	 1,054.94
CRUMMETT, DALTON C	 12-20-A	 33,700	 133,724	 2,321.51
CRUMMETT, DALTON C. TRUSTEE	 12-20	 47,100	 35,290	 1,342.96
CRUTE, KARL SR	 20-24	 60,000	 0	 978.00
CTL LAND MANAGEMENT SERVICES	 	 0	 0	 326.00
CTL LAND MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.	 01-19	 43,530	 400,430	 7,236.55
CTL LAND MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.	 09-20	 82,100	 0	 1,338.23
CURTIS, BRENDA	 11-16-A	 33,700	 137,862	 2,388.96
CURTIS, JAMES III	 19-72-A	 28,545	 129,969	 2,176.28
CURTIS, JAMES III	 19-72	 2,200	 0	 35.86
CURTIS, JAMES III	 19-72B	 2,200	 0	 35.86
CURTIS, MATTHEW J	 05-68-C	 41,788	 123,652	 2,289.17
CURTIS, REUBEN JOHN	 10-30	 48,900	 68,004	 1,905.54
CURTIS, ROSEMARY N	 06-62-B	 34,484	 100,134	 2,194.27
D.F. PARTNERSHIP	 09-69	 17,398	 0	 283.59
D.F. PARTNERSHIP	 03-07	 44,400	 0	 723.72
D.F. PARTNERSHIP	 09-62	 33,435	 0	 544.99
D.F. PARTNERSHIP	 09-09	 35,500	 0	 578.65
DAGGETT, BRIAN D	 06-25-A	 1,064	 0	 17.34
DAGGETT, BRIAN D	 06-20-E	 34,470	 182,379	 3,127.14
DAGGETT, BRIAN D	 06-20	 15,420	 0	 251.35
DAGGETT, BRIAN D	 06-19	 36,500	 110,018	 2,388.24
DAGGETT, BRIAN D	 06-20-I	 312	 0	 5.09
DAGGETT, BRIAN D	 06-25	 22,000	 5,400	 446.62
DAGGETT, BRIAN D	 19-07	 89,500	 49,459	 2,265.03
DANE, JEAN R	 08-23	 84,300	 76,277	 2,617.41
DANIEL, DAVID W	 04-34	 1,080	 0	 17.60
DANIEL, JONATHAN C	 04-31-A	 40,595	 129,209	 2,767.81
DANIEL, JONATHAN C	 04-33	 3,200	 0	 52.16
DANIEL, WESLEY	 04-21	 51,960	 147,691	 2,749.01
DANIEL, WESLEY	 04-27	 9,281	 0	 151.28
DANIEL, WESLEY	 04-29	 13,101	 0	 213.55
DANIEL, WESLEY	 04-30	 397	 0	 6.47
DANIEL, WESLEY	 04-31	 6,137	 0	 100.03
DANIEL, WESLEY	 04-35	 13,935	 0	 227.14
DANIEL, WESLEY	 04-32	 1,497	 0	 24.40
DANIEL, WESLEY	 04-35-A	 2,100	 0	 34.23
DANIEL, WESLEY F. & KATHLEEN S.	
  & JONATHAN C.	 04-08	 50,160	 75,560	 2,049.24



	 TOWN OF WASHINGTON	 39

Owner	 Map Lot	 Land 	 Building	 2020 Tax
DARNEY, STEPHEN C	 08-31-H	 39,818	 197,950	 3,468.12
DARTON, WILLIAM H	 04-37	 75,600	 248,989	 4,883.30
DAVIS, FRANCIS	 09-43-C	 35,800	 146,054	 2,556.72
DAVIS, GEORGE	 05-45	 65,700	 27,000	 1,005.71
DAVIS, GREGORY	 09-22-2	 7,566	 0	 123.33
DAVIS, JERE H	 14-18	 146,800	 85,839	 3,286.72
DAVIS, JESSICA D	 17-24-B	 34,960	 49,356	 966.85
DAVIS, LORI	 09-22-3	 7,566	 0	 123.33
DAVIS, MELODY M	 05-77	 34,120	 44,621	 875.98
DAVIS, RAYMOND J	 05-07	 34,407	 126,345	 2,212.76
DAVIS, SCOTT	 05-45-L	 0	 14,680	 0.00
DAVIS, STEVEN P	 09-22-1	 7,566	 0	 123.33
DAWSON, GORDON HEIRS	 10-46-A	 34,610	 4,639	 639.76
DAWSON, GORDON HEIRS	 10-51	 33,000	 46,852	 894.09
DAWSON, GORDON HEIRS	 07-06	 33,500	 0	 546.05
DAY, MARY L	 14-04	 33,791	 82,574	 1,896.75
DAY, WALTER A	 12-17	 23,100	 0	 376.53
DEAHL, CHRISTOPHER D	 07-41	 37,200	 166,183	 2,907.64
DEAN, DEBRA K	 01-20	 169,313	 74,758	 3,570.86
DEAN, DEBRA K	 01-22	 68,970	 0	 1,124.21
DEAN, DEBRA K	 01-21	 959	 0	 15.63
DEAN, DEBRA K	 01-17-B	 1,750	 0	 28.53
DECOFF, DAN S	 05-75	 33,000	 59,246	 1,503.61
DEGROFF, DEBORAH A	 02-50	 57,900	 157,307	 3,100.37
DEGROFF, DEBORAH A	 02-36	 2,800	 0	 45.64
DEGROFF, ROBERT C	 02-47	 35,450	 149,138	 2,503.48
DELL FINANCIAL SERVICES, LP	 	 0	 0	 0.00
DEPALMA, DANTE	 06-61-C	 33,700	 106,103	 1,871.29
DEPUGH, DANA C	 05-04-B	 33,210	 131,245	 2,273.12
DESROCHERS, DANIEL E	 04-13-A	 36,150	 45,218	 1,326.30
DEVENISH, PHILIP	 13-33	 26,000	 34,000	 978.00
DEVER, PAUL A	 09-55-D	 46,175	 181,318	 3,300.64
DIAZ, AMANDA ET. ALS	 06-61-1	 14,100	 0	 229.83
DIAZ, AMANDA ET. ALS	 19-38	 89,500	 80,865	 2,369.45
DIBENEDETTI, THOMAS JR	 06-50	 38,950	 128,231	 2,317.55
DIETTE, KENNETH	 10-38	 37,900	 74,953	 1,839.50
DILTS, BONNIE A VARNEY	 08-16	 34,750	 44,325	 881.42
DINSMORE, ANDREW	 13-48	 37,645	 148,010	 2,618.68
DIRECTV, OPERATIONS, LLC.	 	 0	 0	 326.00
DISH NETWORK, LLC	 	 0	 0	 146.70
DOBRIC, ALBION	 06-56	 34,200	 0	 557.46
DONAGHY, SEAN	 06-91-C	 39,230	 108,262	 1,996.62
DOODY, JONATHAN	 13-06-D	 17,303	 2,326	 319.95
DOODY, JONATHAN	 13-06-E	 17,254	 0	 281.24
DORAN, RALPH C III	 05-35	 12,200	 0	 198.86
DORNAN, VALERIE P	 07-29-B	 24,800	 0	 404.24
DOUGLAS, PETER	 05-19	 82,300	 2,688	 1,385.30
DRAKE, BRANDON THOMAS	 08-31-C	 34,960	 170,467	 2,940.96
DRISCOLL, SHAWN A	 02-27	 39,300	 115,951	 2,025.29
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DUBE, TIMOTHY A	 09-32	 35,800	 174,584	 3,021.76
DUFRESNE, KEVIN	 03-17	 38,600	 61,078	 1,217.25
DUGMORE, EDITH A. ET ALS.	 05-49	 32,050	 19,500	 840.27
DUNSFORD, JANICE MAE	 05-37-A	 36,500	 58,288	 1,137.54
DUNSFORD, JANICE MAE	 05-37-B	 3,500	 0	 57.05
DUNSFORD, JANICE MAE	 05-37-C	 350	 0	 5.71
DUNSFORD, JANICE MAE	 05-37-E	 420	 0	 6.85
D'URSO, JOEL V	 07-48-F	 1,400	 0	 22.82
D'URSO, JOEL V	 07-48-B	 34,400	 125,158	 2,600.80
EASLER, JAMES	 09-18	 34,050	 160,993	 3,179.20
EATON, JEFFREY S	 09-60	 7,650	 0	 124.70
EATON, JEFFREY S	 09-61	 39,300	 215,766	 4,157.58
EDWARDS, DOROTHY S	 20-12	 84,250	 65,121	 2,434.75
EDWARDS, DOROTHY S	 20-12-A	 1,050	 0	 17.12
EDWARDS-JENKS, SAMUEL B	 18-41	 33,000	 126,929	 2,606.84
EEKELS, CLAUDIA P	 18-18	 33,000	 64,785	 1,593.90
EGGEN, ROXANNE	 19-02	 62,000	 29,000	 1,483.30
ELLIOTT, CHRISTINE L	 10-26	 36,500	 14,520	 424.13
ELLIS, DAVID	 02-12-B	 17,975	 0	 292.99
EMERSON, TRAVIS R	 07-61	 33,000	 89,407	 1,587.73
ENGEL, JOHN	 02-29	 33,700	 45,585	 787.05
ERSKINE, ALBERT B JR	 12-16	 41,950	 106,393	 2,010.49
ERSKINE, ALBERT B JR	 13-32	 1,400	 0	 22.82
ESANCY, KEVIN	 17-24AL	 0	 15,000	 0.00
ESANCY, LEVI J	 13-05-D	 2,681	 0	 43.70
ESANCY, LEVI J	 13-05-E	 27,400	 32,539	 977.01
ESANCY, NANCY L	 17-24	 32,900	 1,000	 552.57
ESANCY, PRISCILLA	 13-05-G	 511	 0	 8.33
ETCHELLS, DAVID	 12-08-H	 40,585	 37,254	 861.28
EUROVIA ATLANTIC COAST LLC	 01-13	 532,525	 12,112	 8,877.58
EUROVIA ATLANTIC COAST LLC	 01-17-A	 44,694	 0	 728.51
EUROVIA ATLANTIC COAST LLC	 	 0	 0	 1,986.55
EUROVIA ATLANTIC COAST LLC IN
  POSSESSION	 10-16L	 472,979	 0	 7,709.56	
EVENING STAR GRANGE	 18-32	 33,490	 95,000	 0.00
EVERGREEN STORAGE, LLC	 03-11	 162,175	 513,993	 11,021.54
EWAN, EXCLE R	 07-15	 33,273	 22,468	 908.58
FALLAHEE, HARRIET A. TRUSTEE	 06-04-2	 22,350	 0	 364.31
FALLAHEE, HARRIET A. TRUSTEE	 06-04-17B	 532	 0	 8.67
FALLAHEE, HARRIET A. TRUSTEE	 06-04-14	 1,952	 0	 31.82
FARLEY, SCOTT	 10-44	 34,400	 108,173	 2,323.94
FARRAR, BUCKY	 02-13-E	 33,210	 31,942	 1,061.98
FARRELL, SUSAN	 09-11	 39,300	 89,614	 1,693.80
FAXON, VONDA & DOUGLAS & LEE	 16-10	 23,100	 4,500	 449.88
FAXON, VONDA & DOUGLAS & LEE	 16-12	 44,550	 137,530	 2,560.40
FELDEISEN, DONALD W	 10-37-A	 35,800	 135,359	 2,382.39
FELICETTI, CHRISTOPHER	 04-18-2	 40,133	 263,529	 4,542.19
FENN, AUSTEN A	 09-18-A	 33,840	 83,372	 1,910.56
FEY, JENNIFER D	 19-10	 104,700	 235,519	 5,545.57



	 TOWN OF WASHINGTON	 41

Owner	 Map Lot	 Land 	 Building	 2020 Tax
FILLEBROWN, HEATHER	 05-46-B	 26,340	 0	 429.34
FILLION, MICHAEL A	 06-34	 40,650	 99,220	 1,872.38
FINK, KENNETH L JR	 07-22	 10,450	 0	 170.34
FINK, KENNETH L JR	 07-31	 9,509	 0	 155.00
FIRST DATA MERCHANT SERVICES	 	 0	 0	 0.00
FITZGERALD, LOUISE H	 05-23	 86,900	 0	 1,416.47
FLAGG, DARRYL R	 01-08	 10,900	 0	 177.67
FLAGG, DARRYL R	 11-02	 29,400	 0	 479.22
FLAGG, DARRYL R	 11-21	 125,325	 0	 2,042.80
FLAGG, DARRYL R	 01-12	 162,538	 3,060	 2,699.25
FLAGG, DARRYL R	 01-23	 33,368	 0	 543.90
FLAGG, DARRYL R	 08-33	 40,250	 0	 656.08
FLAGG, DARRYL R	 08-35	 15,798	 0	 257.51
FLAGG, DARRYL R	 06-68	 76,050	 0	 1,239.62
FLAGG, DARRYL R	 01-11-A	 20,700	 0	 337.41
FLAGG, DARRYL R	 08-35-A	 35,919	 77,366	 1,846.55
FLANDERS, MICHAEL J	 05-59	 34,400	 181,582	 3,113.01
FLYNN, CORWIN	 18-16	 33,000	 44,834	 861.19
FOLGER, ROBIN W	 12-10-C	 45,170	 114,065	 2,595.53
FONTAINE, MICHAEL S	 04-18-6	 35,828	 154,028	 2,687.15
FONTAINE, THOMAS M	 05-11-D	 33,700	 93,573	 1,667.05
FORAN, MICHAEL	 06-64-6	 84,540	 0	 1,378.00
FORD, DANIEL	 02-19	 33,000	 36,203	 1,128.01
FORGIONE, ERNEST A JR	 04-36	 65,160	 102,881	 2,331.57
FORTUNE, MELISSA	 07-11-A	 7,000	 0	 114.10
FORTUNE, NICHOLAS	 18-34	 33,000	 110,738	 1,935.43
FORTUNE, NICHOLAS	 07-13	 27,250	 40,910	 1,111.01
FOSSETT, LEXIE M	 10-35-B	 33,770	 77,461	 1,813.07
FOSTER, AUSTIN G	 09-21	 33,000	 102,785	 2,213.30
FOSTER, KASANDRA L	 05-51-D	 34,540	 14,229	 794.93
FOSTER, SCOTT	 15-32	 35,940	 33,000	 1,123.72
FOSTER, SCOTT I	 15-32-A	 35,100	 64,562	 1,216.99
FOSTER, SCOTT I	 15-32-B	 22,700	 26,125	 795.85
FOTTER, LYNDA	 06-14-F	 34,400	 122,371	 2,147.87
FOURNIER, REBECCA J	 11-19-A	 33,700	 134,486	 2,333.93
FOWLER, EUGENE	 07-43-L	 0	 11,825	 192.75
FOWLER, EUGENE W SR	 07-43	 40,650	 157,025	 2,716.80
FOWLES, BRUCE E	 05-13	 46,500	 130,307	 2,474.45
FRAIN, EDWARD	 05-04-C	 27,400	 5,825	 134.07
FRANCIS, CODY	 08-31-A-1	 33,495	 98,187	 1,738.92
FRANCIS, GORDON J	 08-31-A	 33,700	 95,085	 2,099.20
FRANK, JAMES H	 13-03	 12,850	 0	 209.46
FRANK, JAMES H	 15-23	 59,337	 168,319	 3,303.29
FRAZIER, JLYNN J	 09-66	 45,200	 99,780	 1,955.67
FRECHETTE, DONALD L	 07-09	 16,050	 13,221	 477.12
FREIMAN, LOWELL R	 08-06	 53,100	 171,500	 3,253.48
FRENCH, RICHARD E	 09-39	 35,100	 0	 572.13
FRENCH, SAMANTHA J	 02-12	 28,975	 70,351	 1,211.51
FREYENHAGEN, JAMES A	 07-28	 33,700	 162,817	 2,795.73
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FRP, INC.	 11-19	 174,425	 0	 2,843.13
FRY, JANIS L	 09-13	 34,890	 146,131	 2,950.64
FRY, JANIS L	 09-59	 210	 0	 3.42
FRYE, JAMES P	 06-84	 40,650	 95,923	 1,818.64
FURROW, DANIEL	 07-67-E	 3,920	 0	 63.90
FURROW, DANIEL R	 07-66	 62,100	 99,266	 2,222.77
GALE, JUSTIN DK	 08-19-F	 33,840	 59,586	 1,522.84
GAMAGE, FRANK F	 03-08	 771	 0	 12.57
GARDNER, CYNTHIA	 13-18	 23,300	 0	 379.79
GARDNER, DONALD W	 13-16	 21,420	 0	 349.15
GARDNER, DONALD W	 13-16-D	 26,910	 84,937	 1,415.61
GARDNER, ROBERT C	 13-36	 37,300	 0	 607.99
GAREAU, CONOR E	 11-06	 14,640	 0	 238.63
GARNETT CEMETERY	 06-14-E	 2,420	 0	 0.00
GARNETT, GAIL G	 06-20-K	 2,380	 0	 38.79
GARNETT, GAIL G	 06-14-C	 19,625	 0	 319.89
GARNETT, GAIL G	 06-15-A	 38,425	 145,606	 2,999.71
GARNETT, GAIL G	 06-20-C	 22,980	 0	 374.57
GARNETT, GAIL G	 06-20-H	 34,610	 52,918	 1,019.21
GARNETT, GAIL G	 06-20-D	 33,700	 50,269	 1,368.69
GARNETT, MITCHELL	 06-31-A	 61,540	 0	 1,003.10
GARNETT, MITCHELL	 06-14	 12,850	 0	 209.46
GARNETT, MITCHELL	 06-14-B	 2,100	 0	 34.23
GARNETT, MITCHELL	 06-20-B	 33,700	 79,776	 1,442.16
GARNETT, MITCHELL	 06-20-F	 1,260	 0	 20.54
GARNETT, MITCHELL	 06-21	 13,045	 0	 212.63
GARNETT, MITCHELL	 06-20-G	 2,604	 0	 42.45
GARNETT, MITCHELL	 06-20-J	 3,220	 0	 52.49
GARNETT, ROY	 17-12	 10,250	 0	 167.08
GARNETT, ROY	 17-05	 31,500	 0	 513.45
GARNETT, ROY	 17-06	 1,400	 0	 22.82
GARNETT, ROY	 17-13	 8,950	 0	 145.89
GARNETT, ROY	 17-14	 25,500	 0	 415.65
GARNETT, ROY D	 13-37	 26,900	 0	 438.47
GARNETT, ROY D	 06-20-A	 34,890	 79,249	 1,452.97
GARRETSON, HENRY J	 06-63-A	 118,000	 183,098	 4,907.90
GARRETSON, HENRY J	 19-66	 93,000	 2,938	 1,563.79
GAUDREAU, RICHARD	 04-11-1	 41,982	 0	 684.31
GAYLOR, ANDREA	 02-13-B	 34,680	 0	 565.28
GE CAPITAL AMERICAS PROPERTY TAX	 	 0	 0	 0.00
GEE, DOUGLAS	 08-19-A	 33,000	 124,846	 2,165.39
GEE, DOUGLAS	 08-19-D	 6,580	 0	 107.25
Gee, Scott N., Et. als	 13-43	 83,000	 97,159	 2,529.09
GEORGE, HANNAH FRANCES	 05-10-E	 34,190	 69,612	 1,284.47
GERRISH, WILLIAM E	 07-29	 35,800	 141,718	 2,486.04
GESS, BRYAN L E	 18-09	 33,420	 130,276	 2,260.74
GESS, BRYAN L E	 06-65-A	 1,113	 0	 18.14
GILLESPIE, LLOYD	 17-24-C	 35,940	 99,077	 1,793.28
GLIDDEN, AVERY	 16-05	 6,300	 0	 102.69
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GOFF, MARJORIE A. HEIRS	 19-67	 12,150	 0	 198.05
GOFF, MARJORIE A. HEIRS	 19-68	 73,000	 123,094	 3,196.33
GOFF, MARJORIE A. HEIRS	 19-70	 4,950	 0	 80.69
GOING, JONATHAN	 02-40-A	 33,350	 120,421	 2,098.97
GOOD, HOWARD F	 13-54	 123,350	 131,498	 3,648.72
GOODALE, ROY D	 18-36-B	 33,000	 78,654	 1,819.96
GOSEKI, YUKI	 06-92	 1,400	 0	 22.82
GOSEKI, YUKI	 18-06-A	 910	 0	 14.83
GOSEKI, YUKI	 06-90-A	 33,700	 265,442	 4,468.51
GOULD, SCOTT D	 04-43	 40,650	 156,921	 2,812.91
GRACIE, JEFFREY C	 03-15	 41,950	 113,317	 2,123.35
GRAHAM, JOYCE	 05-04	 50,196	 173,935	 3,653.34
GRANT, MILES	 12-39-A	 26,116	 0	 425.69
GRANT, STEPHANIE	 08-19	 35,820	 3,000	 225.27
Grayhawk Leasing, LLC - PEPSICO	 	 0	 0	 32.60
GREATAMERICA LEASING	 	 0	 0	 0.00
GREEN, DAKOTA	 13-27-L	 0	 11,000	 0.00
GRIEF, JOHN J	 06-69-B	 44,550	 135,837	 2,532.81
GRIERSON, LAURIE	 04-12-A	 37,200	 128,166	 2,287.97
GRIFFIN, DALE C	 20-23	 60,000	 0	 978.00
GRIFFIN, HERBERT	 20-22	 102,000	 31,959	 2,183.53
GRIFFIN, LARRY	 07-71	 32,050	 67,513	 1,117.58
GRIFFIN, LEE S	 06-61-F	 33,770	 103,523	 1,830.38
GRIFFIN, VALERIE A	 07-73	 24,800	 0	 404.24
GRINDLE, ELLIOT B	 05-15-C	 35,800	 157,804	 3,155.75
GRINNELL TUBBS FAMILY TRUST	 03-23-B	 37,830	 134,882	 2,815.21
GRINNELL, DONALD L	 05-26-B	 126,514	 255,603	 5,723.21
GRINNELL, DONALD L	 06-39	 40,000	 0	 652.00
GRINNELL, DONALD L	 12-39	 28,300	 0	 461.29
GRINNELL, DONALD L.	 06-39	 40,000	 0	 67.09
GRINNELL, DONALD L. & ELIZABETH A. &	
  KATHERINE A.	 03-09	 50,100	 139,155	 2,677.36
GRINNELL, DONALD L. & SANDRA A. &	
  KATHERINE A.	 03-23	 54,693	 0	 891.50
GRINNELL, GORDON & JEANETTE, TRUSTEES	 07-37	 22,000	 0	 358.60
GRINNELL, GREVIS E	 07-34	 5,558	 0	 90.60
GRINNELL, GREVIS E	 07-38	 12,034	 0	 196.15
GRINNELL, GREVIS E	 07-63	 46,162	 104,853	 2,054.04
GRINNELL, JEFFREY E	 03-09-A	 49,677	 132,842	 2,567.56
GRINNELL, MEAGHAN	 19-08	 61,500	 0	 1,002.45
GRINNELL, MEAGHAN	 19-09	 33,000	 0	 537.90
GRINNELL, MEAGHAN	 06-47-C	 33,700	 140,751	 2,843.55
GROSS, NEIL R	 09-12-B	 43,250	 234,114	 4,113.53
GROVER, BRITTNEY	 06-86-A	 33,210	 64,249	 1,181.08
GUSHEE, JOYLIE L	 05-51-E	 21,090	 0	 343.77
HAIGHT, STEPHEN	 09-63-A	 34,400	 98,738	 1,762.65
HAINING, MARTHA J	 06-62	 66,746	 0	 1,087.96
HAINING, MARTHA J	 19-54	 179,170	 97,382	 4,507.80
HALE, THOMAS	 06-57-D	 35,800	 130,727	 2,306.89
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HALL, DANIEL S	 10-50-A	 33,700	 12,768	 349.93
HALL, GEORGE C. & SONS, INC.	 01-05	 164,525	 0	 2,681.76
HALL, GEORGE C. & SONS, INC.	 01-06	 167,075	 0	 2,723.32
HALL, GEORGE C. & SONS, INC.	 07-04	 9,600	 0	 156.48
HALL, GEORGE C. & SONS, INC.	 08-34	 40,800	 0	 665.04
HALL, GEORGE C. & SONS, INC.	 10-04	 11,550	 0	 188.27
HALL, GEORGE C. & SONS, INC.	 10-05	 14,700	 0	 239.61
HALL, GEORGE C. & SONS, INC.	 07-05	 7,000	 0	 114.10
HALL, GEORGE C. & SONS, INC.	 01-04	 6,300	 0	 102.69
HALL, GEORGE C. & SONS, INC.	 01-03	 102,050	 12,974	 1,874.89
HALL, GEORGE C. & SONS, INC.	 01-01	 398,295	 0	 6,492.21
HALL, MICHAEL S	 10-50	 35,800	 116,784	 2,079.62
HALLOWELL, ALICIA J	 05-59-A	 23,400	 0	 381.42
HALSEY, HEATHER N	 08-31-F	 36,150	 171,823	 2,982.46
HALSEY, HEATHER N	 08-21	 24,800	 0	 404.24
HALSEY, HEATHER N	 08-22	 78,800	 59,990	 2,262.28
HALSEY, HEATHER N	 08-18	 28,300	 0	 461.29
HAMBLIN, ELISABETH L	 04-35-B	 34,750	 30,338	 653.43
HANDFIELD, RICHARD A	 13-45	 83,000	 128,317	 3,444.47
HANLON, ELIZABETH	 02-06	 33,630	 91,914	 1,638.87
HANNAN, DELORES M	 13-52	 90,800	 50,702	 2,306.48
HANNAN, MAXEY	 02-26-E	 35,800	 131,246	 2,315.35
HANNAN, ROBERT L	 13-52-B	 95,900	 45,000	 2,296.67
HANSON, ROBERT A	 19-06	 99,600	 34,900	 1,784.85
HANSON, ROBERT A	 19-05	 51,000	 17,723	 1,120.18
HANSON, ROBERT A	 06-47-E	 7,920	 12,958	 340.31
HARDING, JAMES D	 08-30-A	 35,191	 76,826	 1,418.38
HARRIMAN, GERALD	 02-17-B	 560	 0	 9.13
HARRIMAN, GERALD	 02-18	 33,700	 157,712	 2,712.52
HARRING, PETER R	 09-28	 35,100	 44,757	 1,301.67
HARRINGTON, DANIEL R	 06-80	 34,400	 149,699	 2,593.31
HARRINGTON, DAVID O II	 14-12	 34,050	 90,573	 1,623.85
HARRIS, NEIL F	 06-57-D-1	 35,800	 117,084	 2,084.51
HART, KEITH	 18-02	 22,350	 0	 364.31
HARTLEY, KATHLEEN V	 06-61-G	 35,800	 73,550	 1,374.91
HARVILL, MICHAEL	 04-41	 37,900	 223,586	 4,262.22
HASLETT, MAYNARD S	 04-28	 34,310	 14,000	 379.95
HATHAWAY, BARRY G SR	 04-19	 33,700	 69,042	 1,674.69
HAWTHORNE, SAMUEL	 02-08	 41,950	 55,703	 1,591.74
HAWTHORNE, SAMUEL H	 06-27-A	 42,050	 82,975	 1,630.41
HAYES, NELSON E II	 01-02-B	 33,000	 97,980	 1,727.47
HAYWARD, JOAN M	 18-15	 33,182	 103,338	 1,817.78
HECKMAN, DAVID E	 13-15-A	 41,625	 195,074	 3,450.69
HEDBERG, ERIC	 18-08-A	 33,000	 59,990	 1,515.74
HEDBERG, ERIK	 18-39	 33,000	 10,061	 701.89
HEILMAN, ERIKA	 05-22-B	 118,700	 163,087	 4,593.13
HERRMANN, LAURA E B	 06-04-5	 23,050	 0	 375.72
HERRMANN, LAURA E B	 06-04-13	 1,952	 0	 31.82
HERRMANN, LAURA E B	 06-04-17C	 532	 0	 8.67
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HEYER, STEVEN D	 06-69	 58,500	 10,000	 1,116.55
HIBBERT, DANIEL	 06-04-6	 23,050	 0	 375.72
HIBBERT, DANIEL	 06-04-15	 1,952	 0	 31.82
HIBBERT, DANIEL	 06-04-17D	 532	 0	 8.67
HIBBERT, DANIEL	 06-04-11	 1,952	 0	 31.82
HIBBERT, DANIEL D.	 06-04-18	 1,952	 0	 31.82
HIBBERT, DANIEL D. & CATHERINE	 06-04-1	 33,350	 48,860	 1,340.02
HIBBERT, DANIEL P, CATHERINE S.	 06-03-A	 132,830	 0	 2,165.13
HIBBERT, EUGENE T	 06-04-17A	 532	 0	 8.67
HIBBERT, KATHLEEN M	 06-04-19	 1,952	 0	 31.82
HIBBERT, KATHLEEN M	 06-04-B	 109,880	 0	 1,791.04
HIBBERT, RICHARD E	 06-03-B	 124,330	 0	 2,026.58
HIBBERT, ROBERT M	 06-12-3	 22,420	 0	 365.45
HIBBERT, ROBERT M	 06-04-16	 1,952	 0	 31.82
HINDS, DONNA	 02-55	 35,450	 122,859	 2,075.14
HIX, KEVIN	 08-24	 13,500	 0	 220.05
HIX, KEVIN	 08-28	 38,600	 215,056	 3,629.29
HOFFMAN, TRACI L	 02-24	 33,000	 83,101	 1,892.45
HOLLOWAY, STANLEY J	 05-03	 32,250	 0	 525.68
HOLLOWAY, STANLEY J	 05-04-D	 7,014	 0	 114.33
HOLMES, WENDELL	 06-78	 7,000	 0	 114.10
HOLMES, WENDELL	 06-79	 42,600	 199,417	 3,537.38
HOLMES, WENDELL	 06-75	 33,000	 26,648	 972.26
HOLT, GREGORY	 20-05-C	 127,730	 75,500	 3,312.65
HOLZ, ALFRED	 15-20	 87,944	 0	 1,433.49
HOLZMAN,  James E. Et. Als.	 06-11-H	 72,000	 0	 1,173.60
HOLZMAN, JAMES	 06-11-A	 22,000	 0	 358.60
HOLZMAN, JAMES E	 06-11-B	 22,000	 0	 358.60
HOLZMAN, JAMES E	 06-11-C	 33,000	 93,774	 2,066.42
HOLZMAN, MATTHEW A	 06-11-F	 31,350	 4,534	 584.91
HOOD, WILLIAM P	 19-13	 127,300	 71,973	 3,248.15
HOOKE, FRANCIS	 02-48	 36,640	 50,503	 1,420.43
HOOPER, ERNEST	 20-18	 32,852	 118,471	 2,059.06
HOOSHANG, SHAMASH	 10-42-A	 24,800	 0	 404.24
HOROVITZ, DANIEL A	 04-14	 35,800	 128,685	 2,273.61
HOWARD, SONJA	 17-17-A	 24,990	 12,000	 602.94
HUDAK, JOSEPH	 20-05-A	 115,400	 0	 1,881.02
HUGHES NETWORK SYSTEMS, LLC.	 	 0	 0	 48.90
HUNTLEY, CHRIS A	 06-57-G	 34,680	 64,293	 1,205.76
HUTCHINS, KATHERINE A	 02-52	 48,020	 85,334	 1,766.17
HUTCHINSON, ALBERT	 07-29-A	 34,400	 168,554	 2,900.65
IMPALLOMENI, ALFONSE C. &	
  CAROLE A	 02-28	 38,950	 137,653	 2,878.63	
IZZARD, JASON W	 04-20-C	 24,800	 0	 404.24
JACKSON, ALLEN L	 02-02	 35,800	 30,990	 681.18
JACKSON, DONNA M	 09-24	 35,500	 0	 578.65
JACKSON, NICOLE	 06-52-C	 33,910	 125,171	 2,593.02
JACKSON, RONALD M	 09-26	 33,000	 106,575	 1,769.77
JACKSON, RONALD M	 09-25	 3,290	 0	 53.63
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JACKSON, RONALD M	 09-27	 34,050	 15,180	 802.45
JACKSON, RONALD M	 09-26-A	 16,500	 110,464	 2,069.51
JACKSON, SAMANTHA	 08-09	 34,750	 152,551	 2,645.51
JACKSON, TIMOTHY	 07-17	 58,500	 95,000	 2,502.05
JACKSON, TIMOTHY	 10-27	 53,100	 30,128	 1,356.62
JACKSON, TIMOTHY S	 02-01	 35,240	 92,953	 1,682.05
JACKSON, TIMOTHY S	 07-18	 6,300	 0	 102.69
JACKSON, WILLIAM M	 10-09	 33,700	 89,000	 1,592.51
JACKSON, WILLIAM M	 10-10	 3,500	 0	 57.05
JACKSON'S CORNER STORE	 	 0	 0	 48.90
JACKSONS' CORNER STORE	 02-25	 66,000	 141,621	 3,384.22
JACKSONS' CORNER STORE	 02-34	 25,500	 0	 415.65
JANOFF, DOUGLAS	 04-46-D	 36,500	 181,126	 3,547.30
JANTO, HRANA, PAUL & PHYLLIS	 07-40-B	 29,780	 0	 485.41
JANTO, PHYLLIS	 07-10	 39,300	 114,920	 2,106.29
JANUS SUPPORTIVE LIVING SERVICES	 06-54	 400,900	 1,650,000	 0.00
JELENFY, JEFFREY C KAREN	 18-22	 33,000	 86,000	 1,532.20
JENKINS, ANNE W	 14-18-B	 126,600	 80,076	 3,368.82
JENKINS, ANNE W	 20-20-A	 11,350	 0	 185.01
JENKINS, JAMES D	 20-21	 70,150	 29,690	 1,627.39
JERMYN, JILLIANNE	 06-60	 31,600	 31,179	 615.80
JERMYN, NICOLAS A	 13-39	 90,550	 0	 1,475.97
JERMYN, NICOLAS A	 13-39-A	 33,000	 24,725	 940.92
JEWELL, SEAN R	 18-26	 33,000	 117,844	 2,051.26
JIMENEZ, NATALIE R	 15-34	 36,465	 36,562	 1,190.34
JOHNSON, GREGORY G	 04-26-A	 46,500	 18,000	 643.85
JOHNSON, LSE, LLC	 20-02	 96,000	 12,800	 1,773.44
JOHNSTON, ALAN E	 09-70	 5,320	 0	 86.72
JOHNSTON, CONSTANCE R	 20-33-A	 19,800	 0	 322.74
JOHNSTON, CONSTANCE R	 20-29	 102,000	 32,604	 2,194.05
JOHNSTON, MARTHA L	 20-30	 16,500	 17,000	 546.05
JOHNSTON, SHEILA and	 04-45	 3,150	 0	 51.35
JOHNSTON, THOMAS N	 14-14	 98,775	 156,869	 3,759.50
JOHNSTON, THOMAS N	 14-15	 38,650	 0	 630.00
JOHNSTON, THOMAS N	 20-32	 700	 0	 11.41
JOHNSTON, THOMAS N	 20-33	 8,950	 0	 145.89
JOHNSTON, THOMAS N	 20-26	 98,700	 0	 1,608.81
JOHNSTON, THOMAS N	 14-15-A	 4,200	 0	 68.46
JONES, CASIE R	 13-17	 25,150	 59,586	 973.70
JONES, DANIEL P SR	 12-28-A	 35,100	 138,154	 2,416.54
JONES, EVAN W	 09-46-A	 49,860	 134,730	 3,008.82
JONES, FRANK E JR	 13-21-B	 40,650	 126,028	 2,309.35
JONES, FRANK E JR	 13-23	 25,050	 0	 408.32
JONES, FRANK E JR	 13-05-I	 27,400	 20,000	 772.62
JONES, FRANK E JR	 	 0	 0	 16.30
JONES, GEORGE JR	 02-33	 39,700	 0	 647.11
JONES, JAMES C	 12-28	 38,650	 42,735	 1,326.58
JONES, JAMES C	 12-28-B	 35,100	 148,667	 2,587.90
JONES, LAURA M	 09-55-A	 34,470	 83,261	 1,511.52
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JONES, MICHAEL C	 05-30	 34,400	 140,016	 2,435.48
JONES, MICHELLE	 18-42	 33,168	 68,142	 1,243.85
JONES, MONTY D	 10-49	 11,487	 0	 187.24
JONES, PENNY	 13-10-3	 0	 15,000	 0.00
JONES, STEVEN W	 13-21	 15,300	 0	 249.39
JONES, STEVEN W	 13-30	 16,450	 500	 276.29
JULIAN, MARGARET E. 1996	
  REVOCABLE TRUST	 06-62-A	 3,640	 0	 59.33	
JULIAN, MARGARET E. 1996	
  REVOCABLE TRUST	 19-59	 112,950	 89,399	 3,298.29
JULIAN, MARGARET E. 1996	
  REVOCABLE TRUST	 06-62-C	 1,000	 0	 16.30	
JULIAN, MARGARET E. 1996	
  REVOCABLE TRUST	 19-59-A	 1,000	 0	 16.30	
JULIAN, MARGARET E. 1996
  REVOKABLE TRUST	 19-57	 33,000	 94,885	 2,084.53	
JULIAN, MARGARET E. 1996
  RVOCABLE TRUST	 06-77	 6,732	 0	 109.73	
JURA, MARK A	 03-12	 43,900	 0	 715.57
JURA, MARK A	 03-21	 54,600	 43,036	 1,591.47
JURA, MARK A	 03-24	 22,700	 0	 370.01
JURA, MARK A. & DEBORAH L.	 	 0	 0	 16.30
K. JONES CONSTRUCTION	 11-05-A	 53,689	 0	 875.13
K. JONES CONSTRUCTION	 11-05	 12,090	 0	 197.07
KAHRMANN, WILLIAM H	 13-48-D	 5,550	 0	 90.47
KALER, CARLA -JO	 19-39	 117,000	 72,169	 3,083.45
KARCZEWSKI, LEO H JR	 07-24-A	 53,148	 153,616	 2,864.95
KARCZEWSKI, LEO H JR	 07-27-A	 1,295	 0	 21.11
KARCZEWSKI, LEO H JR	 07-30	 7,000	 0	 114.10
KARCZEWSKI, LEO H JR	 07-26	 10,445	 0	 170.25
KARCZEWSKI, LEO H JR	 07-24-B	 840	 0	 13.69
KEARNEY, JAMES W	 02-26-C	 36,920	 103,440	 1,880.37
KEARNEY, JAMES W	 02-26-C	 3,710	 0	 60.47
KEEFE, TIMOTHY J	 11-14-B	 9,210	 0	 150.12
KEEFE, TIMOTHY J	 11-14-C	 39,440	 3,500	 699.92
KEEFE, TIMOTHY J	 11-14-D	 6,090	 0	 99.27
KELLY, SANDRA M. & SHARON M.	 06-83	 33,700	 78,667	 1,424.08
KENEFICK, ERIC	 02-72	 24,750	 7,768	 530.04
KENEFICK, ERIC	 02-73	 35,450	 118,569	 2,510.51
KENEFICK, PAUL J	 06-91-D	 22,840	 0	 372.29
KENNARD CEMETERY	 04-13-F	 0	 0	 0.00
KENNARD, MICHELLE J	 04-13-D	 34,288	 64,194	 1,197.76
KENNARD, MICHELLE J	 04-13-E	 11,756	 0	 191.62
KENNEDY, ANNE	 09-34	 72,200	 158,943	 3,360.13
KENNEDY, ANNE	 09-34-B	 11,550	 0	 188.27
KENNEDY, ANNE	 09-36	 2,800	 0	 45.64
KENNEDY, KIRSTEN M	 19-37-C	 40,908	 78,195	 1,941.38
KENNEDY, NANNE	 09-12-A	 26,550	 0	 432.77
KERR-LEWIS, JEAN A	 12-08-B	 31,700	 17,000	 793.81
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KILBRETH, CAROL A	 13-21-A	 38,600	 117,772	 2,141.36
KINNEY, CHARLES D	 07-65-1	 0	 26,000	 0.00
KIRKLAND, HEATHER A	 09-43-B1	 8,266	 0	 134.74
KIRKPATRICK, KEVIN	 15-36	 38,600	 145,148	 2,587.59
KLEIN, KEITH	 13-54-A	 108,910	 196,115	 4,466.61
KNIESNER, DAVID W	 07-44	 37,200	 85,349	 1,590.05
KNIESNER, DAVID W	 07-45-A	 700	 0	 11.41
KNIGHT, ABRAHAM A	 07-36	 33,700	 1,500	 573.76
KNIGHT, FRANCES, ET. ALS.	 20-08	 64,250	 31,364	 1,558.51
KNIGHT, GILBERT JR	 20-09	 43,000	 0	 700.90
KNOWLTON, ANITA L	 07-56-A	 43,900	 181,530	 3,674.51
KNOWLTON, MILTON & WANDA	 18-30-B	 33,700	 17,369	 832.42
KNOWLTON, WILLIAM II	 13-16-B	 26,777	 28,308	 897.89
KNOX, JEFFREY	 07-67-D	 31,600	 0	 515.08
KNOX, JEFFREY R	 02-26-A	 37,200	 89,795	 1,662.52
KNOX-LINCOLN SOIL AND WATER	 09-13-A	 11,745	 0	 0.00
KNOX-LINCOLN SOIL AND WATER	 09-59-A	 29,455	 0	 0.00
KOCHES, ELLEN	 08-07	 33,700	 161,620	 2,776.22
KOPISHKE, HAZEL R	 14-08	 20,700	 0	 337.41
KOPISHKE, HAZEL R	 14-13	 58,750	 177,120	 3,437.18
KRANER, KEITH	 19-56	 100,950	 73,985	 2,851.44
KRAUS, CAROL E., TRUSTEE	 14-21	 49,100	 0	 800.33
KROESSER, JANICE L NELSON	 06-57-C	 40,000	 122,873	 2,247.33
KUNESH, KAREN A	 10-06-C	 33,910	 134,539	 2,338.22
KYNE, SANDRA J	 12-09-A	 38,383	 216,748	 3,751.14
LAAKA, THOMAS	 19-42	 87,750	 54,769	 2,323.06
LAAKA, THOMAS	 19-43	 13,200	 0	 215.16
LADD, STEPHEN A	 19-21	 88,450	 85,241	 2,831.16
LAILER, LANCE	 06-51	 33,700	 79,510	 1,845.32
LAMMA, LORI	 05-70	 69,450	 203,404	 4,040.02
LAMOTHE, ROBERT J	 10-43-B	 33,770	 161,378	 2,773.41
LANPHIER, CLAYTON S	 10-01-B	 34,470	 158,947	 2,745.20
LANPHIER, CLAYTON S	 10-01-C	 4,900	 0	 79.87
LASCOUTX, ANDRES	 15-04	 53,400	 128,409	 2,555.99
LASCOUTX, CHRISTOPHER &	
  ANDRES & CARLOS	 15-06	 35,800	 93,138	 1,596.39	
LASCOUTX, CHRISTOPHER &	
  ANDRES & CARLOS	 15-11	 13,500	 0	 220.05	
LASSELL, GERALD	 04-46	 45,850	 164,450	 3,427.89
LASSELL, GERALD	 04-46-C	 33,000	 204,604	 3,465.45
LAVIGNE, ANNE M	 06-73	 33,350	 79,381	 1,837.52
LAWSON, THOMAS A	 17-28-C	 52,865	 123,302	 2,366.22
LEASECOMM CORPORTATION	 	 0	 0	 0.00
LEAVITT, JACOLBY	 10-46-B	 35,660	 130,260	 2,297.00
LEDGER, BENJAMIN J	 10-43-C	 22,700	 0	 370.01
LEE, ANDREW G	 15-22	 31,500	 0	 513.45
LEE, ANDREW G	 13-12	 26,980	 88,014	 1,466.90
LEE, ANDREW G	 13-11-A	 1,400	 0	 22.82
LEE, ANDREW G	 13-05-H	 560	 0	 9.13
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LEE, ANDREW G	 13-11	 1,400	 0	 22.82
LEE, ANTHONY M	 07-48-C	 33,700	 164,393	 2,821.42
LEE, ANTHONY M	 07-48-E	 22,924	 0	 373.66
LEE, ANTHONY M	 07-48	 28,209	 0	 459.81
LEE, JESSICA G	 13-06-B	 30,102	 15,675	 338.67
LEE, RICHARD G	 13-06	 24,100	 0	 392.83
LEE, SARAH	 17-26	 38,600	 62,113	 1,641.62
LEIDENROTH, WILLIAM	 02-13-D	 33,350	 77,811	 1,811.92
LEIGH, ALFRED	 13-07-B	 7,000	 0	 114.10
LEIGH, ALFRED	 13-10	 56,300	 0	 917.69
LEIGH, ALFRED	 13-14	 12,850	 0	 209.46
LEIGH, ALFRED	 13-27	 26,000	 68,091	 1,126.18
LEIGH, ANGEL	 13-13	 26,000	 23,000	 391.20
LEIGH, CHERYL	 13-10-1	 0	 12,000	 0.00
LEIGH, DEREK	 13-10-2	 0	 11,000	 0.00
LEIGH, EARL	 12-07-A	 1,400	 0	 22.82
LEIGH, EARL E SR	 12-07	 35,670	 19,000	 891.12
LEIGH, EARL E SR	 12-36	 37,900	 79,300	 1,502.86
LEIGH, ELMER E JR	 15-23-A	 35,800	 15,622	 430.68
LEIGH, ERIKA	 13-26	 26,000	 10,000	 179.30
LEIGHTON, SHARON M	 02-44	 6,375	 0	 103.91
LEIGHTON, SHARON M	 02-64	 59,312	 115,473	 2,849.00
LEIGHTON, SHARON M	 02-65	 59,450	 151,049	 3,023.63
LEIGHTON, SHARON M	 02-46	 32,050	 0	 522.42
LEMIEUX, MICHELLE L	 14-24	 1,050	 0	 17.12
LEMIEUX, MICHELLE L	 14-14-A	 36,150	 147,380	 2,584.04
LEO, MELANIE S	 06-01-A	 33,700	 60,763	 1,539.75
LERMOND, ROBERT F JR	 02-38	 35,275	 118,391	 2,504.76
LERMOND, ROBERT F. TRUSTEE	 06-64-1	 138,000	 195,144	 5,430.25
LETOWSKI, JULIE	 18-27	 37,200	 230,582	 4,364.85
LEWIS, LEONARD C	 10-37	 38,600	 129,735	 2,336.36
LEWIS, LEONARD C	 10-37-B	 16,000	 104,445	 1,963.25
LIBBEY, RICHARD D	 18-25	 33,000	 88,546	 1,573.70
LIBBY, TINA M	 08-19-C	 43,250	 152,516	 2,783.49
LIBERMAN, PAUL A	 01-22-A	 38,250	 77,931	 1,486.25
LINSCOTT, BERKLEY	 02-53	 65,400	 131,526	 2,802.39
LINSCOTT, BERKLEY	 02-53-A	 175	 0	 2.85
LINSCOTT, BERKLEY	 02-56-A	 39,100	 140,177	 2,922.22
LINSCOTT, BERKLEY	 02-69-A	 23,225	 0	 378.57
LINSCOTT, BERKLEY & NANCY	 	 0	 0	 48.90
LINSCOTT, BERKLEY C	 05-05	 54,300	 12,232	 1,084.47
LINSCOTT, BERKLEY C	 05-06	 20,700	 0	 337.41
LINSCOTT, DARCI A	 05-68-B	 33,490	 60,328	 1,529.23
LINSCOTT, DARCI A	 05-44-B	 24,940	 0	 406.52
LINSCOTT, HARRISON L	 05-10-C	 34,680	 25,465	 980.36
LINSCOTT, HERBERT G	 06-26	 35,500	 0	 578.65
LINSCOTT, LLOYD	 05-44	 4,060	 0	 66.18
LINSCOTT, LLOYD	 05-44-C	 2,800	 0	 45.64
LINSCOTT, MAHLON A	 02-59	 34,750	 127,391	 2,235.40
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LINSCOTT, MAHLON A	 02-60	 4,200	 0	 68.46
LINSCOTT, MAHLON A. & BERKLEY C.	 20-41	 0	 0	 0.00
LINSCOTT, MAHLON A. & BERKLEY C.	 20-40	 81,090	 20,000	 1,647.77
LINSCOTT, RICHARD C	 05-10-D	 34,960	 109,479	 1,946.86
LINSCOTT, RICHARD C. TRUSTEE	 05-08	 4,900	 0	 79.87
LINSCOTT, RICHARD C. TRUSTEE	 05-10	 47,160	 0	 768.71
LINSCOTT, SHANNA L	 05-15-D	 36,850	 138,131	 2,444.69
LITTLE, JEFFREY G	 09-47-A	 33,140	 41,116	 802.87
LITTLE, PENELOPE M	 02-68-B	 40,559	 105,598	 2,382.36
LITTLE, SCOTT A	 05-57	 41,950	 128,316	 2,367.84
LITTLE, SCOTT A	 05-61	 22,500	 0	 366.75
LITTLE, SCOTT A	 05-50	 41,500	 0	 676.45
LITTLE, WILLIAM G	 09-47	 33,700	 131,866	 2,291.23
LITTLE, WILLIAM G	 09-58	 40,650	 10,000	 825.60
LITTLE, WILLIAM J	 07-13-A	 33,700	 32,318	 668.59
LLOY, DEDRE E	 06-74	 35,800	 83,988	 1,545.04
LOHNES, TIMOTHY J	 05-65	 36,850	 25,782	 1,020.90
LOPEZ, PAULA A	 06-61-A	 35,100	 23,650	 550.13
LORD, ANN E. TRUSTEE	 09-29	 0	 0	 0.00
LORD, ANN E. TRUSTEE	 02-14-D	 22,399	 0	 365.10
LORD, ANN E. TRUSTEE	 02-14	 25,689	 0	 418.73
LORD, ANN E. TRUSTEE	 02-14-A	 25,150	 0	 409.95
LOUGHRAN, STEVEN J	 09-65-A	 41,950	 141,090	 2,983.55
LOWE, SHEILA	 05-46	 37,900	 149,372	 2,645.03
LUCE, DAVID L	 20-19	 33,350	 99,446	 1,757.07
LUCE, JOYCE C	 05-51	 79,665	 176,326	 3,765.15
LUCE, LARRY W	 05-25	 87,400	 178,022	 3,821.08
LUCE, RONALD	 06-61-E	 34,400	 35,366	 631.89
LUDWIG, BARBARA A	 05-12	 56,400	 121,303	 2,489.06
LUDWIG, BARBARA A	 04-18	 108,090	 0	 1,761.87
LUDWIG, BARBARA A	 05-04-E	 9,600	 0	 156.48
LUDWIG, MICHAEL E	 18-37	 36,300	 97,000	 2,172.79
LUDWIG, MICHAEL E	 07-73-C	 22,700	 0	 370.01
M &M  EXCAVATION	 	 0	 0	 163.00
MAAS, JOHN S.	 12-08-F	 6,300	 0	 102.69
MAAS, JOHN S.	 12-10	 72,870	 137,200	 3,424.14
MAAS, JOHN S.	 12-10-A	 1,750	 0	 28.53
MACDONALD, CONOR E	 12-24-A	 7,000	 0	 114.10
MACFARLAND, BRIAN	 13-05	 17,170	 0	 279.87
MACFARLAND, BRIAN	 13-04-A	 20,068	 0	 327.11
MACMUNN, ALAN D	 07-63-A	 22,055	 0	 359.50
MACMUNN, ALAN D	 07-63-B	 1,675	 0	 27.30
MACMUNN, ALAN D	 07-68	 4,900	 0	 79.87
MACMUNN, ALAN D	 07-69	 35,800	 130,165	 2,199.93
MADDEN, ROBERT J	 08-12	 33,700	 136,427	 2,365.57
MADDEN, ROBERT J	 08-14-A	 1,225	 0	 19.97
MADDEN, ROBERT J	 08-17	 48,900	 188,735	 3,873.45
MADORE, PAMELA J	 07-72	 33,000	 97,811	 1,724.72
MAGEE, THOMAS Y JR	 09-55-C	 42,045	 140,178	 2,464.93
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MAINE ELECTRICAL POWER COMPANY	 15-15	 1,907,2	 0	 31,087.69
MAINE ELECTRICAL POWER COMPANY	 15-15	 461,250	 0	 7,518.38
MAINE ELECTRICAL POWER COMPANY	 17-11	 559,750	 0	 9,123.93
MAINE RECREATION & DESIGN	 13-48-A	 27,491	 5,153	 532.10
MANK, KIMBERLY B	 04-47-B	 34,400	 163,137	 2,812.35
MANK, PAUL	 02-15	 24,100	 0	 392.83
MANK, PHILIP	 07-74	 33,000	 82,518	 1,475.44
MANK, PHILIP W JR	 04-01-B	 25,745	 0	 419.64
MANK, TIMOTHY A	 06-29-A	 30,820	 98,369	 2,105.78
MANK, TIMOTHY A	 06-38	 33,000	 61,767	 1,544.70
MANK, TIMOTHY A	 06-49	 42,250	 4,116	 755.77
MANLEY, J PATRICK	 07-45	 2,600	 0	 42.38
MANLEY, J PATRICK	 07-46	 37,200	 153,007	 2,692.87
MANLEY, J PATRICK	 07-47-A	 2,800	 0	 45.64
MANLEY, J PATRICK	 07-48-A	 6,650	 0	 108.40
MANN, HENRY M O	 18-19	 33,350	 115,883	 2,025.00
MANSON, PATRICIA I	 06-18	 28,250	 0	 460.48
MANSON, PATRICIA I	 06-29	 40,688	 111,759	 2,077.39
MANSON, PATRICIA I	 06-18-B	 868	 0	 14.15
MARCOTTE, JEFFREY C	 04-18-5	 24,877	 20,896	 746.10
MARDER, CHARLES E	 05-26	 162,470	 279,008	 7,196.09
MARECK, PETER	 06-42-A	 38,434	 0	 626.47
MARIANO, JOSEPH A	 06-15	 38,740	 152,479	 2,709.37
MARITIME ENERGY, INC.	 02-74	 21,930	 0	 357.46
MARITIMES & NORTHEAST PIPELINE	 R.O.W.	 4,461,1	 0	 72,716.75
MARKS, ROBERT	 09-23	 0	 0	 0.00
MARKS, ROBERT	 09-23-A	 39,300	 132,490	 2,392.68
MARLIN LEASING	 	 0	 0	 0.00
MARSTON, FAUGHN III	 07-67-C	 24,940	 0	 406.52
MARTIN, KURT	 02-06-A	 33,798	 12,276	 751.01
MARTIN, MATTHEW	 15-34-C	 35,877	 78,846	 1,869.98
MARTIN, SARA D	 02-20	 33,000	 11,700	 321.11
MARTUCCI, DAVID B	 04-51	 8,625	 0	 140.59
MARTUCCI, DAVID B	 04-52	 37,690	 50,149	 1,024.28
MASSEY, F LANE	 02-39	 24,200	 6,561	 501.40
MASSEY, FRANKLIN L	 05-29	 57,900	 71,687	 2,112.27
MASTERS, ANDREW B	 08-29	 54,900	 127,298	 2,562.33
MATTINGLY, ELIZABETH F. HEIRS	 14-07	 33,350	 33,872	 1,095.72
MAYER PROPERTY, INC	 06-17	 161,756	 114,007	 4,494.94
MAYER, BARBARA E	 06-06	 8,805	 0	 143.52
MAYER, DONALD J	 05-26-A	 324	 0	 5.28
MAYER, DONALD J	 05-26-A	 2,911	 0	 47.45
MAYER, DONALD J	 05-26-A	 3,235	 0	 52.73
MAYER, EDWARD G JR	 15-30	 910	 0	 14.83
MAYER, WILLIAM	 15-35	 1,400	 0	 22.82
MAZZEO, EMILIO D JR	 17-25	 22,250	 1,329	 384.34
MCCAFFERY, SCOTT	 10-39	 43,900	 129,904	 2,425.51
MCCLOUGHAN, KELLY J	 04-36-B	 51,180	 327,235	 6,168.16
MCCLURE, JACOB	 02-61	 37,900	 102,321	 1,878.10
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MCCONNELL, MALCOLM S	 06-04-A	 110,840	 146,843	 4,200.23
MCENTEE, MAUREEN K	 14-26	 19,250	 0	 313.78
MCFARLAND, MATTHEW G	 02-02-A	 35,800	 36,699	 1,181.73
MCGRAY, TANYA	 13-06-A	 26,350	 107,883	 1,780.50
MCKENNEY, KAREN L	 15-02	 25,350	 15,235	 661.54
MCKENNEY, KAREN L	 15-08	 9,750	 0	 158.93
MCKENNEY, KAREN L	 15-13	 2,450	 0	 39.94
MCLAIN, DENNIS R	 19-49	 84,600	 108,436	 3,146.49
MCLAIN, DENNIS R	 19-50	 13,200	 3,420	 270.91
MCLAIN, GAVIN	 09-48	 58,388	 0	 951.72
MCLAIN, GAVIN R	 09-48-A	 33,700	 171,884	 2,943.52
MCLAIN, TAYLOR G	 10-02	 53,700	 163,898	 3,546.85
MCPHEE, DANIEL	 13-44	 108,000	 91,588	 2,845.78
MECCA, VINCENT R	 03-04-4	 17,608	 0	 287.01
MECCA, VINCENT R	 03-03	 37,900	 108,045	 1,971.40
MECCA, VINCENT, MARYANN & KRISTEN	 20-28	 93,000	 33,866	 2,067.92
MECHANICS SAVINGS BANK	 18-29	 2,063	 0	 33.63
MEDEIKA, PATRICIA E	 06-64-3	 163,000	 132,225	 4,404.67
MEDEIKA, PATRICIA E	 06-64-2	 87,000	 120,098	 3,375.70
MEDOMAK CAMPGROUND 
  LIMITED LIABIL	 	 0	 0	 130.40
MEDOMAK CAMPGROUND 
  LIMITED LIABILITY	 14-19	 173,533	 700,670	 14,249.51
MEDOMAK CAMPGROUND 
  LIMITED LIABILITY	 14-27	 36,241	 125,148	 2,630.64
MEDOMAK CAMPGROUND 
  LIMITED LIABILITY	 14-17-A	 51,340	 0	 836.84
MEDOMAK CAMPGROUND 
  LIMITED LIABILITY	 05-01	 463,444	 992,431	 23,730.76
MEDOMAK CAMPGROUND 
  LIMITED LIABILITY	 05-09	 22,000	 0	 358.60
MEDOMAK NORTHSHORE, LLC	 13-48-G	 6,352	 0	 103.54
MEDOMAK NORTHSHORE, LLC	 13-07-A	 9,784	 0	 159.48
MEDOMAK NORTHSHORE, LLC	 13-48-F	 331,145	 224,000	 9,048.86
MEDOMAK NORTHSHORE, LLC	 13-48-J	 4,169	 0	 67.95
MEKLIN, KARL M	 19-63	 157,600	 178,861	 5,484.31
MELGARD & MENZ LLC	 20-36	 118,000	 52,071	 2,772.16
MELGARD FAMILY TRUST	 13-35	 22,944	 0	 373.99
MELGARD FAMILY TRUST	 13-35-A	 6,884	 0	 112.21
MELGARD, MARY L	 13-48-B	 118,852	 290,288	 6,668.98
MELGARD, MARY L. TRUST	 13-47	 58,450	 0	 952.74
MELGARD, MILDRED	 04-43-A	 34,400	 85,444	 1,545.96
MELONIS, JOAN H	 15-03	 47,100	 121,782	 2,345.28
MENDLESON, ALAN N. JR.,	
  REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST	 13-48-L	 177,741	 287,752	 7,180.04	
MENDLESON, SUSAN	 13-48-I	 3,768	 0	 61.42
MENDLESON, SUSAN	 15-33	 0	 0	 0.00
MENDLESON, SUSAN	 14-01	 0	 0	 0.00
MENDLESON, SUSAN	 14-01-B	 0	 0	 0.00



	 TOWN OF WASHINGTON	 53

Owner	 Map Lot	 Land 	 Building	 2020 Tax
MENDLESON, SUSAN	 14-03-B	 0	 0	 0.00
MENDLESON, SUSAN	 14-01-A	 107,769	 190,729	 4,458.02
MERRIFIELD, CRAIG S	 06-45	 33,000	 91,827	 1,627.18
MERRIFIELD, MARY	 04-04	 7,650	 0	 124.70
MERRIFIELD, MARY	 04-05	 2,450	 0	 39.94
MERRIFIELD, MARY	 04-06	 17,325	 0	 282.40
MERRIFIELD, MARY	 04-07	 42,015	 108,821	 2,051.13
MERRIFIELD, MARY	 04-10	 6,353	 0	 103.55
MERRIFIELD, MARY	 06-28	 33,000	 58,845	 1,497.07
MERRILL, JAYNEE	 04-45-A	 35,800	 96,282	 2,152.94
MEUNIER, PHILIP M	 08-02	 49,400	 126,330	 2,359.10
MEUNIER, PHILIP M	 08-02-C	 7,325	 0	 119.40
MICHELSON, ANITA	 20-20	 33,511	 38,500	 1,173.78
MILLAR, CYNTHIA	 18-23	 33,000	 57,609	 1,476.93
MILLER, BARRY	 08-20	 33,000	 34,643	 695.08
MILLER, DANIEL	 07-08-A	 31,350	 0	 511.01
MILLER, JARED L	 18-07	 33,000	 99,219	 1,747.67
MILLER, PAUL G. & KARLA R. TRUST	 05-51-A	 42,600	 152,494	 2,674.73
MILLER, SCOTT DOUGLAS	 10-24	 36,500	 42,652	 1,290.18
MILLER, WAYNE A	 18-08	 33,350	 131,762	 2,283.83
MILLIKEN, ROBIN	 05-68-A	 33,490	 36,634	 1,143.02
MILLS, KENNETH J	 12-25	 10,900	 0	 177.67
MILLS, KENNETH J	 12-33	 123,100	 148,086	 4,012.83
MITCHELL, RAYMOND	 15-41	 96,263	 0	 1,569.09
MITCHELL, RAYMOND	 15-16	 9,600	 0	 156.48
MOLE, RONALD	 04-23	 25,080	 9,069	 556.63
MOLE, RONALD	 18-31	 33,000	 129,352	 2,238.84
MONZIONE, THERESA	 06-11-G	 33,000	 22,468	 904.13
MOODY, MICHELE A	 07-55	 34,750	 192,756	 3,300.85
MOON, JAYNE BARRETT	 20-11	 64,250	 8,899	 1,192.33
MOORE, MERTON	 02-11	 37,900	 175,093	 2,966.49
MOORE, RONALD I	 09-34-A	 35,800	 124,364	 2,203.17
MOORE-MILLER, VALERIE	 09-41	 26,095	 0	 425.35
MORAN, LINDA G	 13-42	 83,000	 32,900	 1,889.17
MORANG, SUSAN	 03-02	 42,600	 42,987	 987.57
MORANG, SUSAN	 03-04-5	 17,608	 0	 287.01
MORELAND, GLENN	 05-74	 23,750	 0	 387.13
MORGAN, DONALD J	 07-23	 65,050	 136,977	 2,885.54
MORGAN, JOEL W	 02-31	 8,040	 0	 131.05
MORGAN, JOEL W	 02-31-D	 36,850	 43,656	 904.75
MORGAN, JOSHUA E	 02-31-E	 37,900	 164,993	 2,899.66
MORRIS, BRIAN A	 02-14-C	 36,440	 248,639	 4,646.79
MORRISON, GORDON R	 06-05	 31,975	 0	 521.19
MORRISON, MARTHA H	 06-57	 41,300	 10,000	 836.19
MORRISSEY, LAURA J	 07-51	 33,000	 99,153	 1,746.59
MORTALI, ANDREW R	 03-04-3	 17,608	 0	 287.01
MORTALI, ANDREW R	 03-04-B	 31,600	 2,170	 550.45
MOSCATO, DANIEL P	 18-36-A	 350	 0	 5.71
MOSCATO, DANIEL P	 18-38	 33,000	 120,714	 2,098.04
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MOUNT OLIVET LODGE BUILDING CORP.	 05-26-C	 33,238	 252,105	 580.82
MYLES, GEORGE J JR	 09-14	 23,400	 0	 381.42
NASH, LAWRENCE F	 20-34	 79,800	 0	 1,300.74
NICHOLS, BRUCE	 08-13	 22,000	 0	 358.60
NOBSKA REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC	 05-04-A	 34,400	 20,293	 891.50
NOLON, DANIEL J	 15-43-A	 16,750	 0	 273.03
Northern Leasing Systems, Inc.	 	 0	 0	 0.00
NORTHRUP, LLC.	 01-25	 17,325	 0	 282.40
NORTHRUP, LLC.	 01-24	 11,425	 0	 186.23
NORTHRUP, LLC.	 01-17	 136,548	 0	 2,225.73
NORTON, DENNIS E	 19-34	 93,000	 55,224	 2,416.05
NORTON, DENNIS E	 06-61-B	 23,400	 0	 381.42
NUPPULA, JEREMY C	 17-28-J	 23,470	 0	 382.56
OAKES, MICHAEL	 07-24	 34,960	 108,652	 1,933.38
OCEAN, STEVEN H	 09-54-A	 36,850	 164,608	 2,876.27
ODELL, MARIANNE A	 06-07-A	 3,500	 7,706	 182.66
ODELL, MARIANNE A	 06-08	 163,600	 195,680	 5,448.76
O'DONNELL, MARCY R	 09-48-B	 34,400	 128,528	 2,248.23
OLMSTED, HALEY A	 09-19-B	 29,650	 0	 483.30
OLMSTED, STEVEN L	 09-19	 36,500	 152,392	 2,671.44
O'REILLY, ROBERT K	 06-11-E	 33,000	 76,976	 1,792.61
ORFF, BURTON G	 01-07	 89,250	 77,671	 2,720.81
ORFF, BURTON G	 01-10	 33,700	 79,555	 1,340.76
ORRICK, WILLIAM P JR	 07-42	 54,900	 105,991	 2,215.02
OSTRANDER, GARRETT A	 15-39	 37,760	 84,477	 1,584.96
OUELLETTE, FRANCIS C, JAMES M &	
  JASON M	 06-61-D	 31,310	 35,288	 1,085.55
OVERLOCK, KYLE M. & DAWN M. &	
  OLIVIA	 10-31-D	 35,814	 67,034	 1,268.92
OWEN, AUSTIN	 10-26-A	 33,700	 127,058	 2,212.86
PACKARD, CHRISTOPHER	 06-42	 41,043	 98,041	 2,267.07
PACKARD, CHRISTOPHER	 06-43	 10,952	 0	 178.52
PACKARD, CHRISTOPHER	 13-24	 46,700	 65,670	 1,424.13
PACKARD, PRISCILLA B	 04-15	 92,138	 32,940	 2,038.77
PACKARD, PRISCILLA B	 04-16	 9,600	 0	 156.48
PACKARD, PRISCILLA B	 04-15-A	 35,625	 147,395	 2,477.93
PALEY, NORMAN P	 09-46	 48,700	 0	 793.81
PALMER, BECKY L	 10-31-A	 22,700	 0	 370.01
PALMER, BECKY L	 10-31-B	 33,840	 124,439	 2,172.45
PARKER, PENNY	 18-28	 33,000	 69,099	 1,256.71
PARMENTER, THOMAS S	 14-11	 34,750	 110,896	 1,966.53
PARMLEY, CASSIDAY O	 18-10	 5,250	 0	 85.58
PARMLEY, CASSIDAY O	 18-14	 33,000	 118,167	 2,056.52
PARMLEY, CASSIDY	 18-13	 13,200	 2,000	 247.76
PAYSON, HAROLD III 2005 REV TRUST	 12-06	 9,570	 0	 155.99
PEABODY, BARRY	 05-80	 4,200	 0	 68.46
PEABODY, BARRY	 06-90	 37,900	 131,613	 2,355.56
PEABODY, BARRY	 06-90-B	 2,800	 0	 45.64
PEABODY, BONNIE MAY & MARY	 11-03-A	 33,700	 71,517	 1,307.54
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PEABODY, MARY	 11-03	 27,900	 0	 454.77
PEABODY, MARY	 11-16	 15,900	 0	 259.17
PEABODY, MARY	 11-17	 54,900	 0	 894.87
PEABODY, MARY	 11-20	 4,410	 0	 71.88
PEABODY, MARY	 19-71	 73,000	 81,065	 2,005.96
PEABODY, MARY	 06-65	 4,760	 18,863	 385.05
PEABODY, SCOTT A	 11-16-B	 33,700	 159,179	 2,736.43
PEASE, DANIEL S	 05-15	 1,400	 0	 22.82
PEASE, DANIEL S	 05-15-B	 3,500	 0	 57.05
PEASE, DANIEL S	 05-15-F	 28,500	 0	 464.55
PEASE, DANIEL S	 05-43-B	 37,200	 140,690	 2,492.11
PEASE, DANIEL S	 05-17	 23,050	 0	 375.72
PEASE, DOUGLAS E JR	 07-35	 34,400	 51,469	 992.16
PEASE, MICHAEL A	 15-01	 83,475	 0	 1,360.64
PEASE, NICHOLAS A	 07-62	 34,400	 132,321	 2,310.05
PEDRONE, MATTHEW T	 15-21	 43,740	 0	 712.96
PELLETIER, BETTE A	 18-20	 34,050	 85,323	 1,538.28
PELLETIER, CORY R	 09-27-A	 34,260	 108,638	 2,329.24
PENDLETON, DANIEL BURTON	 09-55	 35,590	 115,169	 2,049.87
PENDLETON, DONALD W	 05-23-A	 85,600	 42,251	 2,083.97
PERCY, ELLIS	 08-19-E	 33,700	 0	 549.31
PERCY, LYNN	 07-43-A	 33,000	 22,550	 497.97
PEREZ, TRAVIS L	 12-10-B	 28,552	 0	 465.40
PERRIN, KATHRYN L	 02-54	 34,050	 87,489	 1,573.59
PERRY FAMILY IRREVOCABLE TRUST	 10-20	 32,250	 0	 525.68
PERRY FAMILY IRREVOCALBE TRUST	 10-21	 4,900	 0	 79.87
PERRY, NOAH	 07-32	 22,000	 13,913	 177.88
PHILBROOK, DONALD C. JR. & LISA A. &	
  LUCY E.	 07-67-B	 25,878	 0	 421.81
PICCIRILLO, MAUREEN M	 11-12	 24,800	 0	 404.24
PIERCE, JOHN DAVID	 02-26	 39,440	 94,220	 1,771.16
PIERCE, MARY G	 05-20	 93,000	 64,729	 2,570.98
PIERCE, MARY G. ET AL. TRUSTEES	 05-22	 181,000	 302,247	 7,876.93
PIERPONT, CLINTON E	 08-15-A	 33,350	 37,962	 754.89
PIERPONT, TAYLOR	 08-15	 37,900	 107,082	 2,363.21
PIERPONT, WILLARD	 08-15-B	 24,100	 50,295	 1,212.64
PIERPONT, WILLARD	 02-31-B	 2,800	 0	 45.64
PIERPONT, WILLARD	 02-32	 24,900	 0	 405.87
PIERPONT, WILLARD	 02-45-A	 4,500	 0	 73.35
PIERPONT, WILLARD	 	 0	 0	 0.00
PIKE INDUSTRIES, INC.	 	 0	 0	 9,762.04
PIKE INDUSTRIES, INC.	 02-75	 927,783	 57,760	 16,064.35
PINCENCE, RICHARD J	 15-10	 25,122	 8,760	 552.28
PITCHER, BARRY	 02-71	 57,300	 70,322	 1,574.94
PITCHER, BARRY	 09-05	 37,300	 0	 607.99
PITCHER, BARRY	 10-36	 2,750	 0	 44.83
PITCHER, BARRY	 02-63	 38,500	 0	 627.55
PITCHER, BARRY	 08-25	 2,450	 0	 39.94
PITCHER, BARRY	 08-26	 3,350	 0	 54.61
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PITCHER, BARRY	 09-02	 1,452	 0	 23.67
PITCHER, BARRY	 09-10	 2,100	 0	 34.23
PITCHER, EVA	 09-06	 48,900	 106,164	 2,120.04
PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FIN.SERVICES	 	 0	 0	 0.00
PITNEY BOWES INC.	 	 0	 0	 0.00
PLANETA, JOSEPH J	 20-01	 89,700	 35,695	 2,043.94
PLATT, JONATHAN	 19-60	 112,950	 58,491	 2,794.49
PNC EQUIPMENT FINANCE, LLC	 	 0	 0	 0.00
PORESKY, MELISSA L	 09-67-C	 33,000	 80,729	 1,446.28
PORTER, MARK W	 15-12	 7,470	 0	 121.76
PORTER, MARK W	 15-07	 43,250	 114,860	 2,169.69
POTTER, BRIAN E	 05-67	 42,600	 149,076	 3,124.32
POTTER, THOMAS	 04-25-A	 39,510	 147,500	 2,640.76
POTTLE, JEFFREY C	 04-20-A	 34,477	 134,413	 2,345.41
PRATT, JERROD M	 16-12-A	 45,850	 152,272	 3,229.39
PRATT, JERROD M	 16-17	 2,100	 0	 34.23
PRATT, ROBERT B	 05-11-B	 34,960	 169,883	 2,931.44
PREST, ANTHONY T	 05-10-A	 33,070	 43,196	 1,243.14
PROCK MARINE COMPANY	 03-10	 35,255	 0	 574.66
PROCK MARINE COMPANY	 03-10-A	 62,350	 0	 1,016.31
PROCTOR, LORING SR	 09-43-A	 24,800	 0	 404.24
PURINGTON, CLIFFORD E	 06-57-B	 29,650	 1,100	 501.23
QUIRION, EDMUND J. & ANN V., TRUSTEES	 12-02	 25,500	 0	 415.65
RACKETT-ROSSETTI, SUSAN	 02-45	 26,300	 0	 428.69
RANDOLPH, PAUL	 14-05	 70,500	 87,653	 2,577.89
RANKIN, DIANE	 12-19-A	 33,350	 62,155	 1,149.23
RASH, PHILIP J	 09-52	 33,700	 52,787	 1,002.24
RAU, TORY	 10-06	 33,700	 59,000	 1,511.01
RAU, TORY	 10-08-B	 23,050	 0	 375.72
RAVELLI, DANTE	 04-44-A	 462	 0	 7.53
RAVELLI, DANTE	 04-44	 26,900	 0	 438.47
RAVELLI, DANTE	 04-45-C	 1,610	 0	 26.24
RAVELLI, DANTE	 04-49	 1,750	 0	 28.53
RAVELLI-STUDER, CHRIS	 04-44-1	 33,000	 66,384	 1,212.46
RAZORVILLE CHAPEL	 06-36	 16,500	 9,000	 0.00
REA/WILKES LIVING TRUST	 13-48-C	 150,770	 493,321	 10,498.68
READ, JOHN	 07-52	 33,000	 26,000	 554.20
REARDON, EDWARD & VIRGINIA	 	 0	 0	 48.90
REARDON, EDWARD JR	 05-27	 33,000	 31,653	 1,053.84
REARDON, EDWARD JR	 05-28	 93,520	 291,862	 5,874.23
RECORD IMAGING SERVICES, INC.	 09-69-B	 1,860	 0	 30.32
REDDEN, MARIE C	 08-31-B	 34,960	 147,620	 2,976.05
REDDISH, ROBERT T	 06-64-5	 102,900	 730	 1,689.17
REESE, ROBERT	 14-03-A	 38,208	 0	 622.79
REESE, ROBERT	 05-11-E	 16,486	 0	 268.72
REESE, ROBERT	 05-11-F	 18,547	 7,776	 429.06
REESE, ROBERT	 05-32	 4,764	 0	 77.65
REESE, ROBERT	 05-33	 7,940	 0	 129.42
REESE, ROBERT	 05-34	 4,764	 0	 77.65
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REESE, ROBERT	 20-06	 0	 0	 0.00
REESE, ROBERT	 20-13	 0	 0	 0.00
REESE, ROBERT	 20-16	 0	 0	 0.00
REESE, ROBERT	 05-11-C	 35,100	 54,025	 1,452.74
REESE, ROBERT	 20-14	 130,000	 24,626	 2,520.40
REESE, ROBERT	 20-10	 0	 0	 0.00
REESE, ROBERT	 20-15-A	 27,000	 0	 440.10
REESE, ROBERT	 17-20	 47,043	 0	 766.80
REESE, ROBERT	 05-36	 20,647	 0	 336.55
REESE, ROBERT	 05-59-B	 26,139	 0	 426.07
REESE, ROBERT	 14-04-A	 1,536	 0	 25.04
REESE, ROBERT	 05-30-A	 9,739	 0	 158.75
REESE, ROBERT	 05-12-C	 15,566	 0	 253.73
REESE, ROBERT	 05-12-D	 0	 0	 0.00
REILLY, KEITH	 13-06-F	 28,331	 52,426	 908.84
Rent-Way, Inc.	 	 0	 0	 0.00
REYNOLDS, STEVEN G	 06-51-A	 35,100	 124,865	 2,199.93
REYNOLDS, TYLER E BRANN	 17-21	 46,029	 0	 750.27
RHINEHART, ELIZABETH	 06-89	 33,000	 51,146	 964.08
RHODA, PAUL	 03-06	 15,450	 0	 251.84
RHODA, PAUL	 04-38	 35,800	 133,568	 2,353.20
RHODES, ELIZABETH	 06-82-A	 26,420	 179,784	 2,953.63
RHODES, LINCOLN & MOODY	 06-82	 35,100	 66,665	 1,153.47
RHODES, LINCOLN & MOODY	 06-81	 7,000	 0	 114.10
RHODES, TIMOTHY TESTAMENTARY I.S. TRUST	09-44	 33,000	 45,279	 1,275.95
RHODES, WILLIAM A	 06-33	 33,000	 49,303	 934.04
RIBAR, DOROTHY E	 02-31-C	 26,000	 20,900	 356.97
RICE, PAUL D	 06-27	 34,400	 58,037	 1,099.22
RIDEOUT, JOHN	 06-52-A	 33,840	 126,616	 2,207.93
RIDEOUT, JOHN	 06-52-B	 23,330	 3,850	 443.03
RIDEOUT, TRAVIS	 08-31-E	 34,960	 136,836	 2,392.77
RILEY, LEANNE DIBENEDETTI	 10-22	 43,500	 92,397	 1,807.62
RIPLEY, ADAM L	 19-32	 33,525	 200,894	 3,413.53
RIPLEY, ADELE C	 04-20-B	 34,442	 109,403	 1,937.17
RIPLEY, JESSICA	 19-16	 77,500	 81,786	 2,596.36
ROBERTS, DEBORAH R.	 07-48-D	 34,960	 191,159	 3,278.24
ROBINSON, JANE	 04-36-A	 33,000	 30,267	 623.75
ROBINSON, THOMAS L	 04-35-C	 33,550	 13,000	 351.27
ROCCO, GENNARD	 08-31	 24,275	 0	 395.68
ROCCO, GENNARD	 08-31-G	 41,625	 306,057	 5,667.22
ROGACHOFF, EVERETT	 05-82	 34,400	 86,011	 1,555.20
ROGENSKI, WILLIAM L	 04-22	 39,300	 73,247	 1,427.02
ROGERS, MARY H	 06-04-12	 1,952	 0	 31.82
ROGERS, MARY HIBBERT, TRUSTEE	 06-12-4	 22,350	 1,100	 382.24
ROGERS, WILLIAM O IV	 07-07	 52,300	 0	 852.49
ROGOWSKI, DANIEL	 11-01-A	 34,400	 121,449	 2,132.84
RONAN, JOHN H	 06-47	 1,050	 0	 17.12
RONAN, JOHN H	 19-04	 107,750	 80,786	 3,073.14
ROTCH, A L	 15-24	 76,763	 0	 1,251.24
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ROTCH, EDWARD C	 16-03	 89,800	 49,000	 2,262.44
ROTCH, EDWARD C	 16-04	 4,900	 0	 79.87
ROTCH, EDWARD C	 16-06	 7,541	 0	 122.92
ROTCH, EDWARD C	 16-07	 68,377	 235,274	 4,542.01
ROTCH, EDWARD C	 16-11	 7,000	 0	 114.10
ROTCH, EDWARD C	 16-13	 17,700	 0	 288.51
ROTCH, EDWARD C	 16-16	 51,505	 0	 839.53
ROTCH, EDWARD C	 	 0	 0	 798.70
ROY, MICHAEL E	 06-48	 118,000	 63,000	 2,950.30
RUBENSTEIN, RUSSELL	 06-72	 34,750	 31,197	 667.44
RUSSO, 126 PRESCOTT ROAD TRUST	 06-11-D	 33,000	 85,719	 1,935.12
SABIEN, SUNDAY	 06-67	 38,600	 12,512	 425.63
SAGER, KENNETH	 04-18-7	 24,814	 0	 404.47
SAGER, KENNETH	 04-18-8	 35,870	 175,886	 2,848.52
SAINIO, GARY S	 07-65	 61,800	 127,944	 2,685.33
SAINIO, GARY S	 19-46	 57,150	 0	 931.55
SAINIO, HENRY	 14-09	 52,500	 68,961	 1,474.51
SAINIO, HENRY	 14-10	 5,100	 0	 83.13
SAINIO, TARA S	 07-65-A	 35,800	 155,282	 2,707.14
SANBORN, PHILIP	 12-05	 700	 0	 11.41
SANBORN, PHILIP	 12-06-D	 38,950	 75,739	 1,461.93
SANBORN, STEVEN	 12-06-E	 37,200	 23,294	 480.75
SANCHEZ, SARAH M	 13-06-C	 19,130	 0	 311.82
SAUNDERS, LEE M	 11-23	 30,300	 0	 493.89
SAUNDERS, LEE M	 11-22	 5,000	 0	 81.50
SAWYER, STEPHEN J	 07-15-B	 33,910	 70,880	 1,300.58
SCARPONI, MEGAN A	 06-57-H	 35,800	 132,882	 2,342.02
SCHLICKER, LEON M	 10-13	 44,550	 157,570	 2,789.26
SCHMIDT, LEROY J	 11-25	 35,300	 0	 575.39
SCHMIDT, LISA	 05-45-A	 34,750	 13,616	 788.37
SCHMITT, DOROTHEA	 09-45	 38,600	 170,810	 3,005.88
SCHNUR, REBECCA	 10-02-A	 36,500	 189,412	 3,274.87
SCHOOL ADMINISTRATIVE DISTRICT NO. 40	 07-53	 10,250	 0	 0.00
SCHOOL ADMINISTRATIVE DISTRICT NO. 40	 07-54	 68,100	 900,000	 0.00
SCHROYER, FRANCES TRUST	 11-04	 39,338	 0	 641.21
SCIENTIFIC GAMES INTERNATIONAL	 	 0	 0	 32.60
SCRIBNER, DONALD JR	 07-27	 34,400	 29,545	 634.80
SEAVEY, KEITH A	 04-03	 36,500	 26,254	 615.39
SECOND ADVENT ASSOCIATION	 05-38	 20,700	 15,000	 581.91
SECOND ADVENT ASSOCIATION	 05-40	 55,500	 136,600	 3,131.23
SENECHAL, NORMAN J	 12-38	 33,700	 96,537	 1,715.36
SHAGGY, MICHAEL	 08-27	 37,200	 78,088	 1,373.89
SHAGGY, THOMAS W	 08-28-A	 34,050	 38,924	 781.98
SHANE, LEE	 16-14	 48,420	 208,922	 3,787.17
SHANE, LEE	 15-04-A	 23,750	 0	 387.13
SHANNON, LINDA	 05-46-A	 24,590	 0	 400.82
SHANTZ, RHONDA WELLMAN	 09-35	 34,750	 81,993	 1,902.91
SHARP, LISA A	 04-25	 36,990	 67,206	 1,290.89
SHARP, LISA A	 04-24	 22,510	 1,000	 383.21
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SHENETT, DANIEL	 15-37	 33,000	 13,000	 749.80
SHENETT, THERESA	 15-34-A	 34,050	 0	 555.02
SHEPPARD, DAVID L	 16-12-B	 33,630	 136,404	 2,364.05
SHERIN, EREK S	 06-70	 39,300	 228,912	 3,964.36
SHUMAN, JOANNE I	 05-21	 82,000	 0	 1,336.60
SHUMAN, JOANNE L	 07-73-B	 22,700	 0	 370.01
SILVERMAN, ALLAN E	 09-67-B	 33,000	 80,729	 1,853.78
SILVERMAN, RONALD D	 09-67	 67,250	 0	 1,096.18
SILVERMAN, RONALD D	 09-67-A	 28,300	 0	 461.29
SILVIA, LAURA	 14-05-A	 33,630	 128,152	 2,229.55
SIMON, RICHARD	 09-07-A	 42,400	 295,605	 5,509.48
SIMON, RICHARD	 09-07	 28,440	 0	 463.57
SIMON, RICHARD	 09-08	 6,710	 0	 109.37
SIMON, RICHARD	 	 0	 0	 326.00
SIMONTON, RICHARD S	 10-35-A	 35,800	 26,000	 599.84
SIMS, TAMMIE J	 02-26-D	 35,800	 59,059	 1,138.70
SINCLAIR, AILEEN	 16-08	 64,000	 46,927	 1,400.61
SKELTON, GLENICE I	 06-71	 3,990	 0	 65.04
SKELTON, GLENICE T	 06-71-A	 24,940	 651	 417.13
SKINNER, GORDON & MARY	 19-23	 75,250	 20,988	 1,568.68
SKINNER, GORDON & MARY	 19-28	 13,200	 0	 215.16
SLATTERY, SANDRA A. TRUSTEE	 14-25	 19,900	 0	 324.37
SMITH, CAROLYN D	 19-55	 97,950	 94,779	 3,141.48
SNAP-ON CREDIT LLC	 	 0	 0	 0.00
SNYDER, KURT D	 04-11-2	 41,982	 0	 684.31
SNYDER, TODD R	 15-01-A	 32,575	 0	 530.97
SOE S TRUST	 06-63	 24,870	 0	 405.38
SORGI, CHRISTIAN	 15-43	 15,966	 0	 260.25
SORRENTINO, MICHAEL	 06-91-B	 40,920	 133,119	 2,429.34
SOUZA, RICHARD J	 06-13	 56,100	 90,448	 2,388.73
SPAHR, DAVID L	 07-21-B	 40,000	 79,488	 1,540.15
SPAHR, DAVID L	 02-13-A	 29,325	 0	 478.00
SPAHR, KENNETH L. HEIRS	 07-21-A	 1,050	 0	 17.12
SPAHR, KENNETH L. HEIRS	 02-13	 56,635	 0	 923.15
SPAHR, KENNETH L. HEIRS	 07-21	 7,325	 0	 119.40
SPEAR, ANNETTE J	 02-55-A	 34,050	 67,330	 1,244.99
SRB HOMES LLC	 06-46-A	 11,000	 0	 179.30
SROKA, LAUREN	 08-02-A	 40,325	 172,560	 3,062.53
STARK, JAMES	 05-16	 11,980	 622	 205.41
STARK, JAMES	 05-15-A	 33,980	 109,604	 1,835.12
STATE OF MAINE	 03-25	 1,400	 0	 0.00
STATE OF MAINE	 03-13	 106,650	 565,000	 0.00
STATE OF MAINE	 03-14	 15,900	 0	 0.00
STATE OF MAINE	 03-16	 2,100	 0	 0.00
STATE OF MAINE	 03-17-A	 700	 0	 0.00
STEELE, JACQUELINE	 02-21	 15,400	 10,122	 416.01
STEINMEYER, ROBERT	 02-05	 38,250	 22,550	 583.54
STEINMEYER, VERONA	 02-11-A	 21,500	 0	 350.45
STEINMEYER, VERONA	 02-11-C	 24,800	 0	 404.24
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STENGER, AFTON B	 19-35	 99,000	 36,964	 2,216.21
STEVENS, ANGELA R	 17-28-B	 44,540	 106,276	 2,050.80
STEWART, JOHN P	 02-23	 33,000	 82,038	 1,369.82
STEWART, MALCOLM I	 06-09-A	 119,800	 148,053	 3,958.50
STOKOWSKI, JAMES J	 19-62	 97,950	 66,093	 2,673.90
STREET, PHILIP D	 11-10	 35,100	 139,084	 2,431.70
STUART, PETER	 09-12-D	 36,290	 142,798	 2,511.63
SUKEFORTH ANGELS CEMETERY	 02-68-D	 2,000	 0	 0.00
SUKEFORTH, LARRY G	 11-19-B	 35,940	 13,260	 801.96
SUKEFORTH, LARRY G	 02-68-C	 7,500	 9,621	 279.07
SUKEFORTH, LARRY G	 01-15	 7,000	 0	 114.10
SUKEFORTH, LARRY G	 01-16	 3,850	 0	 62.76
SUKEFORTH, LARRY G	 02-68-A	 33,000	 75,335	 1,765.86
SUKEFORTH, LARRY G. & WANDA F.	 	 0	 0	 244.50
SUKEFORTH, RALPH HEIRS	 02-68	 189,147	 13,284	 3,299.63
SWEET, FREDERICK	 15-14	 700	 0	 11.41
SWEET, FREDERICK	 15-09	 32,900	 0	 536.27
TALBERG, ROBERT	 04-40	 33,700	 15,613	 396.30
TATARSKY, IEVA	 04-47-A	 39,300	 171,706	 3,031.90
TATARSKY, IEVA	 04-48-A	 6,300	 0	 102.69
TAYLOR, DAMION A	 05-68-D	 34,498	 133,932	 2,745.41
TAYLOR, IAN LANCE	 15-25	 19,500	 0	 317.85
TAYLOR, IAN LANCE	 15-26	 60,300	 191,166	 3,691.40
TAYLOR, IAN LANCE	 15-28	 17,700	 0	 288.51
TAYLOR, IAN LANCE	 15-40	 6,300	 0	 102.69
TAYLOR, PETER W	 07-50	 33,700	 181,759	 3,006.68
TAYLOR, PETER W	 07-49	 700	 0	 11.41
TAYLOR, PETER W	 07-20-A	 15,020	 0	 244.83
TAYLOR, RONALD	 06-66-A	 1,155	 0	 18.83
TAYLOR, RONALD	 06-55-A	 35,100	 135,670	 2,376.05
TAYLOR, TIMOTHY	 09-19-A	 33,140	 148,913	 2,559.96
THERIAULT, CHRISTINE A	 09-53	 33,000	 68,218	 1,242.35
THIBODEAU, LEO	 04-13-C	 35,485	 130,918	 2,304.87
THIBODEAU, LEO	 04-13-I	 4,242	 0	 69.14
THOMPSON, ANDREW L	 02-37	 33,000	 25,802	 550.97
THOMPSON, RICHARD O	 09-63-C	 18,300	 0	 298.29
TIAA COMMERCIAL FINANCE, INC.	 	 0	 0	 65.20
TILL, JAMES C. ET. ALS	 19-69	 73,000	 85,905	 2,590.15
TIMBERLAKE, RONALD F JR	 03-19	 33,000	 83,628	 1,493.54
TIMBERLAKE, RONALD F JR	 03-25-A	 660	 0	 10.76
TITUSSINACROW, LLC	 04-39	 22,770	 0	 371.15
TOLMAN, GREGORY D	 04-18-A	 35,800	 93,683	 1,703.07
TOLMAN, GREGORY D	 04-18-C	 1,540	 0	 25.10
TOWN OF WALDOBORO	 11-01	 294,025	 0	 4,792.61
TOWN OF WASHINGTON	 10-48-A	 700	 0	 0.00
TOWN OF WASHINGTON	 18-21	 22,000	 0	 0.00
TOWN OF WASHINGTON	 07-01	 95,225	 158,500	 0.00
TOWN OF WASHINGTON	 12-07-B	 25,920	 0	 0.00
TOWN OF WASHINGTON	 13-34	 381,200	 0	 0.00
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TOWN OF WASHINGTON	 18-11	 22,000	 0	 0.00
TOWN OF WASHINGTON	 19-12	 82,000	 0	 0.00
TOWN OF WASHINGTON	 09-50-A	 16,500	 0	 0.00
TOWN OF WASHINGTON	 05-72	 22,700	 0	 0.00
TOWN OF WASHINGTON	 05-73	 66,000	 690,000	 0.00
TOWN OF WASHINGTON	 07-48-H	 2,000	 0	 0.00
TOWN OF WASHINGTON	 10-31-G	 2,000	 0	 0.00
TOWN OF WASHINGTON	 10-29	 2,000	 0	 0.00
TOWN OF WASHINGTON	 06-32	 33,637	 0	 0.00
TOWN OF WASHINGTON	 02-17	 1,100	 0	 0.00
TOWN OF WASHINGTON	 06-30	 150,000	 0	 0.00
TRACY, LISA	 07-12	 53,400	 0	 870.42
TUCKER, CHARLES W	 16-01	 47,450	 0	 773.44
TUCKER, CHARLES W	 16-02	 43,250	 161,266	 2,926.11
TURFFS, JOSEPH P	 09-01-L	 0	 20,000	 0.00
TURFFS, L KIM	 10-52	 34,050	 72,668	 1,332.00
TURFFS, L KIM	 09-01	 24,800	 0	 404.24
TURNER FAMILY TRUST	 02-10	 2,200	 0	 35.86
TURNER, ARNOLD	 12-13	 45,200	 1,000	 753.06
TURNER, ARNOLD	 13-31	 32,250	 0	 525.68
TURNER, ARNOLD	 13-31-A	 1,400	 0	 22.82
TURNER, DAVID	 06-55	 37,900	 81,524	 1,539.11
TURNER, DAVID L	 12-34	 31,830	 0	 518.83
TURNER, DAVID L	 09-37	 33,700	 85,203	 1,938.12
TURNER, SHARON	 13-49	 3,500	 0	 57.05
TURNER, SHARON	 12-19	 59,086	 43,900	 1,271.17
TURNER, STEVEN J	 15-29	 33,700	 111,016	 2,358.87
TURNER, STEVEN J	 15-33-A	 3,990	 0	 65.04
TUTTLE, RUBEN	 02-11-D	 48,500	 141,976	 3,104.76
U.S. BANK TRUST, N.A. TRUSTEE	 04-18-4	 36,234	 181,373	 3,546.99
UPCRAFT, JOHN G	 19-37-B	 40,908	 78,195	 1,941.38
UPCRAFT, M LEE	 19-37-A	 20,454	 39,099	 970.71
UPHAM, LINDA J	 02-42	 350	 0	 5.71
UPHAM, LINDA J	 02-43	 70,220	 179,345	 3,660.41
UPHAM, REGINALD M II	 02-41	 43,120	 26,517	 727.58
VALLE, FORRESTER B	 05-76	 32,340	 64,131	 1,067.18
VANNER, CHARLES	 10-16	 19,209	 0	 313.11
VANNER, CHARLES	 10-17	 30,180	 0	 491.93
VANNER, CHARLES	 10-18	 25,750	 0	 419.73
VANNER, CHARLES	 10-19	 2,640	 0	 43.03
VANNER, CHARLES	 10-33	 18,453	 0	 300.78
VANNER, CHARLES	 10-34	 6,600	 0	 107.58
VANNER, CHARLES	 10-35	 51,850	 115,598	 2,321.90
VANNER, CHARLES	 11-18	 19,500	 0	 317.85
VANOUS, DIANE M	 19-53	 97,800	 59,224	 2,151.99
VERNESONI, APRIL R	 02-66	 35,800	 13,650	 398.54
VETERANS HOME ASSOCIATION, INC.	 06-44	 33,000	 145,263	 0.00
VICKERMAN, ELIZABETH	 04-01-A	 23,225	 0	 378.57
VIGNA, JORDAN R	 15-10-B	 25,759	 0	 419.87
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VIGUE, ANTHONY	 05-22-A	 127,700	 0	 2,081.51
VIGUE, CATHERINE M	 05-37	 38,700	 324,624	 5,514.68
VIGUE, CHRISTOPHER	 05-40-A	 34,750	 112,580	 1,993.98
VIGUE, DUANE P	 05-48	 33,651	 56,462	 1,468.84
VIGUE, DUANE P	 05-54	 700	 0	 11.41
VIGUE, DUANE P	 05-55	 40,975	 67,919	 1,774.97
VIGUE, DUANE P	 05-56	 2,950	 0	 48.09
VIGUE, DUANE P	 05-47	 33,560	 62,698	 1,569.01
VIGUE, DUANE P	 05-37-D	 23,400	 0	 381.42
VIGUE, RICHARD E	 19-19	 77,500	 70,789	 2,417.11
VIGUE, TIMOTHY L	 05-69-A	 33,000	 96,081	 1,696.52
VIGUE, TIMOTHY L	 05-69-C	 1,155	 0	 18.83
VIGUE, TIMOTHY L	 05-69-B	 34,400	 82,988	 1,913.42
VILLAGE CHURCH OF WASHINGTON	 18-40	 33,000	 95,000	 0.00
VILLAGE CHURCH OF WASHINGTON	 05-70-A	 420	 0	 0.00
VINAL, CHRISTOPHER D	 05-44-A	 34,400	 22,467	 519.43
VOGEL, DONALD E	 19-15	 116,000	 64,869	 2,540.66
W. R. RHEA ASSOCIATES, INC.	 07-67-F	 0	 0	 384.50
WADE, FELICIA A	 05-79	 35,600	 84,226	 1,953.16
WADSWORTH, LAURIE L	 10-26-B	 33,700	 27,826	 595.37
WARD, NANCY A	 08-05	 37,200	 44,692	 1,334.84
WARE, RICHARD C	 18-06	 34,190	 63,717	 1,188.38
WARE, WENDALL, SR.	 06-86	 4,200	 0	 68.46
WARE, WENDELL	 18-01	 1,400	 0	 22.82
WARE, WENDELL	 18-04	 33,700	 89,824	 1,605.94
WASHINGTON HISTORICAL SOCIETY	 06-47-A	 19,800	 85,000	 0.00
WASHINGTON HISTORICAL SOCIETY	 06-54-B	 11,880	 15,000	 0.00
WASHINGTON LAKE, LLC	 	 0	 0	 97.80
WASHINGTON LAKE, LLC	 06-31	 572,220	 1,174,900	 28,478.06
WASHINGTON LAKE, LLC	 06-37	 40,650	 99,900	 2,290.97
WASHINGTON LAKE, LLC	 06-37-A	 56	 25,000	 408.41
WASHINGTON LAKE, LLC	 06-37-B	 35,800	 43,000	 1,284.44
WASHINGTON LAKE, LLC	 06-41	 145,000	 0	 2,363.50
WASHINGTON LAKE, LLC	 06-47-D	 2,100	 0	 34.23
WASHINGTON PROPERTIES, INC.	 18-35	 33,329	 0	 543.26
WASHINGTON PROPERTIES, INC.	 18-33	 33,000	 131,000	 2,673.20
WASHINGTON PROPERTIES, INC.	 18-36	 4,256	 0	 69.37
WATIER, CAROL A. ET ALS.	 04-17	 25,500	 0	 415.65
WEARE, DONNA	 07-70	 36,500	 126,015	 2,241.49
WEINER, LEONARD C	 06-02	 114,848	 286,865	 6,140.42
WELLMAN, HENRY HEIRS	 06-57-F	 35,100	 38,548	 1,200.46
WELLMAN, RONALD O	 09-25-A	 41,210	 171,348	 3,057.20
WELLS FARGO VENDOR FIN SER	 	 0	 0	 0.00
WELZEL, ANDREW T	 06-02-A	 114,750	 151,461	 4,339.24
WENTWORTH, WENDELL R	 15-38	 33,070	 140,779	 2,426.24
WENTWORTH, WENDELL R	 15-39-A	 980	 0	 15.97
WERNER LARRY C.	 13-09	 54,200	 0	 883.46
WERNER, JOSEPH A	 17-18-A	 17,800	 300	 295.03
WERNER, LARRY C	 17-17	 16,020	 0	 261.13
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Owner	 Map Lot	 Land 	 Building	 2020 Tax
WERNER, LARRY C	 15-05	 32,050	 0	 522.42
WERNER, LARRY C	 16-15	 9,470	 0	 154.36
WERNER, LARRY C	 17-02	 0	 0	 0.00
WERNER, LARRY C	 17-03	 40,535	 0	 660.72
WERNER, LARRY C	 17-07	 34,800	 0	 567.24
WERNER, LARRY C	 17-08	 27,900	 0	 454.77
WERNER, LARRY C	 17-09	 26,100	 0	 425.43
WERNER, LARRY C	 17-10	 4,900	 0	 79.87
WERNER, LARRY C	 17-15	 51,850	 0	 845.16
WERNER, LARRY C	 17-18	 2,800	 0	 45.64
WERNER, LARRY C	 17-24-A	 41,300	 60,961	 1,259.35
WERNER, LAWRENCE C	 16-14-A	 32,120	 0	 523.56
WERNER, LAWRENCE C	 17-23-B	 25,800	 0	 420.54
WERNER, LAWRENCE C	 17-23-A	 30,120	 0	 490.96
WERNER, LAWRENCE C	 17-23-C	 25,620	 0	 417.61
WESCOTT, DORIS E	 09-63	 33,000	 69,000	 1,255.10
WESCOTT, RICHARD J	 09-63-B	 35,800	 22,501	 950.31
WHEELER, MORGAN	 09-30	 37,200	 80,585	 1,919.90
WHELAN, RICHARD H	 18-30-A	 22,700	 0	 370.01
WHITE, BENJAMIN B	 12-18	 42,690	 96,698	 2,272.02
WHITE, BENJAMIN B	 13-38	 37,000	 0	 603.10
WHITE, BENJAMIN B	 13-40	 72,000	 0	 1,173.60
WHITE, BRIAN J	 06-53	 30,424	 200	 499.17
WHITE, THE WHITE TRUST	 14-16	 47,675	 0	 777.10
WHITE, THE WHITE TRUST	 14-22	 21,575	 0	 351.67
WHITTIER, HELEN	 13-25	 34,400	 130,430	 2,181.43
WIDDECOMBE-BEAL, ESTELLE	 06-74-A	 24,800	 0	 404.24
WIDDECOMBE-BEAL, ESTELLE	 06-57-E	 42,600	 146,041	 2,667.35
WILKINSON, MARK	 19-20	 80,643	 156,587	 3,866.85
WILKINSON, MARK	 19-31	 31,680	 90,361	 1,989.27
WILLIAMS, DAVID A	 07-56	 34,225	 134,259	 2,746.29
WILLIAMS, DAVID A	 07-25	 33,700	 109,644	 2,336.51
WILLIAMS, DAVID B	 06-40	 118,000	 55,496	 2,827.98
WILLIAMS, DAVID B	 12-29	 5,600	 0	 91.28
WILLIAMS, DAVID B	 13-02-A	 33,700	 108,061	 1,903.20
WILLIAMS, DAVID B	 06-01	 35,100	 39,672	 1,218.78
WILLIAMS, JAMES M	 02-11-E	 35,940	 93,333	 1,699.65
WILLIAMSON, JOHN E	 13-41	 83,600	 29,000	 1,835.38
WILLIAMSON, RAYMOND A	 20-31	 33,700	 124,438	 2,577.65
WILLIS, MICHAEL S	 16-15-A	 35,240	 92,709	 1,580.27
WILSON, WILLIAM D	 04-28-A	 34,750	 52,020	 909.05
WILSON, WILLIAM D	 04-26-B	 3,003	 0	 48.95
WINCHENBACH, TIMOTHY	 07-59	 36,500	 73,494	 1,385.40
WINCHENBAUGH, PAUL	 08-31-D	 34,960	 137,275	 2,399.93
WIRTZ, LINDA HEIRS	 18-12	 2,640	 0	 43.03
WIRTZ, LINDA HEIRS	 18-24	 36,500	 118,971	 2,534.18
WITHEE, GLORIA J	 19-18	 79,750	 68,873	 2,015.05
WITHEE, GLORIA J	 19-27	 13,200	 0	 215.16
WOODEN, SHANNON R	 15-31	 33,700	 68,621	 1,260.33
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Owner	 Map Lot	 Land 	 Building	 2020 Tax
WOODMAN, JEFFREY MARC	 20-35	 96,300	 172,042	 4,373.97
WOODY CREEK HILLS, LLC	 17-22-E	 47,014	 253,760	 4,902.62
WORG, LLC	 08-08-A	 33,000	 18,742	 843.39
WORTHINGTON, PETER L	 13-53	 109,400	 219,552	 4,954.42
WRIGHT, SHARON A	 12-08-E	 44,470	 184,863	 3,330.63
YORK, NICHOLE R	 09-15	 700	 0	 11.41
YORK, NICHOLE R	 09-17	 44,550	 146,371	 3,112.01
YORK, WENDY L	 06-67-A	 35,100	 102,044	 1,827.95
YOUNG, ROBERT LE	 10-47	 33,700	 137,428	 2,381.89
ZACCADELLI, ANTHONY III	 04-45-B	 23,300	 0	 379.79
ZACCADELLI, WALTER J JR	 09-51	 40,618	 93,561	 1,779.62
ZEIGLER, CYD	 11-06-A	 5,563	 0	 90.68
ZEIGLER, CYD	 11-13	 61,925	 400,440	 7,129.05
ZEIGLER, CYD	 12-40	 8,224	 0	 134.05
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Registrar of Voters
It was an eventful year to take over as Registrar of Voters! Thanks to 

Denise Hylton for all of her hard work over the years. Washington began the 
year with 1,222 registered voters and ended with 1,265. 

The first election of the year was held on March 3 for the Presidential 
Primary and the People’s Veto of Rank Choice Voting. Since one needed to 
be enrolled in a party to vote in a Primary, business at the window was brisk. 
Turnout was impressive with 532 votes cast. Democratic and Republican 
Caucuses were also held. The Rank Choice Veto was not passed, so Maine 
remains the first state in the country to vote using Rank Choice Voting in a 
Federal Election.

The Primary was closely followed by COVID-19 and all of the 
restrictions that came with it. We were unable to gather at the usual time at the 
end of March for the annual Town Meeting and Election. We held the Town 
Election on July 14 and had to assure that all of the poll workers and voters 
felt safe and protected, which meant a lot of barriers and cleaning between 
voters using the voting booths and lots of extra pens. Tom Johnston, the 
incumbent, was opposed by ShaRon Kelly. Tom won 277 to 93 for another 
3-year term. We also voted on the RSU40 School Budget, which passed. 
We had a turnout of 361  voters. Much appreciation goes out to election 
workers Cathy Blake, Linda Luce, Liz, Kate and Stephanie Grinnell for their 
diligence in making sure every vote counted in a very complicated election. 
With the help of the Fire Department and Matt Kopishki, we held the Town 
Meeting at the Fire Station on July 18. We just made it under the 50-person 
maximum allowed for group meetings. The citizens voted to purchase a 
new Fire Tanker truck, a 
new Plow Truck and after 
a lively debate and valid 
questions, voted to spend 
$100,000 to repair the Town 
Garage. 

Lastly, we had the 2020 
Presidential Election. What 
can I say, it was a doozy! 
We had a record turn-out 
of 1,003 residents cast their 
votes, almost 500 of which 
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were by absentee ballot. 
We had almost 80% of 
registered voters participate. 
We held an in-house training 
before the big night, and the 
election workers took their 
responsibilities of their job 
very seriously. We had poll 
watchers, who commented 
on how well our election 
was managed. Thank you to 
Walter and Jacquelyn Metcalf, Mildred Melgard, Charlotte Henderson, our 
new resident, Deborah RoyRoberts and the ladies mentioned above, for all 
of their hard work and dedication. A big thank you also goes out to everyone 
who volunteered but wasn’t needed because we have such a great town full 
of residents who don’t mind volunteering their time and to Cindy and John 
Beane for feeding us.

Respectfully Submitted, 
Joan  M.  Hayward
Registrar of Voters
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Washington Planning Board
A unique year was 2020, many of us challenged with the issue caused 

by Covid-19. The Board held six meetings during the year, none in March 
thru September because of the Covid-19 pandemic. The Board kept the 
same slate of officers for the 2020 year.

The Board granted two separate large Solar Array projects on the 
Waldoboro Road. (Rt. 220) using the town’s new Solar Array Ordinance. 
The Board granted one Site Plan Review for a garage on Route 17. All three 
included a public hearing for the approval process.

The Board continues to schedule monthly meetings on the second 
Tuesday each month. The Board wishes to thank the Selectmen, Debra Dean 
and Town Clerk for setting up ZOOM so that Board members and residents 
can view and participate in meetings and Kelly Hassanein, Planning 
Board Secretary, for her willingness to go above and beyond during these 
challenging times.

Respectfully submitted,
Mitchell  Garnett, 
Chairman
Steve  Ocean, 
Secretary/Treasurer

Members:
Jesse  Casas
Debra  Dean
Sarah  Collins

Alt. Members:
Katherine  Grinnell
vacant (volunteer needed)
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Washington Budget Committee 
The budget committee met three times in preparation of the 2021 

municipal budget. The first meeting was during the 4th quarter of FY 2020, 
as we reviewed the expenditures up to that time. The second meeting with 
the board of selectmen occurred on January 20. The board of selectmen 
presented its proposed 2021 budget. Several of the lines were incomplete as 
final budget amounts had not been received. The final meeting on February 
17 was after the annual financial audit had been completed and, in a few 
cases, had revised budgetary data brought forward by the selectmen. All 
meetings were held in-person using masks and proper social distancing. 
Some committee members participated remotely. Copies of minutes are 
available at the town office.

During the budget process, we reviewed each and every budget line 
proposed by the selectmen. We recommended reductions where we felt 
the budget could be reduced and questioned selectmen about proposed 
increases. Each of the budget categories was reviewed, discussed, and voted 
on separately. In the end we found consensus with the selectmen, which will 
result in a basically flat mil rate for 2021. 

Key highlights for 2021 include:
1)	 An increase of 3.38% in assessments by Knox County, Union 

Ambulance, and Tri-county Solid Waste Management Organization.
2)	 A $2,300 increase in Office Administration mainly due to an increase 

in the cost of auditing the town books.
3)	 A 2.53% decrease in municipal insurance costs.
4)	 The addition of a part-time assistant code enforcement officer at a cost 

of $20,000. All other salaries remain the same as in 2020.
5)	 An increase of $40,000 in Maintenance of Town Roads due to necessity 

of contracting for the crushing of screening rocks into surface gravel. 
6)	 Due the pandemic and the lateness of 2020 town meeting, the town 

was unable to pave any roads before cold weather. The appropriations 
lapsed into “surplus” at the end of the fiscal year. There will be two 
separate articles in the 2021 town warrant requesting to take $80,000 
from “surplus” and apply it to paving in 2021.

7)	 There will be a $2,000 increase in the cemetery maintenance line to 
remove a diseased and dying tree in the Maple Grove Cemetery.
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8)	 The selectmen are proposing raising $20,000 each for the fire truck 
replacement and town plow replacement funds. This is a reduction of 
$10,000 in each fund from 2020. 
It has been our pleasure serve the citizens of Washington and to carry 

out our budget committee responsibilities. With the board of selectmen, we 
believe we have proposed a fiscally prudent budget, and we hope you will 
approve it at the annual town meeting.

Donald  L.  Grinnell, Chair
David  Williams, Member	 	
Kathy  Ocean, Member	 	
Walter  Metcalf, Member
Wendy  Carr, Member	 	
Jesse  Casas, Member 	 	
David  Martucci, Member
Peg  Hobbs, Alternate	 	
Deborah  Bocko, Alternate
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Code Enforcement Officer
27 various building permits were issued in 2020.
I take questions by email and phone from the public regarding Town 

ordinances.
It has been my pleasure working with the Selectmen, Planning Board, 

Appeals Board, and Washington town office staff.

Respectfully submitted,
Bob  Temple, 
CEO

Plumbing Inspector’s Report
The Plumbing Permits issued for 2020 are as follows:
Subsurface Wastewater Permits	 	 	 7
Internal Plumbing Permits	 	 	 	 8
It has been my pleasure working with the Selectmen, Planning Board, 

Appeals Board, and Washington town office staff.

Respectfully submitted,
Bob  Temple, 
Plumbing Inspector
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Washington Appeals Board
The Washington Appeal Board met two times last year. The officers 

remain the same as the previous year with Lowell Freiman as Chairman 
and James Kearney as Vice Chairman/Secretary. The Board is shy of one 
Alternate Board Member as Richard Bissett resigned.

There was only one piece of new business before the Board this year 
which required a Prehearing Conference and Public Hearing. The matter 
was an appeal of a Stop Work Order. By a 4-0 vote, the Board voted to 
affirm the Stop Work Order and to deny the appeal.

The work of all the Board Members continues to be appreciated. The 
public is invited to attend meetings either in person or by ZOOM on the 
second Thursday of every odd month.

Respectfully submitted,
Lowell  Freiman, 
Chairman
James  Kearney, 
Vice Chairman/Secretary

Members:
Norman  Casas 
Cathy  Blake
Traci  Hoffman

Alternate:
Robert  deGroff
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Washington Fire Department
PO Box 244, Washington, ME 04574 ~ Established 1950

Fire Station – 845-2245
Phil Meunier, Chief  542-9928  Dean Batlis, Deputy Chief  542-0824      

Jacolby Leavitt, Assistant Chief  505-5651
Emergency Dial 911 

To the Citizens of the Town of Washington:

The Washington Fire Department responded to the following calls in 2020
Building fire	 7
Chimney or flue fire, confined to chimney or flue	 1
Fuel burner/boiler malfunction, fire confined	 1
Natural vegetation fire, other	 1
Forest, woods or wild land fire	 2
Brush or brush-and-grass mixture fire	 3
Outside rubbish, trash or waste fire	 1
Medical assist, assist EMS crew	 1
Motor vehicle accident with injuries	 9
Motor vehicle accident with no injuries	 11
Trapped by power lines	 1
Electrical  wiring/equipment problem, other	 1
Power line down	 1
Telephone line down	 1
Tree down	 17
Water or steam leak	 1
Citizen assist: chimney cleaning, pump water from basement	 1
Cover assignment, standby, move up	 4
Dispatched and cancelled en route	 9
No incident found on arrival at dispatch address	 4
Hazmat release investigation w/no Hazmat	 1
Telephone, malicious false alarm	 1
CO detector activation due to malfunction	 1
Total:	 80
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This year we had the most calls ever. The 80 calls kept us very busy and 
all members, as well as our mutual aid companies, did a very professional 
job.

Steve Olmsted has stepped down as Deputy Chief, and we would 
like to thank him for his service and commitment. He has remained on 
the department and his knowledge and experience will continue to be an 
asset. We have promoted Dean Batlis to the Deputy’s position and Jacolby 
Leavitt to Assistant Chief. They have both just completed a Fire Chief’s 
Workshop.

I would like to thank the townspeople for allowing us to purchase a 
new tanker. It has been in service for about a month and will serve us for 
many years.

With the three windstorms, we had a high number of down trees and 
power lines. This resulted in detours and road closures. Please do not remove 
barricades or drive around them. They are there for everyones safety. Power 
lines can still be alive even though they are down.

We still have our free smoke detector program in place. Leave your 
contact information at the town office or the fire station and we will take 
care of it.

We are continuing a free service to obtain burning permits on line. 
Go to wardensreport.com, follow the steps, and print your permit. You 

can also obtain one on line at Maine Department of Conservation’s website. 
The cost is $7.00. 

Due to Covid-19 hand-written permits are not available or on a very 
limited basis.

As usual, we can always use more help, especially during the week. We 
are at the station every Monday night. Our monthly meeting is on the 2nd 
Monday of the month and our training on the 4th Monday.  Due to Covid-
19, please call before coming down. 

If you see us out training, stop and watch from a safe distance.
Everyone please stay safe in this unusual time.

Thank You,
Phil  Meunier, 
Fire Chief
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Emergency Management Agency
I took over as the Local Emergency Management Director in late 

summer from Corwin Flynn. I want to thank Corwin, Health Officer Brian 
Alves, town office staff, and numerous volunteers who stepped up to the 
plate in March as the Covid-19 pandemic reared its ugly head and began 
to affect everyone across the state. Through this initial chaos, confusion, 
and ever-changing information, this group assembled on a Zoom platform 
to find a way to assist citizens in finding information and resources. Within 
a week, the town website was transformed into an information hub where 
citizens could get information and/or assistance for their needs. They 
provided links to vital information, phone numbers for food pantries, heat 
assistance and transportation. They organized volunteers and matched them 
with citizens who needed help with a certain task. Thank you for all those 
who donated financially to help their fellow residents. 

What to look for in the future from your local EMA Director? I will be 
developing Washington EMA Facebook page linked to the town website. 
This will carry National Weather Service weather notifications. It will 
provide vital information about food distribution points in the area and 
links to the latest CDC pandemic information. In conjunction with Knox 
County EMA, I will provide you with the most up to date power outage 
information. In the future, we will make better use of the town warming 
center at the Masonic Hall during long term power outages. 

I look forward to serving in this position. Should you have any questions 
or need assistance feel free to contact me through the town office.

Donald  Grinnell, 
EMA Director
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Road Foreman’s Report
To start the year off, we had some snow and quite a few wind and rain 

storms with a lot of downed trees and road washouts.
We had to replace a big culvert on the Bill Luce Road. This took about 

a month to replace.
We replaced culverts on the Youngs Hill, Old County, and Medolark 

Roads.
We also did some ditching and chipped brush on the Firs, Bowman 

Mills, Youngs Hill and Medolark Roads. We also did some resurfacing on 
some of the dirt roads.

There was also a new bridge put in on the Fitch Road.
The town garage was redone which took about two months.
We would like to thank the town for purchasing a new snow plow truck. 

Some of our trucks are approximately 20 years old.
We would like to also thank Kevin Esancy for his thirteen years of 

work on our crew. We hope he will be able to return to work at some point; 
we miss his hard work and dedication!

Respectfully submitted,
Frank  Jones  Jr.,
Road Foreman
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Washington Lakes Watershed 
Association

The mission of Washington Lakes Watershed Association (WLWA) 
is to conserve and protect of our town’s lakes and waterways and their 
surrounding lands by offering information resources, holding outdoor 
recreation events, and advocating for clean water and a healthy natural 
environment for our community. The lakes association invites you to 
read and contribute to our Facebook page at https://www.facebook.com/
washingtonmaine.lakesassociation. 

You can also contact us at wlwassn@gmail.com with questions, 
concerns and items of interest to friends and members in the watershed 
area.

Just about this time last year, Coronavirus invaded the world and 
changed everything for everybody. WLWA’s board reluctantly determined 
that we should cancel everything until we understood more about how to 
safely do things. Consequently, much of our usual activity didn’t happen. 

2020 Ice-out on Washington Pond was March 21. Fall ice-in was in and 
out again a couple of times due to the erratic weather. Anyone who makes 
note of these events on Washington Pond or Crystal Lake is asked to send 
the information to our email wlwassn@gmail.com. Both ice-in and ice-out 
dates are tracked by the state and by our citizen science resource, Lake 
Stewards of Maine (LSM) to whom we forward such information.

Lake water quality testing for both Crystal Lake and Washington 
Pond continued throughout the summer of 2020. WLWA’s certified water 
monitor, Roger Cady, was undaunted by Covid-19. He collected bi-weekly 
samples just as he has for all six summers since we started doing our own 
water tests. Roger’s reports are comprehensive and detailed with graphs 
and other enhancements making a really professional document. The 2020 
readings indicated consistently high water clarity readings on Washington 
Pond. Happily, Crystal Lake readings recovered from last year’s (2019) 
low readings to normal results for summer 2020. The report is available on 
WLWA’s website www.washingtonlakesassociation.org and a paper copy 
is on hand at the town office. Send a request to our email wlwassn@gmail.
com and we will send you the 2020 Water Quality Report electronically. 
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A concentration of algae on Crystal Lake was reported late last spring 
by a local resident. It was investigated and identified by Lake Stewards 
of Maine as metaphyton. This algae usually dies off by itself and did so 
eventually, but somewhat later in the season than usual which is why it drew 
attention. This phenomenon occurred in other ponds as well. Many thanks 
to our neighbor who reported this so it could be checked out.

Roger’s excellent professional reports are done with lab support from 
Midcoast Conservancy (MCC). We are very grateful for generous assistance 
to our water testing protocol from MCC. Midcoast Conservancy was formed 
in 2016 and with Medomak Valley Land Trust joining in January of 2019. 
MCC is one of the largest regional conservation organizations in Maine, 
with over 1 3,000 acres of land conserved, some of which is here in the 
Town of Washington.

The Medomak Brook Connection alewife access restoration project 
sponsored by Lloyd Davis Trust was on our radar all year, but because the 
board didn’t meet, no up/down endorsement of the project happened in 
2020. [Note: the project was approved at the January 25, 2021 meeting on 
Zoom.]

Jeff Grinnell, President Pro Tem of WLWA (until our 2021 Annual 
Meeting), has energized the board with some fresh ideas. There’s enthusiasm 
for resuming public paddle events, the annual paddle craft race in partnership 
with the Washington Rec’ Committee, an in-person annual meeting, and 
mindful of Covid, adding some new outdoor activities as well. The Annual 
Meeting is tentatively scheduled for July 22.

WLWA welcomes everyone to our activities. Becoming a member puts 
you on our contact list so you’ll learn about our events ahead of time. We 
hope to see you during the summer! 

The WLWA Board of Directors: Frank Braun, Casey Carr, Scott 
Edwards, Sue Edwards, Dale Griffin, Jeff Grinnell, Kathleen Gross, Neil 
Gross, Charlotte Henderson, Peg Hobbs, George Stone, Sharon Turner and 
Elaine O’Keefe.

Report submitted by,
Charlotte  Henderson
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Washington Lakes Water Quality
Executive Summary
Background

Prior to 2015, the WLWA (Washington Lakes Watershed Association), 
with the help of the Town engaged a paid analysis and report on lakes 
water quality but only on an every three years basis due to cost. Starting 
in 2015, under the auspices of VLMP/LSM*, WLWA volunteers undertook 
to create the report on an annual basis to give the town more frequent and 
comprehensive view of lakes quality. This is the sixth report in that series. 
2020 continues to add to the comprehensive data set created by WLWA, 
certified by LSM and accepted into the State of Maine database maintained 
by the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP.)
Crystal Lake (Midas 4900)

Last year’s report noted significant deviations from norms for Crystal 
Lake. I can happily report that Crystal this year was in the middle of 
normal, so last year was clearly a short term aberration. Secchi disk (water 
clarity, an indication of algae density) was well within historical norms, up 
considerably from 2019. In particular, chlorophyll was down to 2 from 5, 
and dissolved oxygen and temperature/depth profiles were normal. Thus, 
from a water chemistry standpoint, the lake and fishery appears to once 
again have healthy conditions.

There was a report of unusual algae concentrations early in the season, 
and pictures furnished to LSM and subsequent discussions indicated that 
Crystal was not alone in such reports. This metaphyton algae experienced 
normal die off shortly thereafter, and the rest of the summer was normal. 
We appreciate that local resident Linda Moran raised the alarm. We applaud 
people who keep an eye on our lakes and are always happy to answer 
questions.
Washington Pond (Midas 4894)

Washington Pond was in good shape for 2020. It displayed the 
consistently highest Secchi disk readings (clearest water) since the start of 
our database 43 years ago. Other parameters were well within normal.
Weather 

Precipitation patterns have a profound effect on lakes. Heavy rains 
increase runoff and this adds phosphorus to the lake, promoting algae 
growth. Dry conditions remove this potential, resulting in clearer lakes. This 
year we had only one large rain event and otherwise a very dry summer, 
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with temperatures nearly 2 degrees above normal. Our lakes were clearer 
than average.
Invasive Species

There were no invasive plant species inspections of either lake in 
2018-2020. Although we do not think we have any invasives, we cannot 
be sure without looking at high probability sites. This is a major weakness 
in our “preventative” activities and we urgently need volunteers to take on 
this important task. Training in this valuable work is available from Lake 
Stewards of Maine.
Volunteers for Citizen Science

We desperately need volunteers to carry on this important Lakes 
Quality Monitoring, both water testing and invasive plant patrolling. It is 
fun, interesting and educational, a wonderful way to spend time on our 
lakes in the summer. Please help. Contact Roger Cady (207-845-2280) or 
Charlotte Henderson (207-845-2661) to learn more.

The author is indebted to LSM/VLMP Staff and Executive Director 
Scott Williams (support, training and education), Midcoast Conservancy 
(loan of instrumentation), Linda Bacon and the Maine DEP (historical 
database) and the WLWA (lab test costs and moral support.)

A copy of the comprehensive 2020 Lakes report with detailed data and 
charts as well as explanations is available for viewing in hard copy at the Town 
Clerk’s office and Gibbs Library, or on line at washingtonlakesassociation.org 
under about us/water reports/2020

I urge you to become more involved, volunteer time, and support the 
Washington Lakes Watershed Association with a contribution, and their 
work. With climate change, never has this been more important.

Roger  Cady

*LSM/VLMP  Lake Stewards of Maine (formerly known as Maine 
Volunteer Lake Monitoring Program.)
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Medomak Brook Connection
Alewife Access to Washington Pond

A project of the Lloyd Davis Anadromous Fish Trust

The Medomak Brook Connection is a local group working to make 
Washington Pond accessible to sea-run fish – particularly alewives – by 
clearing Medomak Brook between it and Medomak River. This project is 
the final phase of an alewife access restoration plan begun by the Lloyd 
Davis Anadromous (sea-run) Fish Trust in the early 1980s. 

Streams along coastal rivers led to natural spawning areas and in pre-
industrial times there were huge alewife harvests but with the need for power 
came dams that blocked access and alewife harvests declined significantly. 

In the 1 990s, conservationists, naturalists and others began working 
to reopen blocked streams that led to historic spawning grounds. In Maine, 
the removal of the Edwards Dam led to almost immediate positive changes 
in fish population, water quality, increased recreational uses, and many 
alternative uses for the river valley property. Numerous communities began 
debating removal of dams that were no longer economically or ecologically 
beneficial. The Lloyd Davis Trust, which had already done considerable 
work in the lower Medomak River tributaries over many years, decided to 
pursue restoring alewife access all the way to Washington Pond, the largest 
water body in the entire watershed. In 2018, Lloyd Davis Trust approached 
the Town of Washington and a liaison was appointed to help develop the 
idea locally. 

There were meetings among the towns’ committees, select boards, 
officers of the trust and members of the Washington Lakes Association. 
In addition, several public informational sessions were offered in the 
community to describe the process, talk about outcomes of other projects, 
benefits/risks, and effects on specifically Washington Pond. Speakers 
from Maine Rivers, Maine Dept of Marine Resources, Dept of Inland Fish 
and Wildlife, and Maine Dept of Environmental Protection were among 
presenters. 

Throughout 2020 there were many team meetings, scouting walks to 
various sites along Medomak Brook and consultations with advisors and 
agencies mentioned above and others. The first big step toward the goal 
of free water flow was the removal of the wooden dam beside the park in 
Washington village. M&M Excavation Company dug our 18 yards of silt in 
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order to pull out the plank dam. There is also a privately owned dam in the 
waterway with negotiation in progress. 

The Outlet Dam at the south end of Washington Pond will not be 
removed under the Medomak Brook Connection plan. Its present design 
is unique and will be customized so that alewives can swim into the lake. 
(Alewives can’t jump.) From the outset, there has been no consideration of 
removing the outlet dam and a commitment is in place that the lake water 
level will not be significantly altered.

Washington Pond contains more water than all the other water bodies in 
the Medomak River Watershed combined. There was a time when alewives 
and even salmon were fished in Washington Pond, but construction of the 
dam brought that to an end. Restoring alewives to the pond will provide a 
much-needed food supply to the habitants of the lake as well most of the 
small mammals and birds in the watershed. 

Medomak Brook Connection is part of a larger undertaking here in 
Maine as well as the northeast U.S. to bring waterways blocked by unused 
dams back to their historic natural state. Watch for our Facebook page for 
updates and progress reports.

Our local team includes Brian Alves, Frank Braun, Sam Chapman, 
Charles Delory, Charlotte Henderson, Ted Mohlie, David Seybold, and Ted 
Wooster. We are deeply grateful to the many professionals who instruct and 
guide us.

	
Submitted by, 
Charlotte  Henderson
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Midcoast Conservancy
Dear community members and friends:

This has been an extraordinary year, one in which most of our public-
facing events and programs were cancelled. Our land and water protection 
work, though, has continued. Midcoast Conservancy is committed to 
supporting healthy lands, waters and communities in Washington and 
throughout the Midcoast Maine region through conservation, restoration, 
outdoor recreation and learning. Our community comprises 24 towns, three 
watersheds and over 1 3,000 acres of conserved land which include 55 
preserves and over 95 miles of trails. In partnership with towns we serve, 
we are working on a scale that matters. Below is a sampling of how we 
impacted the lives of Washington residents:
Your Water:

•	 On Damariscotta Lake, we trained and deployed 58 Invasive Plant 
Patrol volunteers, employed five Courtesy Boat Inspectors at the 
Vannah Road and Bunker Hill Road boat launches, and had three 
volunteers attend a two-day training on erosion prevention.

•	 We continued to monitor the invasive plant Hydrilla (the most aggressive 
in North America) populations in Davis Stream and Cranberry Cove. In 
2020, no Hydrilla was found. With your help, we will continue being a 
leader in the fight against invasive plants in 2021.

•	 We completed the 25th year of water quality sampling of the Sheepscot 
River and its tributaries. This data will be crucial as we work towards 
identifying and addressing areas of contaminated runoff into the river.

Your Land:
•	 In the neighboring town of Liberty, we added nearly 1 24  acres of 

conserved land to existing preserves, increasing climate resilience and 
habitat protection in your community.
Washington is a crucial partner for all the work we do. Many of our 

members and volunteers come from Washington and we invite more of you 
join us. Learn more at www.midcoastconservancy.org. Feel free to be in 
touch by calling or emailing me or our staff anytime. 

Respectfully submitted,
Lissa  Widoff
Interim Executive Director
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Washington Recreation Committee
2020 was a challenging year for 

our citizens and our organizations. 
Cancelled events and sports 
dominated all of our usual busy 
schedules.

The Washington Recreation 
Committee Members are excited 
about our two new dugouts at the 
Clyde Sukeforth Field at Prescott 
Memorial School. NL Sheds did an 
outstanding job and despite rising 
lumber costs, the project came in a 
smidge under budget. 

Although Little League was 
cancelled, several groups of families 
put together a schedule of ballgames for the kids. The Clyde Sukeforth Field 
was closed by SAD 40 secondary to COVID-19 so games were played at the 
privately owned Jackson Field. The Rec Committee financially supported 
the Port-a-Toilet there.

We received a lot of positive feedback for the placement of a Port-a-
Potty at Washington Pond Landing. This year the Recreation Department 
sponsored it in conjunction with the Washington Lakes and Watershed 
Association. 

People have asked: “What are those snow fences at the fire pond behind 
the library-municipal buildings for?” Well those with grade school kids can 
tell you it is a playing field. This year we fixed the drainage problem and 
K-2 soccer had a level field to play on. Due to the late start and uncertainty 
of our season, we offered a registration fee of just $5.00/ child for residents 
and $10.00/ non-resident. Fees included an award and t-shirts for the kids. 
Thank you to Coach Alison Leavitt and her young assistant, Maddison, for 
pulling the season together. No inter-town games this year so we sidelined 
our grades 3-6 season.

The Monday Walkers continue to have a good weekly turn out. There 
are now signs reminding motorists to give 3’ minimum safe distance that 
drivers must leave between their vehicles and a when passing a pedestrian 
or bicyclist. 
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We also added some signage at the Washington Landing as well.
The Recreation Committee had an operating budget of $2,000. Since 

we were fully funded last year and only had limited sports we are not asking 
for any funding for 2021.

The Washington Recreation Committee is an all-volunteer group. If 
anyone has an idea of a project or event we would love to hear from you.

Helen  Caddie-Larcenia 
  & Peg  Cobb, Co-Chairs
Dakota  Green
John  Green
Kathleen  Gross
Neil  Gross
Alison  Leavitt
Ashley  Elwell
Steve  Ocean
Travis  Perez
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Hill & Gully Riders Snowmobile Club
 

To the Residents of Washington:
Hill & Gully Riders Snowmobile Club currently has 20 members. We 

meet the second Tuesday of each month at 7:00 pm at the Washington Fire 
Department. Our annual activities include trail maintenance, snow packing, 
trail grooming, and working with landowners. We also host our annual 
Snowfest & Fishing Derby on Washington Pond every February.

We are honored to offer an annual scholarship to a Medomak Valley 
High School graduate and Washington resident with plans to continue on 
to higher education.

Snow has been hard to come by the last few years and this year has 
proved no different. Some of the trails in our system are only accessible 
by snowmobile so cleanup may or may not have happened this year. If 
one of our trails crosses your property and you are uncertain of its status, 
please feel free to reach out to us as landowner relations are of the upmost 
importance to us.

 We’re currently working a few reroutes in town so please be aware 
and pay attention to the signage. Our trails are open to snowshoers, cross-
country skiers, and hikers. If you own a snowmobile and ride in town please 
remember the many hours it takes to maintain the trails and that many hands 
make light work. 

 To the landowners who support our trails, we cannot thank you 
enough. Our club members as well as all who use the trails appreciate your 
generosity.

We are always looking for members who are ready and willing to help 
maintain our 35 miles of trails.

Sincerely,
Matthew  Kopishke,
President, 
Hill & Gully Riders
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Gibbs Library
The mission of the Gibbs Library is to serve as a volunteer-based center 

whose purpose is to enrich the lives of our community members with free 
access to programs, materials, and services that empower, educate, and 
inspire. 

I am honored and proud to be part of the team fulfilling our mission for 
our community. This was my first year as president, a job I can do only with 
and because of the fantastic support of my Board of Trustees, wonderful 
staff, and tremendous volunteers. While 2020 was a quiet year with no 
fundraising and few programs, we maintained our circulation activity and 
continued to provide services every day of the year. 	

Thank you, Town of Washington voters, for approving the 2020 warrant 
article affording us $15,000.00. Without the ability to conduct regular 
fundraising activities, these funds were every more critical to maintaining 
our operations through the pandemic. We halted circulation activities for a 
very brief time this Spring, but managed to re-open with curbside service 
& limited hours as soon as the stay-at-home order was lifted. Our two paid 
staff, Library Manager Kate Nichol and Librarian Julie Madden kept the 
new books coming and the desk schedule booked. 

Our Children’s committee maintained the most normalcy this year, 
albeit in the new fashion. Summer reading, bikes for books (sponsored 
by the Mr. Olivet Mason Lodge,) gingerbread cookies, a holiday book 
giveaway sponsored by Bess the Book Bus): Chair Hazel Kopishke kept the 
spirit alive for our kids. 

Adult programming did not fare as well. Our meditation and book 
groups have been postponed. Genealogy & local history programs were 
canceled. We hosted no authors. We are grateful to have held the reception 
for local photograph artist Patti Forster before our lives were upended. 
Thank you to our art committee, Neil Gross, Kathleen Gross, Glenice 
Skelton, and Emeritus Member Bo Marks, whose years of work meant we 
had a full calendar of artists for 2020-2022.

We look forward to resuming our normal activities as soon as possible. 
That includes fundraising: there are so many books to sell, and our team has 
planned an exciting community event we can’t wait to debut - when we can 
see and smile at each other again. 



	 TOWN OF WASHINGTON	 87

Gibbs Library would like to send a very special in memoriam thank 
you to one of our founders and dearest supporters, Dorothy Sainio. She and 
her husband Henry helped found Gibbs Library and build it into a thriving 
community, a cornerstone of Washington with nearly 100 volunteers, more 
than a thousand cardholders, and a lifeline for countless people who need 
internet just to live their lives. 

Please come on by: we’re open Monday 4 -7, Tuesday 9-12 & 3-6, 
Thursday 3-6, and Saturday 9-12. Our website, gibbslibrary.org, is open 
24/7, you can sign up for our monthly e-newsletter, search our catalog, and 
renew your books.

We are a volunteer led and run organization, which means we need 
your help! Please contact us at info@gibbslibrary.org or (207) 845-2663, 
because we could never keep our doors open, offer programs, education or 
entertain without the hard work of dozens and dozens of people. Thank each 
and every one of you - past, present, and future!

Thank you kindly,
Sarah  Masters,
Washington Library
Association Board President
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Washington Historical Society 
This past year has been a bit different for the Washington Historical 

Society (WHS) as it has been for our community, state and country. Most of 
our programming was canceled due to Covid-19. We have carried on with 
our building maintenance work.

The cabling work to secure the 
Old Town House was completed in 
February 2020. Members worked to 
secure the sagging floor during the 
summer and in September we had our 
annual Heritage Day Event, covid 
style, with Razorville Museum and the 
Town House open for visitation. Cheryl 
Swift led a program at Marr Cemetery 
sharing information about families and individuals buried there.

Our major fund raising calendar project went forward with the 2021 
calendar “Once in Washington.” We supported our past donors by placing 
their business information free this year. The calendar featured pictures of 
places once standing in Washington but now gone. Many of these places 
were lost to fires. Calendars are still available at local business and the 
WHS. Proceeds from this help pay our ongoing expenses. 

This year we are hoping to continue 
our improvement to the Town House 
by building an ADA accessible ramp 
at the entrance and putting shutters on 
the windows. Shutters are needed for 
light protection once we start placing 
displays in the building. We also want 
to finish replacing the vinyl siding with 
wood clapboards on the museum. 

We are unsure at this time on 
what or when we can offer programs again. Please watch for posters and 
announcement if we do.

We usually meet the third Tuesday of each month at 7 at the Masonic Hall 
or the Town House during the warm months. We have had some meetings 
and hope to meet more regularly this spring and summer. Our office is at the 
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Masonic Hall. Please contact us if you have items to share or donate to us or 
are seeking information we might have to offer. Check our web site www.
washingtonhistorical.org and like us on Facebook. Membership dues are $5 
annually. Please join and help preserve Washington’s history.

Hazel  Kopishke,
Secretary WHS
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Washington Scholarship Committee
Wow, what a year 2020 was! I think everyone was impacted somehow 

from the COVID-19 virus. Our students were no exception with home-
schooling and remote learning via ZOOM. The Scholarship Committee, 
like other organizations, could not use our normal avenues of raising 
money to help Washington students continue their education. Our local 
businesses received our yearly appeal letter again toward the end of the 
year and they generously contributed to our Scholarship fund. Please 
support our local businesses, their continued support makes it possible for 
us to keep helping our students and replenishing our scholarship fund.

We only had four applications this year and two were disqualified 
due to the fact that they were incomplete. We did grant two scholarships 
to the remaining students for $1,000 each. We wish those two Washington 
students the best of luck in continuing their education. Please know that the 
scholarship money is available to students who go on to higher learning, 
but also to those attending trade schools of any kind. The applications are 
available at the Guidance Counselor’s Office in all the local schools, the 
Town Office or online on the town website washington.maine.gov

If you qualify, as a Washington resident for at least one year, please 
get your COMPLETE application into the committee by May 1st so we 
can consider you for scholarship money. The address to mail to is on the 
application or it can be submitted through the Town Office. Continue to 
be smart and safe and best of luck in 2021!

Washington Scholarship Committee,
Judy  Good		
Jan  Birk	 	
Aimee  Gess
Mindy  Gould	 	
Mildred  Melgard
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Minnie B. Weaver Scholarship
The Minnie B. Weaver Scholarship was established in 1986 to honor 

the memory of Mrs. Weaver, a lifelong educator. Minnie Cramer was 
raised in Washington and attended the Hodge School. She graduated from 
Washington High School in 1 921  and that fall, after passing a special 
teacher’s exam, began her teaching career at the age of 17. In 1925, she 
graduated from the Eastern State Normal School in Castine. She taught in 
four of Washington’s one room schools and eventually retired from Prescott 
Memorial in 1972 after 49 years of teaching. 

After her death, a committee formed to establish a scholarship in her 
memory. Fund raising began and the first scholarship was awarded in 1990. 
The scholarship base has grown through the years with varying fund raising 
projects and donations. The Weaver Scholarship Committee raises funds at 
the Community Auction(if held), receives funding from the town, and awards 
interest earned from the Minnie Weaver Scholarship Fund investment with 
Maine Community Foundation, allowing for scholarships to be awarded 
annually. This year we lost our president and founding member Dorothy 
Sainio. Donations have been received in her memory.

Applications are available at the Guidance Office at Medomak Valley 
High School. Applicants must be a graduating senior from MVHS, have 
resided in Washington for five years, be accepted at a school of higher 
learning, and submit a complete application by the deadline of April 30. 
Applications may be mailed to Minnie Weaver Scholarship, 471 Liberty Rd., 

Washington, ME 04574. Because of Mrs. 
Weaver’s dedicated teaching experience, 
preference is given to education majors 
but it is not limited to field of education 
majors.

Minnie Weaver Scholarship Committee,
Dorothy  Sainio
Wendy  Carr
Hazel  Kopishke
Kathy  Daniel
Bette  Pelletier
Dale Brann
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LifeFlight to Washington - 
Facts and Frequently Asked Questions
•	 LifeFlight is a private non-profit charity with a public mission 

serving all of Maine - We care for all patients regardless of insurance 
status or ability to pay for care 24/7/365 with helicopters based in 
Bangor, Lewiston and Sanford, a fixed-wing airplane based in Bangor, 
rapid response vehicles, and specialized ground ambulances. In FY2020 
LifeFlight provided $1.7M of care to patients without insurance.

•	 2,267 patients were LifeFlighted in FY20 from 11 8 communities, 
islands, and unorganized townships - about 1  patient every 4  hours. 
LifeFlight has cared for more than 30,000 patients since September 
1998.

•	 How has COVID affected LifeFlight? As LifeFlight cares for the 
most critically ill patients in Maine, we have been caring for COVID 
patients since March 1 7, 2020. Managing these complex patients 
is a huge challenge, and as there is uncertainty in emergent illness, 
essentially every patient LifeFlight cares for must be treated as if 
they had COVID. The financial impact on LifeFlight for equipment, 
supplies, and biocontainment systems is estimated at $1.8 million in 
new costs between February 2020 and January 2022.

•	 How is LifeFlight funded? LifeFlight operates much like a hospital 
emergency department, taking care of all patients and billing insurance 
companies. We contract with all major payers including Medicare, 
MaineCare and commercial insurers. Our operational expenses are 
covered by patient fees, but we rely on the LifeFlight Foundation to 
support purchasing aircraft, medical equipment, and providing clinical 
education.

•	 LifeFlight helicopters, airplane, and specialty ground ambulances 
are equipped as fully functioning mobile intensive care units. Life 
Flight’s critical care teams bring the trauma center intensive care unit 
- skills, medical technology, pharmacy, blood, and more-directly to a 
patient’s side.

•	 What types of patients do you transport? Critically ill or injured 
patients of all ages needing specialized care beyond what can be 
provided by local hospitals - including premature infants, cardiac and 
stroke patients, complex traumatic injury, organ transplant, sepsis, 
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burns, and serious obstetric complications. We use the strictest medical 
utilization criteria in the country to make sure all flights are medically 
necessary. Emergency medical providers are guided by state-mandated 
protocols based on the latest research and best practice.

•	 About 85% of patients are transported from community hospitals 
to major specialty centers, and 15% are transported directly from the 
scene of an emergency - roadsides, woods, mountains, and islands. 
While most patients are transported to EMMC, MMC and CMMC, 
about 1 2% of patients are transported to Boston and beyond for 
specialized care not available in Maine.

•	 LifeFlight is lean. We are among the most efficient providers in the 
world, we pay attention to costs, maintaining a very small administrative 
team and with the lowest costs and charges in New England and the 
country.

•	 LifeFlight of Maine’s average cost per transport is approximately 
$17,000 (modified by distance). We participate with all major insurers. 
Medicare, and MaineCare, so there are negotiated discounts and we do 
not “surprise bill” patients. (The average cost of others in New England 
is around $23,000 while the average in western New England, New 
York, and nationally is $55,000 - $70,000.)

•	 What other benefits to our town and region does LifeFlight provide 
besides critical care and transport? We provide local critical care 
training to medical providers in specialized areas such as traumatic 
brain injury and pediatric trauma diagnosis and treatment.

•	 What do the Towns support and what is the formula used for the 
ask amount? This year, in addition to our aircraft fund, you may 
choose to allocate your support to our COVID relief fund. We realize 
that 2020 has been a challenging year, and that you, like LifeFlight, 
likely had to bear additional costs to get through the pandemic. We are 
intentionally not asking for increased support this year and would be 
extremely grateful if Washington would consider a donation of $764.
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American Red Cross
Disaster Response

In the past year, the American Red Cross has responded to 13 disaster 
cases, assisting 20 residents of Knox County. Most commonly, these 
incidents were home fires. Red Cross workers were on the scene to provide 
food, clothing, lodging, emotional support, and more to families during 
their hours of greatest need. Our teams also provide Mass Care to first 
responders. Things like food, water, and warm drinks strengthen the brave 
men and women of your local Fire and Police Departments as they answer 
the call to keep your residents safe. 

Town/City Disasters Individuals
Rockport 11 17
Warren 2 3

Home Fire Campaign
Last year, Red Cross staff and volunteers worked throughout Knox 

County to educate residents on fire, safety and preparedness. We installed 
4 free smoke alarms in homes and helped families develop emergency 
evacuation plans.
Service to the Armed Forces

We proudly assisted 36 of Knox County’s Service Members, veterans 
and their families by providing emergency communications and other 
services, including counseling and financial assistance.
Blood Drives

During the last fiscal year, we collected 1,229 pints of lifesaving blood 
in Knox County.
Training Services

Last year, 255 Knox residents were taught a variety of important 
lifesaving skills such as First Aid, CPR, Babysitting Skills and Water 
Safety. 
Volunteer Services

Knox County is home to 20 American Red Cross Volunteers. We 
have volunteers from all walks of life, who are trained and empowered to 
respond to disasters in the middle of the night, to teach safety courses, to 
help at our many blood drives, and so much more. The American Red Cross 
is proud that 90% of its staff is made up of volunteers; they are truly the 
heart and soul of our organization.
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Waldo Community Action Partners

	 Services	 Dollar Value	 2021
Program	 Provided	 of Services	 Support Request

Mid-Coast Public 	 5,849 vehicle miles	 $14,619	 $365
Transportation	 11 individuals

Home Energy Assistance	 NA	 NA	 NA
(LiHeap; Emercency Crisis 
Intervention, 
Keep Waldo Warm)

Head Start and 	 NA	 NA	 NA
Early Head Start

Housing Programs	 NA	 NA	 NA
(CHIP, Weatherization, 
Home Repair, Above Ground 
Storage Tanks)

Community Service Programs	 NA	 NA	 NA
(Neighbor for Neighbor, 
Heroes for Hunger, 
Cinderella Project)

County Wide Programs:

County Wide Programs Totals:	 NA	 NA	 NA

Washington Total		  $14,619	 $365
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New Hope for Women
To the Residents of Washington,

New Hope for Women, Midcoast Maine’s only domestic violence 
resource center since 1 981, serves individuals affected by domestic 
violence, dating violence and stalking in Sagadahoc, Lincoln, Knox and 
Waldo counties. We are writing to ask for your support in the amount of 
$750. Your dollars will specifically be used to support our dynamic, multi-
prong method for addressing these important issues.

Services provided in your town/city include: Advocacy: 24/7 helpline, 
short-term hoteling, transitional housing, court and hospital accompaniment, 
legal services, a children’s advocate at DHHS, and emergency safe homes. 
During the pandemic, we added a chat service for those fearing retaliation 
from a nearby abuser, and collaborated with area lodging sites to provide 
long-term sheltering. From April-August, 2019 we provided 96 shelter 
nights to victims in our four-county catchment area. This year we provided 
2,148 nights throughout the four counties. Prevention and Education: 
Presentations in 80+ schools, licensure-required trainings for mental health 
professionals and tabling at community gatherings.

From October 1, 2019-September 30, 2020, we provided the following 
to Washington residents: Individual advocacy: 9 clients in 1 9.7 hours; 
Prevention/Education: 287 students in 1 27.42 hours in schools serving 
Washington students.

We know that incidences of abuse increase in both number and 
intensity when social crises such as the pandemic occur. The numbers show 
that our services are needed now and for the foreseeable future. We are on-
call round-the-clock to serve those in need and will soon add several new 
transitional housing units - including our first in Sagadahoc County - as 
well as staff to serve the needs of residents and their families.

Very best,
Joan  LeMole, 
Development Director
jlemole@newhopeforwomen.org
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The Washington Food Pantry
The pantry was originally founded by Alma Jones and was operated out 

of her home for many years. We are now graciously given space to operate 
in the Washington Village church. The Pantry is a fully incorporated 501-
C3 nonprofit organization. We are also partnered with Good Shepherd Food 
Bank of Maine. Our pantry runs each month because of generous donations 
from our supportive community, access to discounted foods through Good 
Shepherd, and dedicated individuals who donate their time to the process of 
preparing food for our community.

Currently, the Pantry serves an average of 40 families/120 individuals 
a month, roughly 7% of our population.

At each distribution approximately seven days of food is given in 
prepacked boxes of frozen products, dry goods, and fresh produce. During 
the pandemic, all food is being offered in a drive-through curbside pickup 
model to promote social distancing and face masks must be worn by both 
clients and volunteers alike. We also offer limited delivery to clients who 
have no transportation to the actual pantry on distribution day. You must 
contact the pantry to arrange for this service. 

Distribution pickup times are always from 8-10am 
on the following dates in 2021: 

Feb 3, Mar 3, Apr 7, May 5, Jun 2, Jul 7, Aug 4, Sep 8, Oct 6, Nov 3, Dec 8
We understand that these times and dates may conflict with people’s 

schedules therefore, to make an appointment outside these times please 
contact the pantry.

Our officers are Deborah Vannah: President/Director, Liz Grinnell: 
Vice President, Tina Hall: Treasurer, and Ron Luce: Secretary. 
If you are interested in volunteering or accessing our services, 
please contact either Deborah Vannah at 207-409-9247 or 
Liz Grinnell at 207-242-6494
If you would like to financially support The Washington Food Pantry, 

donations can be mailed to: The Washington Food Pantry P.O. Box 315, 
Washington, Maine 04574. All donations go directly to the purchase of food 
and operational costs associated with the Pantry.

We would like to especially thank our donors for their contributions. 
We would also like to thank our volunteers who unwaveringly dedicate their 
time to our cause. Without such contributions the food pantry would not be 
possible. Perhaps most importantly, we would like to thank our community 
for letting us be of service to them.
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Washington Food Pantry
P.O. Box 315

33 Liberty Rd.
Washington, ME 04574

Financial Statement
January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020

Revenues:
Donations	 9,840.00 
Bank Interest	 2.28
Total Revenues	 $9,842.28

Expenses:
Food Costs:

Good Shepherd purchases	 2,635.97
Curtis Meats	 5,496.12
Common Market	 1,347.18
Washington General	 479.86
Walmart	 65.88
Kelsey’s Appliance	 389.00
Packing supplies/Jackson’s	 49.96
Gas for volunteer drivers	 284.33 

Toiletries and Household Products 
Amazon	 200.96
Family Dollar	 55.13
Dollar Tree	 15.83

Admin. Costs	 438.89
Asset – Freezer	 689.00
Total Expenses	 $12,148.11	

Assets:	
2 freezers – used when acquired over 10 years ago. No current monetary 

value.
1 freezer – new in Dec. 2020 cost of $689.
1  refrigerator – used when acquired over 1 0 years ago. No current 

monetary value.
Note: The Washington Food Panty is located in the Washington Village 
Church, 33 Liberty Rd, Washington, Maine. Space and electricity are 
provided by the Washington Village Church at no cost to the Washington 
Food Pantry.
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Penquis
To: Citizens of Washington

Penquis provides social and other support services to low-income individuals 
and families throughout Knox, Penobscot and Piscataquis counties in order to 
alleviate and eliminate the causes and conditions of poverty.
For the year ending May 31, 2020 the following services were provided to 
residents:

Central Heating Improvement Program	 2	Clients	 $3,272
  Repairs or replaces faulty central heating systems.
Child and Adult Care Food Program	 1	Provider	 $7,368
  Reimburses child care providers for nutritious meals and snacks.
Emergency Crisis Intervention Program	 1	Household	 $240
  Provides home heating assistance to income-eligible households that are in an emergency 
or energy crisis.
Family Development Account (FDA) Program	 1	Client	 $1,594
  Provides matched savings accounts statewide for home purchase & repair, car purchase & 
repair, microbusiness development, and emergencies.
Foreclosure Intervention Counseling	 1	Household	 $285
  This HUD certified counseling program assists homeowners in finding alternatives to 
foreclosure.
Home Buyer Education	 3	Clients	 $855
  An 8-hour certified hoMEworks training course to help individuals make prudent home 
purchase decisions and access MaineHousing loan programs and down payment assistance.
Home Energy Assistance Program	 38	Households	 $30,635
  Assists income-eligable households with home heating costs.
Lead Inspection	 1	Client	 $29,745
  Identifies lead hazards in the home. Grants available for lead remediation for income-
eligable families with children 6 years or younger.
Rental Assistance	 1	Household	 $500
  The COVID-19 Rent Relief Program is for renters who cannot afford to pay their rent due to 
circumstances related to the COVID-19 pandemic. This program is an income based program 
and provides up to $1,000 per month for a maximum of three (3) months for rent and utilities 
not covered by any other Federal, State or Local program. If you live in housing that receives 
any kind of rental subsidy, you are not eligible. 
Retired & Senior Volunteer Program	 2	Volunteers	 $968
  Connects volunteers age 55+ with service opportunities in their communities.
Weatherization	 1	Household	 $10,664
  Applies weatherization techniques to eligible households to conserve energy.
Total Value:			   $86,126
This year we are requesting:  $0
Municipal support is greatly appreciated, as it provides flexible funds to meet important needs 
that specific, earmarked Federal and State funding does not allow.
Thank you for your continued interest and support!
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Spectrum Generations
How Spectrum Generations helped the

Town of Washington
in our most recent fiscal year:

•	 Provided services to 26 unduplicated Washington residents.
•	 978 meals delivered through Meals on Wheels.
•	 Aging and Disability Resource Specialists provided 11 hours of 

outreach, counseling on topics including elder abuse, prescription drug 
coverage, and long-term care.
1 Washington resident volunteered 135 hours of their time to Spectrum 

Generations.
Additionally, 4 caregivers were able to receive 25 hours of respite 

services, aiding in the balancing act of working and taking care of an older 
or disabled loved one; 9 meals and socialization were enjoyed through our 
community dining program by 1 person.

Our health and wellness classes were attended by 1 person.
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Washington Broadband Committee
Friends of Washington,

The Washington Broadband Committee (appointed August 6, 2020) was 
formed to evaluate available affordable, equal access, high speed internet 
options for the Town of Washington. We have been conducting surveys 
to collect information and opinions about the current status and needs for 
internet services in our Town. Our goal is to have 100% of the Town benefit 
from a high speed internet option.

A broadband or high speed internet connection has a minimum 
download speed of 25 Mbps and a minimum upload speed of 3 Mbps. We 
have been asking members of the community to take a speedtest (www.
speedtest.net) to record what internet speeds they are actually getting. We 
have had a great response from community members and a majority will 
agree that they are not getting the speeds that they are paying for. 

Our incumbent provider is Consolidated Communications, Inc. CCI 
uses Digital Subscriber Line (DSL) technology to provide our internet 
connection over telephone lines. DSL slows down considerably when 
there is high use. It offers decent download speed, but the upload speed is 
generally poor. The upload speed is important because it is how we connect 
to others. The current copper infrastructure is antiquated and will only 
continue to degrade over time. 

Internet speeds have been a major concern during the pandemic. 
Students are learning remotely. Telecommuting is more common. People 
are relying on Telemedicine appointments to see their physician. Religious 
services are available online. People are connecting with each other via 
social media more regularly. The inadequate speeds that are currently 
available to us make these new norms difficult to adapt to and survive. 

Internet Service Providers are unwilling to invest and improve internet 
speeds in rural communities because they feel that there is a minimal return 
in their investment. We have connected with and received information about 
the models used by four local ISPs, including CCI, and we have learned that 
each one requires support of the Town. They are unwilling to invest in a 
rural community unless the Town is willing to be a part of the process, and 
generally a financial investment by the Town is required. 

We would like you to consider the idea that investing in high speed 
internet is like investing in the modern road. This is an investment that will 
allow us to connect with each other at a speed that is necessary in this day 
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and age. This will not be a quick process and will require a lot of work. We 
exist so that we can assist in this process and help make high speed internet 
a part of our future.

Respectfully submitted,
The WBBC
SARA  BULLARD, Chair
SARAH  MASTERS, Secretary 
TOM  JOHNSTON, Selectman
WILL  CASSIS
PATIENCE  EATON
MISTY  DARTON
WILL  DARTON
VALERIE  JACKSON
ANDREW  MASTERS
LEE  SHANE
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Tri County Solid Waste Management 
Organization

Greetings,
As we move from a year of unprecedented events to a new year whose 

path has yet to unfold, I reflect upon the more promising and visible events 
at the transfer station. Employees remain our greatest asset, so I would 
begin by welcoming Terri Gilman and Kevin Smith, who joined our staff 
of attendants this year. We replaced an aging trash trailer with a new one, 
delivered from the manufacturer this past summer. Safety, a continual 
priority for all Tri County employees, has been further enhanced by the 
posting of speed limit signs and pavement markings, new gate signage, and 
the purchase of high visibility coats and hats for the attendants. This apparel 
purchase was made possible through a Maine Municipal safety grant. 

As in past years, Tri County’s annual Hazardous Household Waste 
Day event is scheduled for the morning of the third Saturday in June. This 
year, it is planned for Saturday, 19 June, from 8:30-11:00 AM. As this date 
approaches, notification will be sent to member town offices, and will be 
displayed at the station and on the website.

Our “free section” in the trash building will remain closed for the 
duration for the protection of our patrons. “Social distancing” is merely 
impossible in such a confined space.

Once again, I wish to extend sincere thanks from all of us to all of you, 
our loyal patrons, for your support in all our endeavors this past year.

Regards,
David  Stanley, 
Manager
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U.S. Senator’s Report
Washington, DC

Dear Friends,
2020 was a year unlike any in our lifetimes. Our state and nation 

dealt with unprecedented challenges – the coronavirus pandemic, ensuing 
economic fallout, and a prolonged, heavily divisive campaign season each 
took a significant toll on all of us. The worst part? In order to protect each 
other, we had to face these challenges in isolation. But a new year represents 
new possibilities; a chance to take stock of what we’re grateful for and 
focus on the opportunities in front of us. As we reflect back on 2020, we 
will remember heartbreak and loss – but we cannot forget the shining rays 
of hope that broke through the darkness, reminding us all that better days 
are ahead.

Throughout the pandemic, my top focus has been on bridging the 
partisan divide in Washington in order to deliver desperately needed 
relief for Maine people. Joined by colleagues last March, we pushed for 
bipartisan negotiations to produce a strong bill that helped fellow Mainers, 
businesses, and institutions weather this storm. In the weeks and months 
after the CARES Act passed, our team stayed in close contact with people 
throughout the state to determine how we should adjust our response to 
best support our citizens. Unfortunately, the aid provided by the CARES 
Act lapsed without Congressional action, leaving too many families and 
businesses in limbo. I never stopped pushing for a bipartisan relief bill and, 
after extensive negotiations, we ended the year on a good note by breaking 
the gridlock and passing new relief legislation. This new bill isn’t perfect; 
in fact, it should just be the start our renewed response. As we enter 2021 
with a new administration and new Congress, we must fight for additional 
legislation to help restore stability to our working families and rebuild our 
economy and public health infrastructure. 

In the midst of this crisis, Congress did manage to accomplish a few 
successes that will outlast this awful pandemic. Among these was the Great 
American Outdoors Act, a bipartisan bill which was enacted into law in 
August 2020 and will help address a $12 billion backlog at our national 
parks so future generations of Americans can enjoy these beautiful lands 
and create lifelong memories. Also, as we learn more about the recent hacks 
of our nation’s networks, there is help on the way: 27 of the cybersecurity 
recommendations made by the Cyberspace Solarium Commission – which 
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I co-chair with Republican Congressman Mike Gallagher– made it into this 
year’s defense bill. While there is no guarantee that these provisions would 
have prevented the massive hack, they will certainly improve our cyber 
defenses.

Despite the challenges, I’m hopeful for the future. Vaccines are being 
distributed across our state – starting with our healthcare heroes, who have 
sacrificed so much throughout this unprecedented catastrophe and deserve 
our eternal gratitude. If there can be a silver lining from these challenges 
of 2020, maybe it will be this: I hope that, in the not-so distant future, we 
will be able to come together physically and we will be reminded of our 
love for each other. We have differences, without a doubt. But as Maine 
people stepped up to support each other, we saw again and again that our 
differences pale in comparison to the values we share. We are one state, and 
one community – and there is nothing we cannot or will not do for each 
other. Mary and I wish you a happy and healthy 2021. We can’t wait to see 
you soon. 

Best Regards,
Angus  S.  King,  Jr.
United States Senator
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U.S. Senator’s Report
Washington, DC

Dear Friends:
It is an honor to represent Maine in the United States Senate. I am 

grateful for the trust the people of our State have placed in me and welcome 
this opportunity to reflect on 2020, an incredibly challenging year for Maine 
families, small businesses, and communities. 

When the pandemic struck, our country faced the specter of an 
overwhelmed health care system and devastation to our small businesses and 
the millions of people they employ. I immediately worked with Republicans 
and Democrats to pass multiple laws allocating approximately $3 trillion to 
respond to this public health and economic crisis, including more than $8 
billion directed to Maine to support testing, schools, the economy, and other 
purposes - that is nearly double Maine’s annual state budget.

I am especially proud of the bipartisan Paycheck Protection Program 
(PPP) I co-authored. This program has provided three out of four Maine 
small businesses with nearly $2.3 billion in forgivable loans, which has 
helped sustain more than 250,000 Maine jobs. I have met thousands of 
Maine small employers and employees in all 16 counties who are surviving 
because of the PPP. As one small business owner told me, the PPP provided 
“exactly what we needed at exactly the right time.” The PPP also allowed 
employers to maintain benefits, such as health care, during this challenging 
time. Another round of PPP is needed to sustain small businesses and their 
employees. 

While the pandemic continues across Maine, our nation, and the world, 
I thank the first responders, health care professionals, teachers, grocery store 
employees, factory workers, farmers, truck drivers, postal employees, and 
so many others who continue to stay on the job during this difficult time. 
With the deployment of the first vaccines, better tests, and the incredible 
speed with which these life-saving responses were developed, I am hopeful 
we can emerge from this crisis in the next few months.

While providing relief to American families was my focus throughout 
2020, other accomplishments include the passage of the Great American 
Outdoors Act, which provides full funding of the Land and Water 
Conservation Fund and addresses the maintenance backlog at our national 
parks, forests, and wildlife refuges. As Chairman of the Transportation 
Appropriations Subcommittee, in 2020 alone, I secured $132 million to 
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improve Maine’s roads, bridges, airports, buses, rail, ferries, and seaports. 
Finally, as Chairman of the Aging Committee, I led the reauthorization of 
the Older Americans Act, which funds programs that improve the well-
being, independence, and health of our nation’s seniors and their caregivers, 
and I authored laws to reduce the cost of prescription drugs and protect 
individuals with Alzheimer’s disease. 

As the end of 2020 is approaching, I have cast more than 7,535 votes, 
never having missed one. In the New Year, my focus remains to work with 
colleagues to find common ground on policies to help support the health 
and safety of Mainers and the safe, responsible opening of our communities. 
If ever I or my staff can be of assistance to you, please do not hesitate to 
contact one of my state offices. May the coming year be a successful one for 
you, your family, your community, and our state.

Sincerely, 
Susan  M.  Collins 
United States Senator
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U.S. Representative’s Report
Dear Friends,

2020 has been a year of unconscionable loss and hardship. The 
COVID-19 pandemic has ravaged our nation, magnifying long-unaddressed 
inequities. I hear daily from constituents whose lives have been upended by 
the pandemic. As we navigate these ongoing challenges, my top priority in 
Congress has been to advocate for the resources Maine residents, businesses, 
and institutions need to weather this crisis.

In March, the CARES Act was signed into law, providing much-needed 
relief to Mainers, including expanded unemployment benefits, stimulus 
checks, grants and loans for small businesses and nonprofits, and funding for 
health care providers on the front lines of this crisis. As this crisis wore on, I 
saw increased need; that’s why I voted for the Heroes Act in May and again 
in October to provide further support. I’m relieved we passed another relief 
package at the end of December, but I know another round of support is still 
much needed in the coming year.

The pandemic isn’t the only crisis we face. Climate change threatens 
Maine’s environment and industries. This summer, the Gulf of Maine 
recorded its hottest day, and we experienced the longest, most severe drought 
in 20 years. Maine farms continue to be stymied by climate change, but they 
can also play a crucial role in combatting it. In February, I introduced the 
Agriculture Resilience Act to ensure American agriculture is net-zero by 
2045. The release of Maine’s Climate Action Plan is a major step in the fight 
against climate change. I will continue to work with state leaders to ensure 
they have federal support to achieve this agenda.

2021  will offer different challenges. We must distribute a vaccine 
to millions, restore jobs, uplift the economy, and repair the divisions that 
undermine our ability to make meaningful change. I look forward to working 
with the incoming presidential administration to meet these challenges and 
emerge as a stronger, more resilient nation.

As always, the needs of Mainers guide my work as we recover from this 
crisis. If there is anything my office can do to help, please reach out.

Sincerely,
Chellie  Pingree
Member of Congress
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Governor’s Report
Dear Friends:

When I took the oath of office to become Maine’s 75th governor, I never 
imagined that we would face a pandemic. But that is our current reality, and 
it is my solemn responsibility to guide our state through this unprecedented 
time to keep Maine people safe and healthy.

COVID-19 is wreaking havoc on our national economy, dealing heavy 
losses to businesses of all sizes, while millions of people find themselves 
newly unemployed. Here in Maine it has taken the lives of hundreds of 
people and sickened many more. While we all dream of going back to the 
way things were, the fact is that our lives will not return to normal soon. 
Instead, we have to invent a new normal - a different way of doing business, 
shopping, traveling, and enjoying the Maine outdoors - one that keeps us 
all safe.

My Administration, in collaboration with public health experts and 
business leaders across the state, developed a plan to gradually and safely 
restart Maine’s economy. My Administration has also formed an Economic 
Recovery Committee charged with assessing the economic impacts of the 
pandemic on Maine’s economy and providing recommendations for policy 
changes to deal with these impacts. Together, drawing on the hard work and 
resilience of Maine people, we will rebuild and strengthen our economy and 
rise from this unprecedented challenge a stronger state than ever.

I continue to be amazed by the strength and courage of the Maine 
people and businesses who have found different ways to do business and the 
brave first responders in your town and in our health care facilities. Thank 
you to the people of Maine who have demonstrated patience, kindness, and 
compassion during this difficult time.

Please take care,
Janet  T.  Mills
Governor

P.S. For the latest information and guidance on Maine’s response to 
COVID-19, as well as resources for assistance during this time, please visit 
www.maine.govicovid 19/.
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State Senator’s Report
Thank you for the opportunity to represent you in the Maine Senate; 

I am truly humbled that you have chosen me to be your voice in Augusta, 
especially during this unprecedented time.

Since the pandemic arrived in Maine in March 2020, we have been 
faced with many challenges that few of us could have predicted. This public 
health crisis has brought with it economic and personal consequences that 
have touched every person in our state. Though there is hope that a vaccine 
means we are nearing the end of the worst of the pandemic, our challenges 
are far from over. The next couple of years will be critical to building a path 
forward into a bright future for our state.

In the Legislature, I have been appointed to serve on the Marine 
Resources Committee and the Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry 
Committee. I am excited work on these committees, which directly impact 
life for so many in our communities. These committees oversee matters 
that involve many of our heritage industries, including farming and fishing, 
and we know that the coming years will present these industries with real 
challenges if we do not prepare. These industnes are cntical to our culture 
and our economy. We need to be proactive in finding ways they can continue 
to operate and grow sustainably in a changing climate. Maine’s natural 
resources are absolutely essential to our way of life and protecting them is 
our responsibility.

Over the next couple of years, I look forward to working on these 
important issues and more. The pandemic has highlighted several areas 
where we have made progress in recent years, but we also see that we must 
keep working to improve. All Mainers need access to quality health care 
and to reliable, high-speed intemet, which has become a necessity. We must 
also support the workers and small businesses, which form the backbone of 
our economy, as we strive to rebuild in the coming years.

I know many in our community are still struggling, and I want to remind 
you that I’m here as a resource for you and your family. If you need help 
securing unemployment benefits, putting food on the table, connecting with 
a state agency, or just want to talk something through, I’m here to help. You 
can email me at Chloe.Maxmin@legislature.maine.gov or call me on my 
cell phone (207) 200-6224. I really mean it when I say reach out anytime.
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These difficult times are going to require cooperation and creativity 
from all of us. I am committed to working with and for everyone in our 
community, listening to all perspectives, and finding common ground to 
heal our state.

Sincerely,
Chloe  Maxmin
State Senator
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State Representative’s Report
Dear Friends and Neighbors,

It is an honor and pleasure to represent you in the 1 30th Maine 
Legislature. I wanted to take this opportunity to inform you about our efforts 
to improve your lives.

In my last report to you I said I was hopeful that we would enact 
proposals to increase municipal revenue sharing, the Homestead Exemption, 
and aid to education. We were successful in enacting all three. However, 
due to the Covid-19 Pandemic, Maine’s finances, like all other states, are 
now in trouble. The Governor’s proposal to tax the PPP loans that our small 
businesses received to survive last year will most definitely not receive my 
support. It’s a terrible idea and will certainly do untold damage to our small 
businesses.

Two of the biggest challenges facing Maine in 2021 continue to be the 
deplorable issues around the performance of Central Maine Power and the 
challenges being faced by the Maine lobster industry.

First, in reference to CMP, last year I testified before the Public Utilities 
Commission on your behalf in opposition to the proposed rate increase and 
demanded that  CMP refund all the money they overcharged my constituents 
and other Mainers in their overbilling scheme. Both the PUC and Maine’s 
Public Advocate heard my concerns and are currently investigating these 
serious matters. I want to be clear that I am in full support of CMP’s line 
workers who put their lives on the line for us every day.

In addition, I continue to oppose the CMP power “corridor” in western 
Maine....to Massachusetts. Are you kidding me? You can count on me to 
oppose this proposal. Does anyone think Massachusetts would allow Maine 
to slice through the Berkshires to send power to Maine? Of course not, so I 
will be forcefully opposing this proposal.

Second, I am deeply concerned about the unjustified and unfair 
proposals  being promoted by the federal agency NOAA, who is blaming 
the Maine lobster industry for Right Whale deaths despite the fact that they 
have publicly admitted there is no evidence to back up this claim. I have 
joined hands with my fishermen and women in my District to fight these 
draconian proposals and have attended hearings and provided testimony 
against these proposals. The lobster industry is the lifeline to our local 
economy and you can rest assured I will continue to fight to protect your 
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interests. Recent news also indicates that most of the wind power projects 
that were slated to interfere with out lobster fleet have now been put on 
hold.

I have enjoyed representing Washington, something I also did in the 
1980’s and 1990’s when I served SAD #40, when we all collaborated to 
build the Prescott Memorial School addition and gymnasium. The people 
are friendly and I appreciate it. I also wanted to thank the Selectmen and 
women, Town Office staff, our emergency responders, and the Public Works 
crew who keep our roads safe. I appreciate the work you do. I would  like 
to thank Mary Anderson and her staff for the great job they have done in 
adjusting  to conditions of operation during the Pandemic.

I also wanted to comment to you about your beautiful town. Last fall 
I campaigned hard in Washington, traveling your back roads and hills on 
crisp autumn days, foliage brimming brightly. When I arrived at home I 
told my wife that Washington is one of the most picturesque towns in New 
England!

Sincerely,
Jeffrey  Evangelos
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Town Meeting Results
Warrant For 2020 Annual Town Meeting

TO: Christopher Lascoutx, Constable, Town of Washington.
GREETINGS

In the name of the State of Maine, you are hereby required to notify and warn 
the voters of the Town of Washington, Knox County, Maine, qualified by law to 
vote in town affairs, to meet at the Bryant Room of the Gibbs Library, 40 Old Union 
Road, Washington, on Tuesday, July 14, 2020, at 8:00 a.m., then and there to act 
on Article 1 and by secret ballot on Article 2, as set out below, the polling hours 
therefore to be from 8:00 a.m. until 8:00 p.m.:

And to notify and warn said voters to meet at the Washington Fire Department, 
42 Old Union Road, Washington, on Saturday, July 18, 2020, at 10:00 a.m., then and 
there to act on Articles 3 through 41 as set out below, to wit:

Article 1:	 To choose a moderator by written ballot to preside at said meeting.
	 Town Clerk, Mary Anderson, opened town meeting before the polls 

were opened for the Primary State Election, School Election and 
Town Election. The Town Election and meeting were postponed 
due to COVID-19 and all the restrictions. A motion was made and 
seconded to nominate Walter Metcalf as moderator who was the 
only nominee and then was elected with 3 votes. The Town Clerk 
duly swore him into office. 

Article 2:	 To elect all necessary town officers and school board members as are 
required to be elected.

	 A motion was made and seconded to elect all necessary town officers 
and school board members as are required to be elected. The ballot 
boxes were inspected and secured. Walter Metcalf opened the 
polls.

	 Linda Luce, Jacqueline Metcalf, Mildred Melgard, Cathy Blake, 
and Elizabeth Grinnell checked in voters. The polls were closed 
at 8p.m. by Moderator Walter Metcalf. Ballot Clerks Katherine 
Grinnell, Elizabeth Grinnell, Cathy Blake, Stephanie Grinnell and 
Mary Anderson counted the ballots. The moderator adjourned the 
meeting until 10a.m. Saturday, July 14, 2020, at the Washington 
Fire Station.

	 On Saturday, July 14, Linda Luce and Mildred Melgard checked 
in 56 voters into the town meeting. Michael Mayo was sworn in as 
Deputy Moderator. The town clerk announced the results of Article 
2 as follows:

	 The following is a list of ballots cast: 
	 Selectman/Assessor/Overseer of the Poor 3 year term:
		  Thomas Johnston: 277

continued next page
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		  ShaRon Kelly: 93
		  Blanks: 38
	 School Board Member 3 year term:
		  Guy Bourrie: 314
		  Blanks: 47
	 Town Clerk, Mary Anderson opened Town Meeting and Fire Chief, 

Phil Meunier, led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Article 3: 	 To elect seven citizens and two alternates to serve on the Town of 
Washington Budget Committee.

	 A motion was made and seconded to elect seven citizens and two 
alternates to serve on the Town of Washington Budget Committee.

	 Michael Mayo called for nominations for seven citizens and two 
alternates to serve on the Budget Committee. Wesley Daniel read the 
list of nominees who were elected unanimously: Donald Grinnell, 
Walter Metcalf, Kathleen Ocean, Wendy Carr, Jesse Casas, David 
Williams, David Martucci. Deborah Bocko and Peg Hobbs were 
elected as alternates.

	 All in favor of this slate

Article 4: 	 To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to appoint all 
necessary town officials.

	 A motion was made and seconded to authorize the Selectmen to 
appoint all necessary town officials

	 Motion carries unanimously 	 Article 4 passes.

Article 5:	 To see if the Town will vote to authorize that the Plumbing Inspector be 
paid from fees collected from plumbing permits; the E911 Coordinator 
be paid from E911  applications fees; and the Driveway Entrance 
Coordinator be paid from driveway entrance application fees.

	 A motion was made and seconded to authorize that the Plumbing 
Inspector be paid from fees collected from plumbing permits; the 
E911 Coordinator be paid from E911 application fees; and the 
Driveway Entrance Coordinator be paid from driveway entrance 
application fees.

	 Motion carries unanimously 	 Article 5 passes.

Article 6:	 To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Municipal Officers to 
spend an amount not to exceed 3/12 of the budgeted amount in each 
budgeted category of the 2020 annual budget during the period from 
January 1, 2021, to the date of the 2021 Annual Town Meeting.

	 Explanation: This article legalizes municipal expenditures made after 
the fiscal year ends, but before the next Annual Town Meeting.

	 A motion was made and seconded to authorize the Municipal 
Officers to spend an amount not to exceed 3/12 of the budgeted 
amount in each budgeted category of the 2020 annual budget 
during the period from January 1, 2021, to the date of the 2021 

continued next page
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Annual Town Meeting. Charlotte Henderson asked if we need to 
amend the dates. Tom Johnston stated that this is for the 2021 town 
meeting. We’ve already exceeded what we were authorized for this 
year, 2020, through March at last year’s town meeting. We were 
authorized to go beyond March per the governor’s emergency 
declaration.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 6 passes.

Article 7:	 To see if the Town will fix a date when taxes will be due and payable, 
and fix a rate of interest to be charged on unpaid taxes after said date. 

 	 (Selectmen and Tax Collector recommend 2020 taxes will be due and 
payable on October 1, 2020) (Maximum interest rate on overdue taxes 
allowed by State Law: 8.0%) 

	 David Martucci made a motion for October 1, 2020 for the due date 
and 8% for the interest rate, motion was seconded. The first vote is 
for the proposed amount; taxes due and payable on October 1, 2020 
and the interest rate on overdue taxes to be 8%. The second vote is 
to pass the article as written.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 7 passes.

Article 8:	 To see if the Town will vote to set the interest rate to be paid by the 
Town on abated taxes at 4%.

	 Explanation: If taxes are paid and later abated, the Town must refund 
the abated taxes and pay interest on them. 36 MRSA, Sub. Sect. 506A 
calls for interest of 8% on abated taxes if the Town fails to set a rate. 
The rate set by the Town cannot be less than 4%.

	 A motion was made and seconded to set the interest rate to be paid 
by the Town on abated taxes at 4%.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 8 passes.

Article 9:	 To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Municipal Officers to make 
a final determination regarding the closing or opening of roads to winter 
maintenance pursuant to 23 MRSA Section 2953.

	 A motion was made and seconded to authorize the Municipal 
Officers to make a final determination regarding the closing or 
opening of roads to winter maintenance pursuant to 23 MRSA 
Section 2953.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 9 passes.

Article 10:	 To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to sell and 
dispose of property acquired by tax liens, other liens, or other processes, 
and to issue quitclaim deeds for same. Before going to public auction, 
Selectmen are authorized to offer the sale of the property to the former 
owner for back taxes, interests, and costs. If the offer is not accepted in 
60 days, the Selectmen may dispose of the property by public auction. 
All net proceeds from any auction shall be placed in the town’s road 
reserve account.
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	 A motion was made and seconded to authorize the Selectmen to sell 
and dispose of property acquired by tax liens, other liens, or other 
processes, and to issue quitclaim deeds for same. Before going to 
public auction, Selectmen are authorized to offer the sale of the 
property to the former owner for back taxes, interests, and costs. If 
the offer is not accepted in 60 days, the Selectmen may dispose of 
the property by public auction. All net proceeds from any auction 
shall be placed in the town’s road reserve account.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 10 passes.

Article 11:	 To see if the Town will authorize the Selectmen to appropriate money 
from the sale of any Town tax acquired lands to pay the costs of said 
sale.

	 A motion was made and seconded to authorize the Selectmen to 
appropriate money from the sale of any town tax-acquired lands to 
pay the costs of said sale.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 11 passes.	

Article 12:	 To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to dispose of 
town-owned items with a value of $5,000.00 or less under such terms 
and conditions as they deem advisable.

	 A motion was made and seconded to authorize the Selectmen to 
dispose of town-owned items with a value of $5,000.00 or less under 
such terms and conditions as they deem advisable.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 12 passes.

Article 13: 	 To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the 2020 Snowmobile 
Refund to the Washington Hill & Gully Riders for the sole purpose 
of maintaining their snowmobile trails, to be open to the use of the 
public from November 15 until April 1 and to authorize the municipal 
officers to enter into an agreement with the club, under such terms 
and conditions as the municipal officers may deem advisable, for that 
purpose, or see what action the Town will take.

	 Explanation: The snowmobile registration money must be appropriated 
annually by the Town for whatever purpose it desires. If all or part 
of it is appropriated to the snowmobile club, one of the conditions of 
that appropriation must be that the club’s trails are open to public use. 
Otherwise, it would be an illegal appropriation of public funds for a 
private group.

	 A motion was made and seconded to appropriate the 2020 
Snowmobile Refund to the Washington Hill & Gully Riders for 
the sole purpose of maintaining their snowmobile trails, to be open 
to the use of the public from November 15 until April 1 and to 
authorize the municipal officers to enter into an agreement with 
the club, under such terms and conditions as the municipal officers 
may deem advisable, for that purpose.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 13 passes.
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Article 14:	 To see if the Town will authorize the Tax Collector to accept prepayment 
of taxes for the years 2020 and 2021 for taxes not yet due or assessed 
and for no interest to accrue.

	 A motion was made and seconded to authorize the Tax Collector to 
accept prepayment of taxes for the years 2020 and 2021 for taxes 
not yet due or assessed and for no interest to accrue.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 14 passes.

Article 15:	 To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Tax Collector to offer a Tax 
Club Payment Plan and to waive interest on taxes for those accounts 
that are kept current.

	 A motion was made and seconded to authorize the Tax Collector 
to offer a Tax Club Payment Plan and to waive interest on taxes 
for those accounts that are kept current. Donald Grinnell asked 
how many citizens take advantage of the Tax Club. Mary Anderson 
stated 70-90.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 15 passes.

Article 16:	 To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Fire Chief and other 
municipal officials to apply for Homeland Security and/or other grants 
for Emergency Services.

	 A motion was made and seconded to authorize the Fire Chief and 
other municipal officials to apply for Homeland Security and/or 
other grants for Emergency Services.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 16 passes.

Article 17:	 To see if the Town will vote to spend any grant money received, not 
to exceed the amount of the grant, for the stated purposes of the grant 
only.

	 A motion was made and seconded to spend any grant money 
received, not to exceed the amount of the grant, for the stated 
purposes of the grant only.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 17 passes.	

Article 18: 	 To see if the Town will vote to move the 2020 overlay, plus supplemental 
tax assessments and less any tax abatements, into the Road Maintenance 
Reserve Account.

	 A motion was made and seconded to move the 2020 overlay, plus 
supplemental tax assessments and less any tax abatements, into the 
Road Maintenance Reserve Account.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 18 passes.

Article 19:	 To see if the Town will vote to move any monies remaining in the Public 
Safety account on December 31, 2020 to the Fire Equipment Reserve 
account.
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	 A motion was made and seconded to move any monies remaining 
in the Public Safety account on December 31, 2020, to the Fire 
Equipment Reserve account.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 19 passes.

Article 20:	 To see if the Town will vote to approve an ordinance entitled Adult Use 
Marijuana Licensing.

	 Note: As posted with this warrant, and available at the Town Office
	 A motion was made and seconded to approve an ordinance entitled 

Adult Use Marijuana Licensing.	
	 Motion carries with 4 opposed	 Article 20 passes.

Article 21:	 To see if the Town will vote to approve the amendment to the Tri-
County Solid Waste Management Organization Interlocal Cooperative 
Agreement as appears below in this Article and made a part hereof:

	 A motion was made and seconded to approve the amendment to 
the Tri-County Solid Waste Management Organization Interlocal 
Cooperative Agreement as appears below in this Article and made 
a part hereof.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 21 passes.

TRI-COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATION
INTERLOCAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT

Part 3 – ADMINISTR ATION

Section 3.2,	Joint Board. 
	 The operation and management responsibilities of the organization 

shall be delegated to Directors designated as the Joint Board. At least 
one Director from each Member Town shall be a municipal officer. 
Additional Directors and alternates may be municipal officers or 
municipal officials. It is desirous, but not required, that Directors and 
alternates be municipal officers (Selectmen) or municipal officials. The 
apportionment of Directors among the member communities shall be 
as follows: one Director from each Member Town with a population 
of 1 000 or less; two Directors from each Member Town with a 
population of 1,001 to 2,500; three Directors from each Member Town 
with a population greater than 2,500. Initial allocation of seats on the 
Joint Board shall be delegated to Member Towns in accordance with 
populations reflected by 1988 Maine Department of Human Services 
census data. Subsequent allocations shall be made based upon United 
States Census Bureau data, beginning with 1 990 reports, or upon 
population data provided by the Maine Department of Human Services, 
whichever is more current. Directors and alternates from each Member 
Town shall be appointed by the Board of Selectmen of that town to serve 
a term of one year. Each Director or alternate may be reappointed to 
such terms indefinitely. The Board of Selectmen of each Member Town 
shall appoint one alternate member to the Joint Board. An alternate may 
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be appointed by the chairman of the Joint Board as a voting member 
of that body at any time a Director from his or her perspective Member 
Town is absent when a vote is taken. Under no other circumstances 
may an alternate have voting power. Each Director, or voting alternate 
where appropriate, shall cast one vote. 

	 Purpose: The purpose of this proposed amendment to the Tri-County 
Solid Waste Management Organization Inter local Cooperative 
Agreement is to eliminate the requirement that all members of the 
Joint Board be either municipal officers (Selectmen) or municipal 
officials. Restricting membership on the Joint Board to municipal 
officers or officials has proven problematic. This amendment will allow 
the Selectmen of each Member Town to appoint non-governmental 
representatives to the Joint Board. 

Article 22:	 To see if the Town will vote to approve the amendment to the Tri-
County Solid Waste Management Organization Interlocal Cooperative 
Agreement as appears below in this Article and made a part hereof:

	 A motion was made and seconded to approve the amendment to 
the Tri-County Solid Waste Management Organization Interlocal 
Cooperative Agreement as appears below in this Article and made 
a part hereof.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 22 passes.

TRI-COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATION
INTERLOCAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT

Part 4 – FINANCE

Section 4.2 In-Kind Contributions.
(a)	 Subject to prior approval by the Joint Board, credit shall be given to 

the parties for in-kind contributions to the Corporation. Credit amounts 
shall be based upon actual costs and shall be limited to administrative 
overhead, office space, telephone, equipment and supplies, and to costs 
of obtaining real property acquired and provided by a party for a facility 
site. 

(b)	 The Corporation agrees to provide an annual in-lieu-of-taxes credit 
payment to the Member Town in which the Facility is located 
equal to the amount of property tax revenue lost as a result of the 
Corporation’s Tax-exempt status. 

	 Purpose: The purpose of this proposed amendment to the Tri-County 
Solid Waste Management Organization Interlocal Cooperative 
Agreement is to change the manner of recognizing in-kind contributions 
to a Member hosting the facility from an actual payment to a credit. 

Article 23:	 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $4200.00 to replace 
the Dugouts on the Little League ball field.
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	 A motion was made and seconded to raise and appropriate $4,200.00 
to replace the Dugouts on the Little League ball field. Peg Hobbs, 
Recreation Committee, stated she hopes that this article passes. 
The dugouts were built about 15 years ago and are rotting. The 
new dugouts will be built by the Amish in Whitefield; they will be 
tied down, have metal roofs and a better gravel pad underneath.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 23 passes.	

Article 24:	 To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the following General Fund 
revenues to be applied toward the 2020 property tax commitment, 
thereby decreasing the 2020 tax commitment by $469,175.00.	  

	 Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend:
	 	 Excise Tax Revenue	  265,000.00
		  Revenue Sharing	  90,000.00
		  Tree Growth Reimbursement	  2,800.00
		  Building Permits	  1,500.00
		  Mining Permits and Inspections	  4,000.00
		  Interest on Overdue Taxes	  12,000.00
		  Veterans Reimbursement	 1,600.00
		  General Fund Interest	 8,000.00
		  Other Town Fees Collected	 9,275.00
		  Unexpended 2019 Appropriations	 25,000.00
		  Transferred from Undesignated Fund Balance	 50,000.00
			   Total	 $469,175.00

	 A motion was made and seconded to appropriate the following 
General Fund revenues to be applied toward the 2020 property 
tax commitment, thereby decreasing the 2020 tax commitment by 
$469,175.00. 

	 Motion carried unanimously	 Article 24 passes.

Article 25: 	 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $326,510.00 from 
property taxation for 2020 Knox 	 	
County, Tri-County Solid Waste Management Organization and Union 
Ambulance assessments.

	 Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend as advisory lines:
	 	 Knox County Tax Assessment	 $174,381.00
		  Knox County Communications	 50,450.00
		  Union Ambulance	 58,174.00
		  Tri-County Solid Waste	 43,505.00
			    $326,510.00
	
	 A motion was made and seconded to raise and appropriate 

$326,510.00 from property taxation for 2020 Knox County, 
Tri-County Solid Waste management Organization and Union 
Ambulance assessments.

	 Motion carried unanimously	 Article 25 passes.
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Article 26:	 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $52,450.00 from 
property taxation for General Government Operations. 

	 Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend as advisory lines: 
	 	 Legal Fees	 7,500.00
		  Administration	 44,950.00
		  Advertising	 1,000.00
		  Computer Annual Fees	 14,000.00
		  Audit of Town Books	 5,900.00
		  Computer Tech Support	 1,000.00
		  MMA Dues	 2,800.00
		  Workshops and Training	 2,000.00
		  Mileage	 1,500.00
		  Office Equipment	 4,200.00
		  Office Supplies	 2,500.00
		  Postage	 3,100.00
		  Selectmen Discretionary Fund	 500.00
		  Tax Maps	 1,000.00
		  Tax Billing	 1,500.00
		  Town Report Printing	 3,000.00
		  Tax Anticipation Note	 $500.00
		  Money Order Fees	 450.00
			   Subtotal	 44,950.00
			   Total	 $52,450
	 A motion was made and seconded to raise and appropriate 

$52,450.00 from property taxation for General Government 
Operations. 

	 Motion carried unanimously	 Article 26 passes.

Article 27:	 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $32,338.00 from 
property taxation for Insurance

	 Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend as advisory lines: 
	 	 MMA Insurance Risk Pool	 $ 21,935.00
		  Unemployment Insurance	 186.00
		  Worker’s Compensation Premium	 9,317.00
		  Volunteer Insurance	 100.00
		  Firefighter Accident Insurance	  800.00
			   Total 	 $ 32,338.00
	 A motion was made and seconded to raise and appropriate 

$32,338.00 from property taxation for Insurance.
	 Motion carried unanimously	 Article 27 passes

Article 28:	 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $198,787.00 from 
property taxation for Salaries, Stipends, Employee Health Insurance, 
and Payroll Expenses.

	 Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend as advisory lines 
$198,787:
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	 Salaries and Stipends	  $139,142.00
		  Selectmen (3)	 19,500.00
		  Secretary - Selectmen	 800.00
		  Town Clerk/Tax Collector	 23,445.00
		  Treasurer	 13,155.00
		  Deputy Town Clerk/Tax Collector/Treasurer	 22,660.00
		  Deputy Town Clerk/Tax Collector/Treasurer II	  14,832.00
		  Registrar of Voters	  1,500.00
		  Ballot Clerks	 2,500.00
		  EMA Director	 750.00
		  Health Officer	 1000.00
		  Fire Warden (2) 	 300.00
		  Fire Chief	 4,000.00
		  Deputy Fire Chief	 3,000.00
		  Firefighter Stipends	 3,750.00
		  Secretary - Planning Board	 1,000.00
		  Secretary - Appeals Board	 400.00
		  Assessor’s Agent	 5,000.00
		  Animal Control Officer	  3000.00
		  Code Enforcement Officer	 15,450.00
		  Constable	  100.00
		  Moderator of open March town meeting	 200.00
		  School Board Member Stipend (2)	 1,000.00
		  Custodial Services	 1,800.00	

	 Sub-total	 $139,142.00
		  Town Portion of Employee Health Insurance	 37,500.00
		  FICA Payroll Expenses	  22,145.00
			   $59,645.00
			   Total	 198,787.00
	 A motion was made and seconded to raise and appropriate 

$198,787.00 from property taxation for 	 Salaries, Stipends, 
Employee Health Insurance, and Payroll Expenses.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 28 passes.

Article 29:	 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $413,484.00 
from property taxation for Maintenance of Town Roads and related 
operations.

	 Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend as advisory lines: 
$413,484.00	 	
	 Road Maintenance Materials & Supplies	 10,000.00

		  Plow Truck Payment	 20,184.00
		  Truck Fuel	 19,500.00
		  Truck Maintenance:
			   P100	 2,000.00
			   P200	 4,000.00
			   P300	 4,000.00
			   P400	  6,000.00
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			   P500	 4,000.00
		  Cutting Edges and Sander Chains	  11,500.00
		  Culverts	  3,000.00
		  Loader and Backhoe Fuel	 3,500.00
		  Loader, Backhoe & Chipper Maintenance	 5,500.00
		  Garage Mortgage	 13,000.00
		  Garage Utilities	 4,500.00
		  Garage Maintenance	 2,500.00
		  Road Maintenance Labor	 144,200.00
		  Equipment Rental	 13,000.00
		  Screening Winter Sand	 12,000.00
		  Road Salt	 30,000.00
		  E911 and Road Signs	 500.00
		  Paving and Capital Improvement of Town Roads	 100,000.00
		  Driver OSHA and DOT Screening and Testing	  600.00
 			   Total	  $ 413,484.00
	 A motion was made and seconded to raise and appropriate 

$413,484.00 from property taxation for Maintenance of Town 
Roads and related operations.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 29 passes.

Article 30:	 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $2,000.00 from 
property taxation for General Assistance.

	 Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend as advisory lines:
	 	 General Assistance	  2,000.00
	 A motion was made and seconded to raise and appropriate $2,000.00 

from property taxation for General Assistance. Lee Shane asked 
what the General Assistance covers. Wesley Daniel explained, for 
example, that if a resident in town needs help with their fuel or 
anything else, they come in and make out an application, and if 
they qualify the town will pay for part of that and the state pays the 
other part.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 30 passes.

Article 31:	 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $63,165.00 from 
property taxation for Public Safety.

	 Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend as advisory lines: 
	 	 Fire Department General Support	 12,500.00
		  Fire Department Equipment	 12,000.00
		  Firefighter Training	  2,000.00
		  Firefighter Physicals	  2,500.00
		  Fire Truck Loan Payment	 31,365.00
		  Hose Testing	  2,800.00
			   Total	 63,165.00
	 A motion was made and seconded to raise and appropriate 

$63,165.00 from property taxation for Public Safety.
	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 31 passes.
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Article 32:	 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $46,500.00 from 
property taxation for Utilities and Maintenance.

	 Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend as advisory lines:
	 	 Town Utilities	  14,000.00
		  Grounds and Monument Gardens	 1,000.00
		  Building and Grounds Maintenance	  8,000.00
		  Cemetery Maintenance	  14,000.00
		  Street Lights	  3,500.00
		  Municipal Complex Snow Removal	  6,000.00
			   Total	  46,500.00
	 A motion was made and seconded to raise and appropriate 

$46,500.00 from property taxation for Utilities and Maintenance.
	 Motion carried unanimously	 Article 32 passes.

Article 33:	 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $450.00 from 
property taxation for Boards and Committees.

	 Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend as advisory lines:
	 	 Conservation and Parks Committee	 150.00
		  Planning Board Expense	  150.00
		  Comprehensive Plan and
		    Ordinance Review Committee	  150.00
			   Total	  450.00
	 A motion was made and seconded to raise and appropriate $450.00 

from property taxation for Boards and Committees.
	 Motion carried unanimously	 Article 33 passes.

Article 34:	 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $66,100.00 from 
property taxation for Town Carry-over Accounts.

	 Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend as advisory lines:
	 	 Recreation Committee	  2,000.00
		  Headstone Restoration Fund	  1,000.00
		  West Washington Cemetery Restoration	  3,000.00
		  Town Record Preservation Fund	  100.00
		  Fire Truck Replacement Fund	 30,000.00
		  Road Maintenance Truck Fund	 30,000.00
			   Total	 66,100.00
	 A motion was made and seconded to raise and appropriate 

$66,100.00 from property taxation for Town Carry-over Accounts. 
Donald Grinnell moved and David Williams seconded to amend the 
article to lower the fire truck replacement and road maintenance 
truck fund from $30,000.00 to $20,000.00 to reduce the article total 
to $46,100.00 Deborah Bocko asked why $30,000.00 was decided 
upon and why should it be reduced. Thomas Johnston stated that 
in years past they have raised $20,000.00 for both accounts. This 
year we are proposing to purchase a replacement chassis for the 
fire tanker and get that redone with the existing tank and also to 
replace one of the plow trucks. To give us a little more of a down 
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payment we increased those lines to $30,000.00 from $20,000.00 with 
an agreement with the Budget Committee to lower those numbers 
back to $20,000.00 which would help balance the budget and even 
out the mil rate over the two year time period. Donald Grinnell 
stated that there was a lot of discussion over these lines during 
Budget Committee meetings and reducing these lines by $10,000.00 
would not have a significant impact but would help reduce the mil 
rate to help those that have lost their jobs due to COVID-19 for 
2020 taxes. Janet Martucci asked how much of a difference would 
it make in the taxes for each resident. Thomas Johnston did not 
have an exact amount of what the mil rate change would be. Tom 
did say, with those amounts in our budget, the town’s budget, is 
flat from last year to this year. The thought was that if we reduced 
it would give us a one year dip then next year we have to make the 
truck payment which will be approximately $10,000.00; by adding 
this back into this year’s budget it would give us a little bit more of 
a down payment. Chris Packard asked what the amount is in these 
reserve accounts now and what the cost of the trucks is. Thomas 
Johnston stated that the Fire Truck Replacement account has 
$21,200.00, the Plow Truck Reserve account there is $63,500.00 The 
article to purchase the trucks will come up later; we’re proposing 
to ask the town to borrow $110,000.00 and utilize up to $30,000.00 
from the Fire Truck Replacement Fund for a down payment; for 
the plow truck to borrow $110,000.00 and utilize up to $60,000.00 
from the Road Maintenance Truck Fund. David Martucci, Budget 
Committee, when we reviewed this, the bottom line was that our 
budget was essentially flat for municipal services from last year 
to this year which included the $30,000.00 for each line David 
Martucci thinks it’s wise to put this money aside, because it won’t 
raise anything more that what we have from last year’s budget, 
he advocates defeating the amendment. David Williams, Budget 
Committee, stated that this is a bare bones budget and there are not 
many places to cut but with the economic impact that everyone will 
have he thinks it would be a good idea to pass this amendment.

	 Proposed Amendment is defeated 22 no, 14 yes
 	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 34 passes

Article 35:	 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $28,629.00 from 
property taxation for Miscellaneous Accounts. 

	 Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend as advisory lines:
	 	 Washington Library Association	 15,000.00
		  Washington Community Scholarship	 1,000.00
		  Minnie Weaver Scholarship	  1,000.00
		  Washington Historical Society	  1,000.00
		  Washington Food Bank	 2,000.00
		  Mid-Coast Humane Society	  1,985.00
		  Flags for Veterans Graves and Town Parks	 500.00
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	 	 Midcoast Conservancy Dues 
		    (Damariscotta Lake Watershed)	  50.00
			   Sub-total	  22,535.00
		  Social Agencies and Concerns
		  New Hope for Women	  750.00
		  Waldo Community Action Partners	  407.00
		  Spectrum Generations	  865.00
		  Pine Tree Chapter, Red Cross	 1,500.00
		  Penquis Community Action Program	 1,558.00
		  Life Flight of Maine	  764.00
		  Gary Owen House	  250.00
			   Sub-total 	 6,094.00
			   Total	  $28,629.00
	 A motion was made and seconded to raise and appropriate 

$28,629.00 from property taxation for Miscellaneous Accounts. 
Deborah Bocko asked what the Library Association covered. 
Sarah Masters, President of Gibbs Library Association, stated that 
$15,000.00 is a small amount of the oveall $60,000.00 library budget. 
Some services the library gives back to the community are books, 
audio books, wifi the town uses, and we generally have programs 
offered to the public, hopefully again soon.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 35 passes.

Article 36:	 To see if the Town will vote to authorize spending up to $64,000.00 
from the Local Roads Assistance Program (LRAP) for Capital Road 
Improvement.

	 A motion was made and seconded to authorize spending up to 
$64,000.00 from the Local Roads Assistance Program (LRAP) for 
Capital Road Improvement.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 36 passes.	
	

Article 37:	 To see if the Town will vote to authorize spending up to $200,000 from 
the Road Maintenance Reserve account for Paving and Capital Road 
Improvement.

	 A motion was made and seconded to authorize spending up to 
$200,000 from the Road Maintenance Reserve account for Paving 
and Capital Road Improvement.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 37 passes.
	
Article 38:	 To see if the Town will vote to authorize the selectmen to purchase a 

replacement truck chassis for the Fire Department Tanker #1, and to 
borrow up to $110,000.00, and to utilize up to $30,000.00 from the Fire 
Truck Replacement Fund, to move the Tank and equipment from the 
current tanker to the new chassis.

	 A motion was made and seconded to authorize the selectmen to 
purchase a replacement truck chassis for the Fire Department 
Tanker #1, and to borrow up to $110,000.00 and to utilize up to 
$30,000.00 from the Fire Truck Replacement Fund, to move the 
Tank and equipment from the current tanker to the new chassis.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 38 passes.
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Article 39:	 To see if the Town will vote to authorize the selectmen to purchase a 
plow truck with a cost not to exceed $170,000.00, and to borrow up to 
$110,000.00, and to utilize up to $60,000.00 from the Road Maintenance 
Truck Fund toward this purchase.

	 A motion was made and seconded to authorize the selectmen to 
purchase a plow truck with a cost not to exceed $170,000.00 and to 
borrow up to $110,000.00 and to utilize up to $60,000.00 from the 
Road Maintenance Truck Fund toward this purchase.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 39 passes.

Article 40:	 To see if the Town will vote to authorize the selectmen to refinance the 
Mortgage on the Town Garage, and to borrow an additional $100,000.00 
to make necessary repairs.

	 Treasurer’s Financial Statement, Town of Washington
	 1.	Total Town Indebtedness
			   a.	Total Mortgage - Municipal Garage 
				      (4 years remaining)	 $48,631.69
			   b.	Fire Pumper Truck loan (8 years remaining)	 $249,680.77
			   c.	Plow Truck loan (4 years remaining)	  $75,399.90
	 2.	Costs
			   a.	Town Garage Repair 	 $100,000.00
			   b.	Garage Repair Interest (15 year loan @ 2.6%)	 $22,042.66
			   c.	Fire Truck Chassis	 $110,000.00
			   d.	New Chassis Interest (6 year loan @2.4%)	  $9,422.55
			   e.	New Plow Truck	 $110,000.00
			   f.	 New Plow Truck Interest (6 year loan @2.4%)	 $9,422.55
					     Total Payment	 $360,887.76
	 A motion was made and seconded to authorize the selectmen to 

refinance the Mortgage on the Town Garage, and to borrow an 
additional $100,000.00 to make necessary repairs. Jesse Casas asked 
Thomas Johnston to go over the list of repairs that would be done 
on the town garage. Thomas Johnston stated when the building 
was constructed there was no vapor barrier put in the walls and 
moisture accumulation has deteriorated the exterior sheathing, 
some of the vinyl is loose; with in-floor heat that vaporizes the 
moisture and drives it into the walls. The project scope would be 
to remove the exterior vinyl and sheathing, replace sheathing as 
necessary, all fiberglass insulation would be removed and spray 
foam would be applied to act as better insulation and as a moisture 
barrier in that building. Four drains would be put in the shop area 
to get the moisture out of the building and adding ventilation as well 
as overhead heat as we would lose some floor heat and the roof is 
coming to the point where it should be replaced; a metal roof would 
be put on. We’re not sure what is happening at this point in time 
as the contractor was scheduled to start in April. Tom proposed the 
article be passed then we can move forward with this project as 
necessary. Susan Mendelson asked if they would be putting back 
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the vinyl they take off. Tom said in order to save on expenses the 
contractor would remove the vinyl put it back on and replace only if 
broken. Reggie Burns asked if this is because the town cut so many 
corners when the garage was originally built and now we’re paying 
for it or is it contractor error. Wesley Daniel stated he was involved 
in the building of the garage along with Donald Grinnell and Kathy 
Ocean; we did cut some things out of the building but it probably 
would not have made much difference with all the moisture that 
goes into the building. The trucks come in and they are all covered in 
snow to dry which has caused these problems. Either we fix it or let 
it go and build another building down the road. Donald Grinnell, a 
Selectman at the time the garage was built, stated they visited other 
town garages in the area; at that time  they were going with radiant 
heat in the floor because you’d bring the trucks in after plowing to 
dry, they’d be dry the next morning. If he were to do it again, he 
wouldn’t because the water comes off the truck and evaporates into 
the exterior walls. In hindsight, it’s one of those things you would 
not do the same way today. We tried to save the town money back 
then and sometimes you make mistakes. The garage was built in 
2008. There was some discussion clarifying the work to be done 
regarding ventilation and heat. Chris Packard asked if the new 
plan is engineered and stamped so you know that the moisture will 
be taken out of the building or are we assuming that the ventilation 
and air heat will remove enough to save the building. Tom stated 
that the changes are not engineered and stamped, we hired a civil 
engineer to do a building inspection and took the recommendations 
and spoke with two different contractors and worked with one 
of them to set up a final plan. The civil engineer looked at it and 
thought it would be very effective rather than spending another 
$10,000.00 – $15,000.00 to put a stamp on it. Todd Bennett stated 
that if the civil engineer gives you a written recommendation it has 
to be stamped because this is a municipality. Zelma Williams asked 
if the town insurance had been approached about this. Wesley Daniel 
stated it had and it’s not covered because there is no real proof on 
how it happened. Deborah Bocko asked if this is a legal issue. Tom 
stated that it is the right of the voters to request a stamp. We would 
put the project on hold as we don’t have an article or funds for the 
engineer stamp. Todd Bennett made the amendment that we will 
approve this $100,000.00 only if any design for heating and ventilation 
is done by and approved by a certified engineer. Amendment seconded. 
Mike Mayo stated now the discussion is only about the proposed 
amendment. Joan Hayward stated that if this amendment passes it 
will increase the amount of money that would have to be spent, to 
over $100,000.00. She’s not saying it’s a bad idea just that the cost 
will go up. There was continued discussion regarding the expense of 
an engineer stamp. Susan Mendleson wondered if the HVAC firm 
might have a person on staff who can sign off/certify the job for 

continued next page
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less money and as part of the contract. Jesse Casas asked if the 
cost of the engineer stamp could come out of the $100,000.00, we 
don’t want to go through this again in 12 years as was mentioned 
before. Donald Grinnell clarified that you can’t spend municipal 
money unless it’s certified by an engineer up to $150,000.00 (that 
may have changed over the years). The other suggestion is perhaps 
to satisfy everyone present to get it engineered, drop the part of 
a metal roof of the project to keep the cost of the engineer stamp 
within the $100,000.00. Pam Packard clarified that the amendment 
is meant to hold someone accountable so that if there is a problem 
down the line we have someone to go back to versus looking at 
the Selectmen asking and why they recommended something/one. 
Pam is for the repairs rather than letting it fall down a couple of 
years from now but someone recommending something so drastic 
should be held accountable. Todd Bennett restated his proposed 
amendment: We would approve the $100,000.00 town garage repair 
portion of this only under the stipulation that the improvements to the 
HVAC part of this get certified or approved by a licensed professional. 
Kate Grinnell made a comment, she pulled up on her phone, on the 
Maine State Legislature Statute section 1254 Public Works under 
Title 32 Professions and Occupations “Use of license professional 
engineer is not required. Except as provided in subsection 2, 
any department of this State or any of its political subdivisions 
or any county, city, town, township or plantation may engage in 
construction of any public work involving professional engineering 
without procuring the services of a licensed professional engineer, 
as long as the contemplated expenditure for the completed project 
does not exceed $100,000.00 and the work, both as performed and 
as completed, does not create an undue risk to public safety or 
welfare”. Walter Metcalf stated he thinks this is an administrative 
exercise and the selectmen understand and we should move this 
along instead of ‘beating it to death’. Steven Ocean stated he was 
at the meeting with the contractor and he thinks the amendment 
should go through so we don’t go through this again. If it costs 
more money they we could go to special town meeting.

	 Proposed Amendment passes with little opposition
	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 40 passes as amended.	

	
Article 41:	 To see if the Town will vote to permanently increase the property tax 

levy limit established for the Town of Washington by State Law in the 
event that the municipal budget approved under the preceding articles 
will result in a tax commitment that is greater than that tax levy limit.

	 A motion was made and seconded to permanently increase the 
property tax levy limit established for the Town of Washington by 
State Law in the event that the municipal budget approved under 
the preceding articles will result in a tax commitment that is greater 
than that tax levy limit. Todd Bennett asked that the wording be 

continued next page
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changed and put into terms that people can understand and what 
does it mean to the tax payers of the town. Wesley Daniel stated it 
authorizes the selectmen to go over the tax levy. The article is put 
in ‘just in case’. Mike Mayo stated this is boiler plate article in all 
town warrants.

	 Motion carries unanimously	 Article 41 passes.

Given under our hands on this 24th day of June, 2020:

Wesley  F.  Daniel, 
  Chairman, Board of Selectmen
Berkley  Linscott,
  Selectman
Thomas  N.  Johnston,
  Selectman

Attest: 
Mary  Anderson, Town Clerk
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Independent Auditor
Board of Selectmen
Town of Washington

 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental 

activities and each major fund of the Town of Washington, as of and for the 
years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.
Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities 
and each major fund of the Town of Washington as of December 31, 2020 and 
2019, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, 
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cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
require that the management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison 
information listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit 
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial 
statements that collectively comprise the Town of Washington’s basic financial 
statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor 
fund financial statements, and statistical section are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual 
nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

February 16, 2021
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Exhibit A
TOWN OF WASHINGTON

Statements of Net Position — December 31, 2020 and 2019
	 Governmental Activities
	 2020	 2019

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:	 	
	 Cash (Note B)	  798,472.21 	  798,174.04 
	 Taxes Receivable	  249,677.37 	  263,751.52 
	 Tax Liens	  60,679.54 	  67,823.65 
	 Accounts Receivable	  34,468.59 	  19,513.50 
	 Due From Other Funds	  1,114.00 	
	 Total Current Assets	 1,144,411.71 	  1,149,262.71 
	 	 	 	
PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT (NOTE L):	 	 	 	
	 Land and Improvements	  29,100.00 	  29,100.00 
	 Buildings	  873,577.00 	  771,353.00 
	 Equipment	  186,342.00 	  186,342.00 
	 Motor Vehicles	  1,281,114.00 	  1,029,370.00 
	 Infrastructure	  13,402,111.00 	  13,157,111.00 
	   Total Property, Plant, and Equipment	  15,772,244.00 	  15,173,276.00 
	 Less:  Accumulated Depreciation	  13,599,301.00 	  13,421,461.00 
	   Net Property, Plant, and Equipment	  2,172,943.00 	  1,751,815.00 
	   Total Assets	  3,317,354.71 	  2,901,077.71 

 LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
CURRENT LIABILITIES:	 	 	 	
	 Notes Payable (Note D)	  86,659.56 	  54,806.77 
	 Accounts Payable - Trade	  8,443.12 	  9,047.15 
	 Due To Other Funds	  1,947.37 
	 Deferred Revenue (Note G)	  31,470.80 	  24,955.15 
	   Total Current Liabilities	  126,573.48 	  90,756.44 
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:	 	 	 	
	 Notes Payable - 
	   Net of Current Portion (Note D)	  536,068.32 	  318,905.59 
	   Total Liabilities	  662,641.80 	  409,662.03 
NET POSITION:	 	 	 	
	 Net Invested in Capital Assets	  1,550,215.12 	  1,378,102.64 
	 Restricted for:
	 Other Purposes	  307,454.59 	  446,694.64 
	 Unrestricted	  797,043.20 	  666,618.40 
	   Total Net Position	  2,654,712.91 	  2,491,415.68 
	   Total Liabilities and Net Position	  3,317,354.71 	  2,901,077.71 
	 	 	 	
	 	
	 	 	
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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	 Exhibit C
TOWN OF WASHINGTON

Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances 
to Net Position of Governmental Activities

for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
	 2020	 2019
GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES:	
Restricted for:	 	 	 	
Other Purposes	  307,454.59 	  446,694.64 
Unrestricted (Schedule A-3)	  548,819.74 	  401,426.56 
Total Governmental Fund 
  Balances (Exhibit E)	  856,274.33 	  848,121.20 
Amounts reported for governmental 
  activities in the Statements of 	 	 	 	
Net Position are different because:	
Capital assets used in governmental activities 
  are not financial resources and therefore are 
  not reported in the funds.	  2,172,943.00 	  1,751,815.00 
Notes payable are not due and payable in the 
  current period and therefore are not reported 
  in the funds.	  (622,727.88)	 (373,712.36)
Property taxes not collected within the 60 days 
  after year end are deferred as revenue in the 
  fund financial statements. In the government-wide 
    financial statement the revenue is income in 	 	 	 	
       the year assessed.	  248,223.46 	  265,191.84 
Net Position of Governmental 
  Activities (Exhibit A)	  2,654,712.91 	  2,491,415.68

General Revenues:	 	 	 	
Taxes:	 	 	 	
Property Taxes	 	 2,369,990.72	 2,371,927.28
Homestead Reimbursement	 	  141,009.59	 98,397.69
Excise Taxes	 	  285,998.51	 293,582.23
Intergovernmental - State Revenue	 	  111,800.00	 63,224.00
Interest 	 	  23,747.97	 31,718.12
Tree Growth	 	  3,598.57	 2,914.59
Due From Trust Funds	 	  114.00	 92.00
Loss on disposal of Assets	 	  (10,040.00)
BETE	 	  43,230.00	 39,790.00 
Total General Revenues	 	  2,969,449.36	 2,901,645.91 
Change in Net Position	 	 163,297.23	 (574,528.08)
Net Position, January 1	 	  2,491,415.68	 3,065,943.76 
Net Position, December 31	 	  2,654,712.91	 2,491,415.68
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	 	 	 Exhibit D
Town of Washington

Reconciliation of the Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds 

to the Statements of Activities
for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

	
	 2020	 2019
Net Change in Fund Balances - 
  Total Governmental Funds (Exhibit F)	  8,153.13	 (71,389.45)
Amounts reported for governmental 
  activities in the Statements of Activities 
  are different because:	 	 	 	
Governmental funds report capital outlays 
  as expenditures. However, in the Statements 
  of Activities, the cost of those assets is 
  allocated over their estimated useful lives as 
  depreciation expense. This is the amount by 
  which (depreciation exceeds capital outlays) 
  capital outlays exceeds depreciation.	  436,168.00	 (569,776.00)
Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure 
  in the governmental funds, but the repayment 
  reduces liabilities in the Statements of 
  Net Position.	  102,929.76	 53,428.48 
   Net book value on disposal of assets.	  (15,040.00)	
Loan proceeds provide current financial 
  resources to governmental funds, but issuing 
  debt increases long-term liabilities in the 
  Statement of Net Position.  	  (351,945.28)	 	
Property taxes are deferred in the fund 
  financial statements, but in the government-wide 
  financial statements they are recorded as income 
  in the year they are assessed.	  (16,968.38)	 13,208.89 
Change in Net Position of 
  Governmental Activities (Exhibit B)	  163,297.23	 (574,528.08)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Exhibit E
TOWN OF WASHINGTON

Balance Sheets - Governmental Funds
December 31, 2020 and 2019

	 Governmental Funds
	 2020	 2019
	 Total	 Total
ASSETS:	 	
Cash 	  798,472.21 	  798,174.04
Taxes Receivable	  249,677.37 	  263,751.52
Tax Liens	  60,679.54 	  67,823.65
Accounts Receivable	  34,468.59 	  19,513.50
Due From Other Funds	  1,114.00
Total Assets	  1,144,411.71 	  1,149,262.71
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, 
  AND FUND BALANCE:	 	 	 	
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable	  8,443.12 	  9,047.15
Due To Other Funds	  	 1,947.37
Total Liabilities	  8,443.12 	  10,994.52
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred Revenue (Note G)	  31,470.80 	  24,955.15
Deferred Tax Revenue 	  248,223.46 	  265,191.84
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources	  279,694.26 	  290,146.99
Fund Balance:
Assigned for Other Purposes	  307,454.59 	  446,694.64
Unassigned	  548,819.74 	  401,426.56
Total Fund Balance	  856,274.33 	  848,121.20
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows,
  and Fund Balance	  1,144,411.71 	  1,149,262.71

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements		 		



	 TOWN OF WASHINGTON	 139

Exhibit F
TOWN OF WASHINGTON

Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds 

for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
	
	 2020	 2019
	 Total	 Total
REVENUES:	 	 	 	
Property Taxes	  2,386,959.10 	  2,358,718.39 
Excise Taxes	  285,998.51 	  293,582.23 
Intergovernmental Revenues	  111,800.00 	  63,224.00 
Homestead Reimbursement	  141,009.59 	  98,397.69 
Public Assistance	  470.20 	  1,087.50 
Public Works	  95,973.51 	  1,827.53 
Interest	  23,747.97 	  31,718.12 
Building Permits - Town	  2,542.10 	  2,033.30 
Tree Growth Reimbursement	  3,598.57 	  2,914.59 
Veterans Reimbursement	  1,757.00 	  1,707.00 
Urban Rural Initiative	  43,688.00 	  46,756.00 
Unclassified	  3,460.00 	  2,420.23 
BETE 	  43,230.00 	  39,790.00 
Public Safety	  191.66 	  12,008.49 
General Government	  35,336.45 	  16,571.72 
Mining Permits and Inspections	  5,525.00 	  5,975.00 
Total Revenues	  3,185,287.66 	  2,978,731.79 
EXPENDITURES:	 	 	
Education - MSAD 40	  1,777,067.04 	  1,743,763.48 
Knox County Tax	  174,353.61 	  160,725.20 
General Government	  310,941.16 	  340,279.42 
Public Works	  809,177.34 	  525,271.58 
Public Safety	  207,724.51 	  83,356.54 
Public Assistance	  840.71 	  1,755.90 
Unclassified	  41,323.81 	  40,165.52 
TCSWMO	  43,504.23 	  42,435.33 
Knox Communication	  50,450.00 	  47,944.00 
Debt Principal	  102,929.76 	  53,428.48 
Debt Interest	  10,881.64 	  11,087.79 
Total Expenditures	  3,529,193.81 	  3,050,213.24 
Excess of Revenues Over 
  (Under) Expenditures	  (343,906.15)	 (71,481.45)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):	 	 	 	
Transfer - In	  114.00 	  4,836.04 
Loan Proceeds	  351,945.28 	
Transfer - Out	 	  (4,744.04)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)	  352,059.28 	  92.00 
Excess of Revenues and 
  Other Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Uses	  8,153.13 	  (71,389.45)
Fund Balance, January 1	  848,121.20 	  919,510.65 
Fund Balance, December 31	  856,274.33 	  848,121.20
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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	 TOWN OF WASHINGTON 	 Exhibit G
Statements of Fiduciary Net Position — Nonspendable Trust Funds

December 31, 2020 and 2019

ASSETS:	 2020	 2019
Cash	  127,425.21 	  119,441.23
Due From Other Funds	 	  1,947.37 
Total Assets	  127,425.21 	  121,388.60 
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION	 	 	 	
LIABILITIES:
Due To Other Funds	  10,726.76 	  9,457.77 
NET POSITION:
Restricted for Principal	  77,937.11 	  69,937.11
Unassigned 	  38,761.34 	  41,993.72 
Total Net Position	  116,698.45 	  111,930.83 
Total Liabilities and Net Position	  127,425.21 	  121,388.60 

	 	
	 TOWN OF WASHINGTON	 Exhibit H

Statements of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - 
Nonspendable Trust Funds

for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

REVENUES:	 2020	 2019
Interest	  1,881.63 	  2,716.94
Contributions	  8,000.00 	  2,039.37 
Total Revenues	  9,881.63 	  4,756.31 
EXPENSES:
Scholarships	  5,000.00 	  - 
Maintenance	  114.00 	  92.00 
Total Expenses	  5,114.00 	  92.00 
Change in Net Position	  4,767.63 	  4,664.31 
Net Position, January 1	  111,930.83 	  107,266.52 
Net Position, December 31	  116,698.46 	  111,930.83

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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TOWN OF WASHINGTON
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2020
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The accounting policies of the Town of Washington conform to generally 
accepted accounting principles as applicable to governmental units.

1.	 Financial Reporting Entity
The Town of Washington was incorporated in 1811. The Town operates under a 

town meeting form of government.
In evaluating the Town of Washington as a reporting entity, management has 

addressed all potential component units. The primary criteria for including a 
component reporting entity are the exercise of financial accountability by the Town 
of Washington’s municipal officials.

The Town’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) for state and local governments through 
its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations). Governments are also required 
to follow the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 
issued through November 30, 1989 (when applicable) that do not conflict with or 
contradict GASB pronouncements. 

2. 	Basic Financial Statements - Government-Wide Statements
The Town’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting 

the Town as a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the Town’s major 
funds). Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize primary 
activities as governmental. The Town’s fire protection, recreation, public works, and 
general administrative services are classified as governmental activities.

In the government-wide Statements of Net Position, the governmental column 
is presented on a consolidated basis by column, and is reported on a full accrual, 

	 TOWN OF WASHINGTON 	 Exhibit I
Statements of Cash Flows

Fiduciary Fund Type - Nonexpendable Trust Funds
for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

	 2020	 2019
CASH FLOWS FROM 
  OPERATING ACTIVITIES:	 	
Interest 	  2,036.62 	  2,716.94 
Cash Received for Trust Funds	  4,000.00 	  2,039.37 
Cash Paid for Expenses	 	 (92.00)
Due To (From) Other Funds	  1,947.36	 (1,018.80)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities	  7,983.98 	  3,645.51
Cash Balance, January 1	  119,441.23 	  115,795.72
Cash Balance, December 31	  127,425.21 	  119,441.23
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economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as 
well as long-term debt and obligations. The Town’s net position is reported in three 
parts - net invested in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted. The Town first 
utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Statements of Activities reports both the gross and net 
cost of each of the Town’s functions (fire, public works, administrative, etc.). The 
functions are also supported by general government revenues (property, certain 
intergovernmental revenues, fines, permits, and charges, etc.). The Statements 
of Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program 
revenues, and operating and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly 
associated with the function (fire, public works, etc.). Operating grants include 
operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the 
capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants.

The net costs (by function or business-type activity) are normally covered by 
general revenue (property, intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc.).

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Town as an 
entity and the change in the Town’s net position resulting from the current year’s 
activities.
3.		 Basic Financial Statements - Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the Town are reported in individual funds in the 
fund financial statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set 
of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, 
revenues, and expenditures/expenses. The various funds are reported by generic 
classification within the financial statements.

The following fund types are used by the Town:
a.	 Governmental Funds:
	 	 The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is 

upon determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, 
uses, and balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income. The following 
is a description of the governmental funds of the Town:
	 	 	 1.	 General Fund:

	 	 	 General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to 
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in 
another fund.

	 2.	 Fiduciary Funds:
	 	 	 Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency 

capacity for others and therefore are not available to support Town programs. The 
reporting focus is on net assets and changes in net assets and is reported using 
accounting principles similar to proprietary funds.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the 
governmental or business-type activities categories. Nonmajor funds by category 
are summarized into a single column. GASB No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria 
(percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of either 
fund category) for the determination of major funds.

The Town’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial 
statements. Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third 
party and cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the government, 
these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide statements.
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4.		 Basis of Accounting
Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/

expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. 
It relates to the timing of the measurements made regardless of the measurement 
focus applied:

	 	 a.	 Accrual:
	 	 	 Governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements and 

fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. 
Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

	 	 b.	 Modified Accrual:
	 	 	 The governmental funds financial statements are presented on the 

modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e. both measurable 
and available. “Available” means collectible within the current period or within 
60 days after year end. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified 
accrual basis of accounting when the related liability is incurred. The exception to 
this general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation long-term debt, 
if any, is recognized when due.
5.		 Financial Statement Amounts

	 	 a.	 Cash and Cash Equivalents:
	 	 	 The Town has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, 

demand deposits, and cash with fiscal agents. Statutes authorize the Treasurer of the 
Town, as directed by the municipal officers, to invest all municipal funds, including 
reserve and trust funds, to the extent that the terms of the instrument, order, or article 
creating the fund do not prohibit the investment in financial institutions as described 
in Section 5706 MRSA and securities as described in Sections 5711 through 5717 
MRSA.

	 	 b.	 Investments:
	 	 	 Investments are stated at fair value (quoted market price or the best 

available estimate).
	 	 c.	 Accounts Receivable:
	 	 	 Receivables include federal grants, state subsidies, town assessments and 

reimbursements. Based on prior year collections, management has determined that 
an allowance for doubtful accounts is not considered necessary at December 31, 
2020.

	 	 d.	 Capital Assets:
	 	 	 Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $1,000.00 or 

more are reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets 
are reported at fair market value as of the date received. Additions, improvements, 
and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are 
capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as 
incurred. Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the 
following estimated useful lives:

Buildings	 20-50 Years
Machinery and Equipment	  5-10 Years
Improvements	 10-20 Years
Infrastructure	 10-50 Years
Vehicles	 10-25 Years



144	 ANNUAL REPORT

	 	 e.	 Revenues:
	 	 	 Substantially, all governmental fund revenues are accrued. Property taxes 

are billed and collected within the same period in which the taxes are levied. In 
applying GASB No. 33 to grant revenues the provider recognizes liabilities and 
expenses and the recipient recognizes receivables and revenue when the applicable 
eligibility requirements, including time requirements, are met. Resources transmitted 
before the eligibility requirements are met are reported as advances by the provider 
and deferred revenue by the recipient.

	 	 f.	 Expenditures:
	 	 	 Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. 
	 	 g.	 Use of Estimates:
	 	 	 The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally 

accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates.

	 	 h.	 Fund Balance:
	 	 	 In accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, the Town employs 

terminology and classifications for fund balance items as follows:
	 	 	 Nonspendable fund balances includes amounts that cannot be spent 

because they are not in spendable form or legally or contractually required to be 
maintained intact. 

	 	 	 Restricted fund balances represent those portions of fund equity that have 
externally enforceable legal restrictions.

	 	 	 Committed fund balances are amounts that can be used only for specific 
purposes because of a formal action taken by town government. The fund balances 
in the Capital Projects Fund are in this category.

	 	 	 Assigned fund balances are amounts that the Town intends to use for 
specific purposes. The Board of Selectmen approved carryovers are included in 
assigned fund balances.

	 	 	 Unassigned fund balances are all amounts in the General Fund that are not 
assigned to another category. Only the General Fund can have an unassigned fund 
balance.
6.		 Implementation of New Accounting Standards

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the following statements of financial 
accounting standards issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
became effective:

	 	 a.	 Statement No. 83, “Certain Asset Retirement Obligations”. The objective 
of the statement is to address accounting and financial reporting for certain asset 
retirement obligations (AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable liability associated 
with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. A government that has legal obligations 
to perform future asset retirement activities related to its tangible capital assets 
should recognize a liability based on the guidance in this Statement. Management 
has determined that this statement is not applicable.

	 	 b.	 Statement No. 84, “Fiduciary Activities”. The objective of this statement 
is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for 
accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be 
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reported. This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities 
of all state and local governments. The Town is currently evaluating whether the 
government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and the beneficiaries 
with whom a fiduciary relationship exists to determine if the fiduciary fund should 
be included in the basic financial statements of future years.

	 	 c.	 Statement No. 88, “Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct 
Borrowings and Direct Placements”. The primary objective of this statement is to 
improve the information that is disclosed in notes to government financial statements 
related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements. It also clarifies 
which liabilities governments should include when disclosing information related 
to debt. This statement defines debt for purposes of disclosure in notes to financial 
statements as a liability that arises from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or 
other assets that may be used in lieu of cash) in one or more payments to settle 
an amount that is fixed at the date the contractual obligation is established. This 
statement requires that additional essential information related to debt be disclosed 
in notes to financial statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as 
collateral for the debt; and terms specified in debt agreements related to significant 
events of default with finance-related consequences, significant termination events 
with finance-related consequences, and significant subjective acceleration clauses. 
Management has determined that the impact of this statement is not material to the 
financial statements. 

	 	 d.	 Statement No. 90, “Majority Equity Interests” - an amendment of GASB 
Statements No. 14  and No. 61. The primary objectives of this statement are to 
improve the consistency and comparability of reporting a government’s majority 
equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the relevance of 
financial statement information for certain component units. It defines a majority 
equity interest and specifies that a majority equity interest in a legally separate 
organization should be reported as an investment if a government’s holding of the 
equity interest meets the definition of an investment. A majority equity interest that 
meets the definition of an investment should be measured using the equity method, 
unless it is held by a special-purpose government engaged only in fiduciary activities, 
a fiduciary fund, or an endowment (including permanent and term endowments) or 
permanent fund. Those governments and funds should measure the majority equity 
interest at fair value. Management has determined that the impact of this statement 
is not material to the financial statements.
7.		 Future Accounting Pronouncements

	 	 a.	 Statement No. 87, “Leases”, is effective for the year ended December 31, 
2022. The objective of this statement is to better meet the information needs of 
financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases 
by governments. This statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial 
statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases 
that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of 
resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. 

	 	 	 It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational 
principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under 
this statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible 
right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and 
a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of 
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information about governments’ leasing activities. Management has determined that 
the impact of this statement is not material to the financial statements.

	 	 b.	 Statement No. 89, “Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End 
of a Construction Period”, is effective the year ended December 31, 2021. The 
objectives of this statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and comparability of 
information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and 
(2) to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction 
period. This Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred 
before the end of a construction period. Management has determined that the impact 
of this statement is not material to the financial statements.

	 	 c.	 Statement No. 91, “Conduit Debt Obligations” is effective for the year 
ended December 31, 2022. The objective of the statement is to provide a single 
method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in 
practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements 
associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This 
statement achieves those objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit 
debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the 
issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional 
commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements 
associated with conduit debt obligations; and improving required disclosures. 
Management has determined that this statement is not applicable.

	 	 d.	 Statement No. 93, “Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates” is effective 
for the year ended December 31, 2022. The objective of this statement is to improve 
guidance regarding the governments that have entered into agreements in which 
variable payments made or received depend on an interbank offered rate (IBOR) 
- most notably, the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). As a result of global 
reference rate reform, LIBOR is expected to cease to exist in its current form at the 
end of 2021. The objective of this statement is to address those and other accounting 
and financial reporting implications that result from the replacement of an IBOR. 
Management has determined that this statement is not applicable.

	 	 e.	 Statement No. 94, “Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and 
Availability Payment Arrangements” is effective for the year ended December 31, 
2023. The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by addressing 
issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs). 
As used in this Statement, a PPP is an arrangement in which a government (the 
transferor) contracts with an operator (a governmental or nongovernmental entity) 
to provide public services by conveying control of the right to operate or use a 
nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital assets (the underlying PPP 
asset), for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Management 
has determined that this statement is not applicable.

	 	 f.	 Statement No. 96, “Subscription-Based Information Technology 
Arrangements” is effective for the year ended December 31, 2023. The objective of 
this Statement is to improve financial reporting for subscription-based information 
technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). This 
Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-
to-use subscription asset - an intangible asset - and a corresponding subscription 
liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription 
payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note 
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disclosures regarding a SBITA. Management has determined that this statement is 
not applicable.

	 	 g.	 Statement No. 97, “Certain Component Unit Criteria and Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation 
Plans” is effective for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022. The requirements 
of this Statement will result in more consistent financial reporting of defined 
contribution pension plans, defined contribution OPEB plans, and other employee 
benefits plans, while mitigating the costs associated with reporting those plans. 
Management has determined that this statement is not applicable.
8.		 Subsequent Events

Management has made an evaluation of subsequent events to and including the 
audit report date, which was the date the financial statements were available to be 
issued, and determined that any subsequent events that would require recognition or 
disclosure have been considered in the preparation of the financial statements.

 During the current year, the Town of Washington was impacted by COVID-19. 
The Town has reviewed their operations and is currently evaluating the impact of 
the crisis on their operations. While there is a financial impact to the Town, it is 
currently unknown the full extent this crisis will have on its operations and funding 
in future years.

NOTE B - CASH:
The Town’s cash is categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed 

by the Town at year-end. These Categories are defined as follows:
Category #1 - Insured or collateralized with securities held by the Town or by its 

agent in the Town’s name.
Category #2 - Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial 

institution’s trust department or agent in the Town’s name.
Category #3 - Uncollateralized (This includes any bank balance that is 

collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or by its trust 
department or agent but not in the Town’s name.) 

	  CARRYING	  BANK	 CATEGORY
ACCOUNT TYPE	 AMOUNT	 BALANCE	 #1	 #2	 #3
Interest Bearing	 	 	 	 	
  Accounts	 798,472.21	 816,733.35	 381,701.60	 435,031.75	 -

NOTE C - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES: 
Due From other funds consist of the following:
Due From Trust Funds	 $ 1,114.00
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NOTE D - NOTES PAYABLE:
The following is a summary of note transactions of the Town of Washington for 

the year ended December 31, 2020:

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 BALANCE	 	 	 BALANCE
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 1/1/20	 ADDITIONS	 REDUCTIONS	 12/31/20
The First - Fire Truck	 249,680.77	  	 25,037.18	 224,643.59
Machias Savings Bank - 
  Municipal Garage	  48,631.69	 	  48,631.69	
The First - Plow Truck	  75,399.90	 	  18,077.16	  57,322.74
The First - Line of Credit	 	  250,000.00	  250,000.00	
The First - Fire Truck 2020	 	  110,000.00	 	  110,000.00
The First - Plow Truck 2020	  	  105,000.00	 	  105,000.00
The First - Garage Loan	 	  136,945.28	  11,183.73	  125,761.55
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 373,712.36	 601,945.28	 352,929.76	 622,727.88
General Fund:
The First - Fire Truck: 	
	 The note dated March 24, 2017 is for $324,533.00 
	 payable over twelve years with annual principal 
	 and interest payments of $31,364.62. 
	 The interest rate is 2.49%.	 $224,643.59
The First - Plow Truck:	
	 The note dated December 17, 2015 is for $143,766.00, 
	 payable over eight years with annual principal 
	 and interest payments of $20,183.83. 
	 The interest rate is fixed at 2.75%.	  57,322.74
The First - Line of Credit:	
	 The line of credit is a fixed rate (1.00%) 
	 nondisclosable revolving line of credit for 
	 $250,000.00. The note is dated August 18, 2015 
	 and may be renewed on an annual basis. 
	 There was no balance outstanding at December 31, 2020.	
The First - Fire Truck 2020:	
	 The note dated August 18, 2020 is for $110,000.00, 
	 payable over six years with annual principal and 	
	 interest payments of $19,687.78. 
	 The interest rate is 1.89% 	 110,000.00
The First - Plow Truck 2020:	
	 The note dated August 18, 2020 is for $105,000.00, 
	 payable over six years with annual principal and 
	 interest payments of $18,792.88. 
	 The interest rate is 1.89%. 	 105,000.00
The First - Garage Loan:	
	 The note dated August 6, 2020 is for $136,945.28, 
	 payable over twelve years with annual principal 
	 and interest payments of $12,286.90. 
	 The interest rate is 2.50%. 	 125,761.55
	 	 $622,727.88
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 The annual requirements to amortize notes payable as of December 31, 2020 
follows:

	 YEAR ENDING 	 	 	
	 DECEMBER 31	 PRINCIPAL	 INTEREST	 TOTAL
	 2021	 $ 86,659.56	 $ 15,656.49	 $ 102,316.05
	 2022	  89,862.88	  12,453.17	  102,316.05
	 2023	  91,954.35	  10,358.83	  102,313.18
	 2024	  73,907.61	  8,224.57	  82,132.18
	 2025	  75,550.26	  6,581.92	  82,132.18
	 Thereafter	  204,793.22	  13,202.27	  217,995.49
	 	 $ 622,727.88	 $ 66,477.25	 $ 689,205.13

NOTE E - GENERAL FUND BUDGET:
The Town operates on a net budget as compared with a gross budget. All 

revenues are not estimated, but are credited to the particular operating account. 
Certain revenues are dedicated for particular purposes by vote of the townspeople at 
the annual town meeting or at special town meetings.

At the annual town meeting, held in March of each year, the townspeople vote 
on various articles on which amounts for appropriations have been recommended by 
the Board of Selectmen and/or the Budget Committee.

NOTE F - ASSIGNED FOR OTHER PURPOSES:
Historically, the townspeople vote to carry certain departmental unexpended 

balances forward to the following year for expenditure. This is usually in lieu of 
additional appropriations in any particular account.

General Government	 $ 6,994.34
Public Safety	  49,092.61
Public Works	  237,699.51
Unclassified	  13,668.13
	 $ 307,454.59

NOTE G - DEFERRED REVENUE:
Deferred Revenue consists of the following:
	 Prepaid 2021 Taxes	 $ 4,503.25 
	 Suspense	  26,967.55
	 	 	 	 	 $ 31,470.80 

Suspense is the excess of state revenue sharing receipts over and above the 
commitment.
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NOTE H - EXPENDITURES IN EXCESS OF APPROPRIATIONS:
During the year expenditures exceeded total revenue and appropriations in the 

following general fund categories:

	 	 BUDGETED	
	 REVENUE AND	 REVENUES AND	
FUNCTION	 APPROPRIATION	 EXPENDITURES	 VARIANCE
Education - MSAD #40	 $ 1,777,067.00	 $ 1,777,067.04	 $ .04
Interest Income	  3,915.08	  8,000.00	  4,084.92
Tax Anticipation Loan	  250,500.00	  250,919.44	  419.44
Homestead Reimbursement	  141,009.59 	  141,069.59	  60.00
Garage Renovation	  100,005.91	  102,224.00	  2,218.09
Debt - Garage	  50,008.23	  62,262.91	  12,254.68
Lincoln County 
  Humane Society	  1,985.00	  1,985.10	  .10
Flags for Veteran’s Graves	  500.00	  501.58	  1.58

The overdrafts in the revenue accounts were due to revenues not meeting budgeted 
expectations; and in the expense accounts expenditures exceeded appropriations. 

NOTE I - REVENUE RECOGNITION - PROPERTY TAXES:
The Town’s property tax for the current year was levied September 2, 2020 on 

the assessed value listed as of 
April 1 , 2020 for all taxable real and personal property located in the Town. 

Taxes were due on October 1, 2020 with interest at 8% per annum or part thereof 
commencing October 2, 2020. Liens are filed on any real property where taxes 
remain unpaid between eight and twelve months after the levy date.

The National Council on Governmental Accounting (N.C.G.A.) Interpretation 
No. 3 requires that property tax revenue be recognized only to the extent it will be 
collected within 60 days following the year end. The deferred tax revenue shown on 
the balance sheet represents property taxes not expected to be collected within 60 
days after the year end.

Property taxes are recognized when they become available. Available includes 
those taxes expected to be collected within 60 days after year end as stated above. 
Delinquent taxes are considered fully collectible and therefore no allowance for 
uncollectible taxes is provided.

NOTE J - INTEREST COST INCURRED:
During the current year, the Town incurred interest costs totaling $12,016.36 

which was charged as an expense to various operating accounts.

NOTE K - RISK MANAGEMENT:
 The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, 

and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural 
disasters. All significant losses are covered by commercial insurance. There has 
been no significant reduction in insurance coverage. Settlement amounts have not 
exceeded insurance coverage for the current year or the three prior years.
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NOTE L - PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT:

 The following is a summary of changes in fixed assets at December 31, 2020:

	 BALANCE	 	 	 BALANCE
	 1/1/20	 ADDITIONS	 DISPOSALS	 12/31/20
Land and Improvements	 29,100.00	 - 	 - 	 $ 29,100.00
Buildings	  771,353.00	  102,224.00	 	  873,577.00
Equipment	  186,342.00	 	 	  186,342.00
Motor Vehicles	  1,029,370.00	  291,544.00	  39,800.00	  1,281,114.00
Infrastructure	  13,157,111.00	  245,000.00	 	  1,3402,111.00
	 $ 15,173,276.00	 $ 638,768.00	 $ (39,800.00)	 $ 15,772,244.00 
Accumulated 
  Depreciation	  (13,421,461.00)	  (202,600.00)	  24,760.00	  (13,599,301.00)
Net Property, Plant, 	 	 	 	
  and Equipment	 $ 1,751,815.00	 $ 436,168.00	 $ (15,040.00)	 $ 2,172,943.00

Depreciation expense for the period totaled $202,600.00. Of that amount, 
$6,856.00 was for General Government, $165,880.00 was for Public Works, and 
$29,864.00 was for Public Safety.       

NOTE M - OVERLAPPING DEBT:
The Town of Washington is a participant in MSAD #40 and is subject to annual 

assessment of its proportional share of school expenses. Long-term debt outstanding 
in MSAD #40 for which the Town of Washington would be proportionally responsible 
in the event the School defaulted is approximately $8,010,303.00 at June 30, 2020. 
The Town of Washington’s share would be 10.17% of the debt or approximately 
$814,960.00.

The Town of Washington is situated in Knox County and is therefore subject 
to annual assessment of its proportional share of county taxes. Long-term debt 
outstanding in Knox County for which the Town of Washington would be 
proportionally responsible in the event the County defaulted was $2,751,927.00 at 
December 31, 2020. The Town of Washington’s share would be 2.102% of the debt, 
or approximately $57,846.00.
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Schedule A-1
TOWN OF WASHINGTON

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund
for the year ended December 31, 2020

	 Original and	
Revenues:	 Final Budget	 Actual
Property Taxes	  2,369,643.53 	  2,386,959.10 
Excise Taxes	  265,000.00 	  285,998.51 
Intergovernmental Revenues	  111,800.00 	  111,800.00 
Homestead Reimbursement	  141,069.59 	  141,009.59 
Building Permits - Town	  1,500.00 	  2,542.10 
Tree Growth Reimbursement	  2,800.00 	  3,598.57 
Veterans Reimbursement	  1,600.00 	  1,757.00 
Interest	  8,000.00 	  3,915.08 
Public Works	 	  139,661.51 
General Government	  9,275.00 	  35,336.45 
BETE	  43,223.85 	  43,230.00 
Public Safety	 	  191.66 
Unclassified	 	  3,460.00 
Mining Permits and Inspections	  4,000.00 	  5,525.00 
Interest on Overdue Taxes	  12,000.00 	  19,832.89 
Public Assistance	 	  470.20
Total Revenues	  2,969,911.97 	  3,185,287.66 
EXPENDITURES:	 	 	 	
Education - MSAD #40	  1,777,067.00 	  1,777,067.04 
Knox County Tax	  174,381.00 	  174,353.61 
General Government	  331,025.00 	  310,941.16 
Public Works	  410,300.00 	  809,177.34 
Public Safety	  119,974.00 	  207,724.51 
Public Assistance	  2,000.00 	  840.71 
Unclassified	  38,929.00 	  41,323.81 
TCSWMO	  43,505.00 	  43,504.23 
Knox Communication	  50,450.00 	  50,450.00 
Debt Principal	  64,549.00 	  102,929.76 
Debt Interest	 	  10,881.64 
Total Expenditures	  3,012,180.00 	  3,529,193.81 
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures	  (42,268.03)	  (343,906.15)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):	 	 	 	
Transfer - In	 	  114.00 
Loan Proceeds:
Plow Truck	 	  105,000.00 
Fire Truck	 	  110,000.00 
General Loan	 	  136,945.28 
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Schedule A-3
TOWN OF WASHINGTON

Statement of Changes in Unappropriated Surplus
for the year ended December 31, 2020

Unappropriated Surplus, January 1	 	  401,426.56 

INCREASES:	 	 	 	
Operating Account Balances Lapsed - 
    Net (Schedule A-4)	  205,424.80 	
Decrease in Deferred Taxes	  16,968.38 	  
	 	 222,393.18 
Total Available	 	  623,819.74 

DECREASES:	 	 	 	
Appropriated at Annual Town Meeting	 	  75,000.00 
Unappropriated Surplus, December 31	 	  548,819.74

Excess of Revenues and 
  Other Sources Over (Under)	
Expenditures and Other Uses 	  (42,268.03)	  8,153.13 
Fund Balance, January 1	  848,121.20 	  848,121.20 
Fund Balance, December 31	  805,853.17 	  856,274.33 
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Warrant for 
2021 Annual Town Meeting

TO:  Christopher Lascoutx, Constable, Town of Washington.

	GREETINGS
	 	In the name of the State of Maine, you are hereby required to notify and 
warn the voters of the Town of Washington, Knox County, Maine, qualified 
by law to vote in town affairs, to meet at the Bryant Room of the Gibbs 
Library, 40 Old Union Road, Washington, on Friday, March 26, 2021, at 8: 
00 a.m., then and there to act on Article 1 and by secret ballot on Article 2, 
as set out below, the polling hours therefore to be from 8: 00 a.m. until 8: 00 
p.m.:
	 	And to notify and warn said voters to meet at the Prescott Memorial 
School, 100 Waldoboro Road, Washington, on Saturday, March 27, 2021, at 
10: 00 a.m., then and there to act on Articles 3 through 38 as set out below, 
to wit: 

Article	 1: 	To choose a moderator by written ballot to preside at said 
meeting.

Article	 2: 	To elect all necessary town officers and school board members 
as are required to be elected.

Article	 3: 	To elect seven citizens and two alternates to serve on the Town 
of Washington Budget Committee.

Article	 4: 	To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to appoint 
all necessary town officials.

Article	 5: 	To see if the Town will vote to authorize that the Plumbing 
Inspector be paid from fees collected from plumbing permits; the E911 
Coordinator be paid from E911 application fees; and the Driveway Entrance 
Coordinator be paid from driveway entrance application fees.
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Article	 6: 	To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Municipal Officers 
to spend an amount not to exceed 3/12 of the budgeted amount in each 
budgeted category of the 2021 annual budget during the period from January 
1, 2022, to the date of the 2022 Annual Town Meeting.
Explanation:  This article legalizes municipal expenditures made after the 
fiscal year ends, but before the next Annual Town Meeting.

Article	 7: 	To see if the Town will fix a date when taxes will be due and 
payable, and fix a rate of interest to be charged on unpaid taxes after said 
date. 
(Selectmen and Tax Collector recommend 2021 taxes will be due and 
payable on October 1, 2021)  (Maximum interest rate on overdue taxes 
allowed by State Law:  8.0%)  

Article	 8: 	To see if the Town will vote to set the interest rate to be paid by 
the Town on abated taxes at 4%.
Explanation: If taxes are paid and later abated, the Town must refund the 
abated taxes and pay interest on them. 36 MRSA, Sub. Sect. 506A calls for 
interest of 8% on abated taxes if the Town fails to set a rate.  The rate set by 
the Town cannot be less than 4%.

Article	 9: 	To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Municipal Officers 
to make a final determination regarding the closing or opening of roads to 
winter maintenance pursuant to 23 MRSA Section 2953.

Article	 10: 	To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to sell 
and dispose of property acquired by tax liens, other liens, or other processes, 
and to issue quitclaim deeds for same. Before going to public auction, 
Selectmen are authorized to offer the sale of the property to the former 
owner for back taxes, interests, and costs. If the offer is not accepted in 
60 days, the Selectmen may dispose of the property by public auction. All 
net proceeds from any auction shall be placed in the town’s road reserve 
account.

Article	 11: 	To see if the Town will authorize the Selectmen to appropriate 
money from the sale of any Town tax acquired lands to pay the costs of said 
sale.
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Article	 12: 	To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to dispose 
of town-owned items with a value of $5,000.00 or less under such terms and 
conditions as they deem advisable, and to place the proceeds of sale to the 
General Fund or Reserve Account that is appropriate.

Article	 13: 	To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to sell 
surplus equipment with expected value over $5000.00 by sealed bid, and 
to place the proceeds of the sale in a General Fund or Reserve Account, as 
appropriate.

Article	 14: 	To see if the Town will authorize the Tax Collector to accept 
prepayment of taxes for the years 2021 and 2022 for taxes not yet due or 
assessed and for no interest to accrue.

Article	 15: 	To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Tax Collector to 
offer a Tax Club Payment Plan and to waive interest on taxes for those 
accounts that are kept current.

Article	 16: 	To see if the Town will vote to authorize municipal officials to 
apply for Homeland Security and/or other grants that may come available.

Article	 17: 	To see if the Town will vote to spend any grant money received, 
not to exceed the amount of the grant, for the stated purposes of the grant 
only.

Article	 18: 	To see if the Town will vote to move the 2021 overlay, plus 
supplemental tax assessments and less any tax abatements, into the Road 
Maintenance Reserve Account.

Article	 19: 	To see if the Town will vote to move any monies remaining in 
the Public Safety account on December 31, 2021  to the Fire Equipment 
Reserve account.

Article	 20: 	To see if the Town will vote to approve moving $5000.00 from 
the sale of the old Fire Tanker Chassis from Surplus to the Fire Truck 
Replacement Reserve account.
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Article	 21: 	To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the 2021 Snowmobile 
Refund to the Washington Hill & Gully Riders for the sole purpose of 
maintaining their snowmobile trails, to be open to the use of the public 
from November 15 until April 1 and to authorize the municipal officers to 
enter into an agreement with the club, under such terms and conditions as 
the municipal officers may deem advisable, for that purpose, or see what 
action the Town will take.
Explanation:  The snowmobile registration money must be appropriated 
annually by the Town for whatever purpose it desires. If all or part of it 
is appropriated to the snowmobile club, one of the conditions of that 
appropriation must be that the club’s trails are open to public use. Otherwise, 
it would be an illegal appropriation of public funds for a private group.

Article	 22: 	To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the following General 
Fund revenues to be applied toward the 2021  property tax commitment, 
thereby decreasing the 2021 tax commitment by $469,275.00.	       
	 	Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend: 
	 	Excise Tax Revenue	 	 250,000.00
	 	Revenue Sharing	 	 115,000.00
	 	Tree Growth Reimbursement	 	    3,000.00
	 	Building Permits	 	    1,500.00
	 	Mining Permits and Inspections	 	    4,000.00
	 	Interest on Overdue Taxes	 	  12,000.00
	 	Veterans Reimbursement	 	    1,600.00
	 	General Fund Interest	 	    5,000.00
	 	Other Town Fees Collected	  	   9,175.00
	 	Unexpended 2020 Appropriations	  	 45,000.00
	 	Transferred from Undesignated Fund Balance	 	  50,000.00
	 	 Total			 	 	 $496,275.00

Article	 23: 	To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $339,036.67 
from property taxation for 2021  Knox County, Tri-County Solid Waste 
Management Organization and Union Ambulance assessments.
	 	Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend as advisory lines: 
	 	Knox County Tax Assessment	          	    $181,078.67
	 	Knox County Communications	  	   50,038.00
	 	Union Ambulance	  	   62,828.00
	 	Tri-County Solid Waste	 	    45,092.00
	 	 			               	 	 $339,036.67
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Article	 24: 	To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $54,750.00 
from property taxation for General Government Operations. 
		 Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend as advisory lines:   
	Legal Fees				 	 	 7,500.00
	Administration	 	   47,250.00
	 	Advertising	                  1,000.00
	 	Computer Annual Fees	  15,000.00
	 	Audit of Town Books	                  7,000.00
	 	Computer Tech Support	    1,000.00
	 	MMA Dues	    3,000.00
	 	Workshops and Training	    1,000.00
	 	Mileage	 	    2,000.00
	 	Office Equipment	    4,200.00
	 	Office Supplies	    2,500.00
	 	Postage	 	    3,100.00
	 	Selectmen Discretionary Fund	       500.00
	 	Tax Maps		    1,000.00
	 	Tax Billing	    1,500.00
	 	Town Report Printing	    3,000.00
	 	Tax Anticipation Note	    1,000.00
	 	Money Order Fees	       450.00
	 	  Subtotal	 	   47,250.00
	 	 Total			 	 	 $54,750.00

Article	 25: 	To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $31,519.00 
from property taxation for Insurance.
		 Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend as advisory lines:   
	 	MMA Insurance Risk Pool	 	 $ 21,935.00
	 	Unemployment Insurance	       	   672.00
	 	Worker’s Compensation Premium	    	   8,012.00
	 	Volunteer Insurance	     	     100.00
	 	Firefighter Accident Insurance	      	    800.00
	 	 Total			 	 	 $ 31,519.00
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Article	 26: 	To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $205,437.00 
from property taxation for Salaries, Stipends, Employee Health Insurance, 
and Payroll Expenses.
	 	Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend as advisory lines: 
	 	Salaries and Stipends	   $143,692.00
	 	Selectmen (3)	 19,500.00
	 	Secretary - Selectmen      	        800.00
	 	Town Clerk/Tax Collector	   23,445.00
	 	Treasurer	    	   13,155.00
	 	Deputy Town Clerk/
	 	  Tax Collector/Treasurer    	   24,160.00
	 	Deputy Town Clerk/
	 	  Tax Collector/Treasurer II	   14,832.00
	 	Ballot Clerks    	     2,500.00
	 	EMA Director       	        750.00
	 	Health Officer	                    1,000.00
	 	Fire Warden (2)         	        300.00
	 	Fire Chief	    	     4,000.00
	 	Deputy Fire Chief          	     3,000.00
	 	Firefighter Stipends	     3,750.00
	 	Secretary - Planning Board     	     1,000.00
	 	Secretary - Appeals Board	 400.00
	 	Assessor’s Agent	                                  5,000.00
	 	Animal Control Officer	     3,000.00
	 	Code Enforcement Officer	 20,000.00
	 	Constable		                       100.00
	 	Moderator of open March town meeting	         200.00
	 	School Board Member Stipend (2)	      1,000.00
	 	Custodial Services	      1,800.00
	 	  Sub-total		 $143,692.00
	 	Town Portion of 
	 	  Employee Health Insurance	  39,600.00
	 	FICA Payroll Expenses	   22,145.00
	 	 			 	 	 $61,745.00
	 	 Total			 	 	 $205,437.00
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Article	 27: 	To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $437,774.00 
from property taxation for Maintenance of Town Roads and related 
operations.
		 Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend as advisory lines: 
	 	Road Maintenance Materials & Supplies	 	  10,000.00
	 	Plow Truck Payment	 	  20,184.00
	 	Plow Truck Payment (P600, 2021)	 	  18,800.00
	 	Truck Fuel	 	  19,500.00
	 	Truck Maintenance
	 	 	P100	 	    2,000.00
	 	 	P200	 	    4,000.00
	 	 	P300	 	    4,000.00
	 	 	P400	 	    2,000.00
	 	 	P500	 	    2,000.00
	 	 	P600	 	    2,000.00
	 	Cutting Edges and Sander Chains	 	   11,500.00
	 	Culverts	 	 	    3,000.00
	 	Loader and Backhoe Fuel	 	    3,500.00
	 	Loader, Backhoe & Chipper Maintenance	 	     5,500.00
	 	Garage Mortgage	 	   12,290.00
	 	Garage Utilities	 	     4,500.00
	 	Garage Maintenance 	 	     2,500.00
	 	Road Maintenance Labor	 	  150,000.00
	 	Equipment Rental	 	    13,000.00
	 	Screening Winter Sand	 	    16,000.00
	 	Road Salt		 	    30,000.00
	 	E911 and Road Signs	 	         500.00
	 	Paving and Capital Improvement of Town Roads	 	   100,000.00
	 	State Fee, Mining Permit	 	          400.00
	 	Driver OSHA and DOT Screening and Testing	 	         600.00
	 	  Total			 	 	 $ 437,774.00

Article	 28: 	To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $2,000.00 
from property taxation for General Assistance.
		 Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend as advisory lines: 
	 	General Assistance	 	            2,000.00
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Article	 29: 	To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $82,865.00 
from property taxation for Public Safety.
		 Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend as advisory lines:   
	 	Fire Department General Support	 	 12,500.00
	 	Fire Department Equipment	 	 12,000.00
	 	Firefighter Training	 	   2,000.00
	 	Firefighter Physicals	 	   2,500.00
	 	Fire Truck Loan Payment	 	 31,365.00
	 	Tanker Truck Loan Payment	 	 19,700.00
	 	Hose Testing	 	   2,800.00
	 	 Total			 	 	 82,865.00

Article	 30: 	To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $48,500.00 
from property taxation for Utilities and Maintenance.
		 Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend as advisory lines: 
	 	Town Utilities	 	  14,000.00
	 	Grounds and Monument Gardens	 	    1,000.00
	 	Building and Grounds Maintenance	 	    8,000.00
	 	Cemetery Maintenance	 	  16,000.00
	 	Street Lights	 	    3,500.00
	 	Municipal Complex Snow Removal	 	    6,000.00
	 	 Total			 	 	 48,500.00
	

Article 31: 	To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $600.00 
from property taxation for Boards and Committees.
		 Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend as advisory lines: 
	 	Conservation and Parks Committee	 	       200.00
	 	Planning Board Expense	 	       200.00
	 	Comprehensive Plan and Ordinance Review Committee	       200.00
	 	 Total			 	 	 600.00
	
Article	 32: 	To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $47,000.00 
from property taxation for Town Carry-over Accounts.
		 Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend as advisory lines: 
	 	Headstone Restoration Fund	 	   1,000.00
	 	West Washington Cemetery Restoration	 	   3,000.00
	 	Town Record Preservation Fund	 	   3,000.00
	 	Fire Truck Replacement Fund	 	 20,000.00

continued next page
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	 	Road Maintenance Truck Fund	 	 20,000.00
	 	 Total			 	 	 47,000.00

Article	 33: 	To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $30,213.00 
from property taxation for Miscellaneous Accounts. 
		 Selectmen and Budget Committee recommend as advisory lines: 
	 	Washington Library Association	  15,000.00
	 	Washington Community Scholarship	    1,000.00
	 	Minnie Weaver Scholarship	    1,000.00
	 	Washington Historical Society	    3,500.00
	 	Washington Food Pantry	    2,000.00
	 	Mid-Coast Humane Society	    2,215.00
	 	Flags for Veterans Graves and Town Parks	       600.00
	 	Midcoast Conservancy Dues 
	 	  (Damariscotta Lake Watershed)	 50.00
	 	Sub-total	 	 	 25,365.00
	 	Social Agencies and Concerns	 	 	
	 	New Hope for Women	     750.00
	 	Waldo Community Action Partners	    365.00
	 	Spectrum Generations	   1,169.00
	 	Pine Tree Chapter, Red Cross	  1,500.00
	 	Life Flight of Maine	      764.00
	 	Gary Owen House	      300.00
	 	  Sub-total		 	 4,848.00
	 	 Total			 	 	 $30,213.00
	
Article	 34: 	To see if the Town will vote to authorize spending up to 
$61,000.00 from the Local Roads Assistance Program (LRAP) for Capital 
Road Improvement.
	
Article	 35: 	To see if the Town will vote to authorize spending $40,000 from 
the Undesignated Fund Balance (Surplus) for Paving.
	
Article	 36: 	To see if the Town will vote to authorize spending $40,000 from 
the Undesignated Fund Balance (Surplus) to crush tailings into surface 
gravel.

Article	 37: 	To see if the Town will vote to investigate options to invest in 
infrastructure to provide equal access high speed internet to all areas of the 
town. continued next page
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Explanation:  The purpose of the vote is to demonstrate to potential 
Internet Service Providers, lenders, and grant sources that the Town 
supports improving our internet speeds.  The vote would allow us to partner 
with a company and apply for a Community Planning Grant through the 
ConnectMaine Authority to explore options to improve our internet speeds.  
This would NOT commit the Town to any debt or specific Internet Service 
Provider.

Article	 38: 	To see if the Town will vote to permanently increase the property 
tax levy limit established for the Town of Washington by State Law in the 
event that the municipal budget approved under the preceding articles will 
result in a tax commitment that is greater than that tax levy limit.

Given under our hands on this 24th day of February, 2021: 
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Mailbox Installation
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Driveway Culverts
Who is responsible for repair or replacement?

Responsibilities for a driveway or an entrance within the right-of-way 
of a state or state-aid highway were outlined by the Maine legislature in 
2014. There are specific cases when MaineDOT is responsible for repair or 
replacement of a culvert or entrance. 

• When MaineDOT undertakes a capital or ditching project that 
requires the replacement or relocation of a driveway entrance or culvert, 
MaineDOT is responsible for the culvert replacement and/or relocation, and 
the driveway entrance restoration. 

• When a natural event results in regional flooding and washouts, 
causing a culvert to fail and/or a driveway entrance to wash out, MaineDOT 
will reinstall or replace the culvert (at MaineDOT’s discretion) to reestablish 
access to the abutting property. 

Culvert replacements not covered above are generally the responsibility 
of the property owner. In addition, the property owner is responsible for 
driveway repairs to bumps or depressions that may develop over a culvert
Who is responsible for cleaning culverts?

In most cases, homeowners are responsible for residential culvert 
maintenance and repair. Repairs can be very costly, so it’s in your best 
interest to make sure your culvert is properly maintained at all times. 
Culverts tend to fill with natural debris.
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